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Frick India Limited

COMPANY INFORMATION

Registered Office & Works ¢ Frick India Limited
CIN - L74899HR1962PLCOD2618
21.5 Km., Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad -121003. (Haryana)
Ph:91-2275691-54, 2270546-47
Fax : 0129-2275695
E mail: cs@frickmail.com

Corporate Office : B80S, Suryakiran Building,
19 K. G. Marg, New Delhj -110001
Ph: 23322381/84/91 Fax: 011-23322396
E mail: delhi@frick.co.in

Website o owww frickweb.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Managing Director ;M. Jasmohan Singh

Mon-Executive Directors : Ms. Jasleen Kaur Queenie Singh
Ms. Gurleen Kaur

Independent Directars :  Mr. Ramesh Chandra lain
Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao
CA. Divaker lagga

COMMITTEES :

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. G. B, Rao :  Independent Director and Chairman
Mr. Jasmohan Singh : Member
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain i Member
Mr. Divaker lagga ¢ Member

NOMIMATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE :

Mr Ramesh Chandra Jain ¢ Non-Executive, Lead Independent Director cum Chairman
M. Divaker Jagga : Member
Dr. G. B, Rao : Member
Ms. Gurleen kaur : Member

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain :  Non-Executive, Lead Independent Director cum Chairman
M Jasmohan Singh ¢ Member
M. Divaker Jagga : Member

Ms. Gurleen kaur : Member
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COMMITTEE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Mr. Ramesh Chandra lain
Mr. Jasmohan Singh
Mis, Gurieen Kaur

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

hir, Jasmahan Singh
CA. Sharad Bhatnagar
CS. Amit Singh Tomar

AUDITORS
Stotutory Auditors

Auditor
Financial Year 2022-23

secretarial Auditors

Internal Auditors

BANKERS

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT

Chairman
Member
Member

Managing Director
Director (Finance & Taxation) & CFO
Company Secretary- Manager - Legal

M/s Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 301051E

M/s Jatin Sharma & Company.
Firm Registration No. 101845

/s Aditi Agarwal & Associates

Grant Thornton India LLP

Canara Bank
ICIC| Bank Limited
HDFC Bank Limited

Link Intime India Private Limited

Moble Heights, Ist Floor, NH-2,

C-1, Block LSC, Near Savitri Market,

lanakpuri, Mew Delhi- 110058

Tel : 011-41410592/93/94. Fax: 011-41410591
e-mail : delhi@linkintime.co.in

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL REVIEW (Rs. in Lakhs)

Year Ending 31st March 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Net Sales (Including other income) 36,927.00 | 28,771.80 |23753.86 | 22,700.91 | 24,810.50

Assets before Depreciation 4.374.24 4.188.87 4,013.09 3,989.72 382711

Equity Capital (Rs.60 Lakhs)Plus Reserves| 23,175.42 | 20,363.98 | 18,756.78 | 16,708.61 | 15,227.05

Profit Before Taxation 3,856.46 | 2,189.71 273159 | 1,854.05 | 2.150.69

Provision for taxation (Net) 1,004.25 | 553.37 652.54 393.14 633.25

Dividend Paid 18.00 18.00 15.00 15.00 15.00
 PERCENTAGE _'

Rate of Dividend 30 30 25 25 25

Previous year's figures have bean re-casted [ regrouped f rescheduled, wheraver considered necessary.

The Amount Shown as Dividend paid is net of Dividend Distribution Tax
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Frick India Limited
‘ [CIN - L74B99HR1962PLCO02618)
Regd. Office: -
21.5 KM, Main Mathura Road,
Frmx Faridabad-121003 {Haryana)
Ph. 0129-2275691-94, 2270546-47
Fax. 0129-22756495

Email - cs@frickmail.com
Website - www frickweb.com

NOTICE OF 60" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE i5 hereby given that the 80" ANNUAL GEMNERAL MEETING of the Members of Frick India Limited will be
held on Monday, 25" day of September, 2023 at 11:00 A.M.., through Video Conferencing/Audio Visual Mode to

transact the following business:-
ORDINARY BLSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company i.e. Audited Balance Sheet as at 31
March, 2023 and the Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year ended 31%
March, 2023 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors” & Auditors’ thereon.

2. To declare dividend of Rs. 4/-per equity share on 5,99,975 fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10/-each for the
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Gurleen Kaur, Mon-Executive Director [DIN: 05270533] who retires by
rotation and being eligible, had provided the consent for re-appointment as the Non-Executive Director of the
Company,

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION TO BE PAID TO M/S JATIN SHARMA & CO., COST AUDITORS [FIRM
REGISTRATION NO.101845] OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-2024

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification{s}, the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the shareholders of the Company ba and
hereby ratify the payment of the remuneration to M/s latin Sharma & Co., Cost Auditors [Firm Registration
Mo 101845 for INR 1,20,000/- {Rupees One Lakh Twenty Thousand only) exclusive of any taxes and statutory
levies as applicable plus reimbursement of out of pocket expensas as may be incurred during the course of Cost
Audit for the Financial Year 2023-2024, and also the Cost for conversion of requisite decuments / Cost Audit
Report and related annexures in Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL) shall alsc be paid and

reimbursed by the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors andfor Mr. Sharad Bhatnagar, CFO & Director (Finance &
Taxation} of the Company and/or Mr. Amit Singh Tomar, Company Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the

purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”
NOTES

In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India ["MCA") issued
General Circular Nos, 14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020, 02/2021, 15/2021, 21/2021, 02/2022 and 10/2022 dated 8th
April 2020, 13th April 2020, S5th May 2020, 13th January 2021, 8th December 2021, 14th December 2021, 5
May, 2022 and 287 December, 2022 respectively, ("MCA Circulars") allowing, inter-alia, conduct of AGMs
through Video Conferancing/Other Audio-Visual Means ("WC f DAVMT) facility on ar before 30th September,
2023, in accordance with the requirements provided in paragraphs 2 and 4 of the MCA General Clrcular No.

iz ]
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(2}

20/2020, In compliance with these Circulars, provisions of the Act and the SEB| (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations”), the 60th AGM of the Company is being
conducted through VC / OAVM facility, which does not require physical presence of Members at a common
venue, The deemed venue for the 60th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

Institutional / Corporate Shareholders {i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a
scanned copy (PDF/PG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its
representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The
said ResolutionfAuthorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer (i.e. Ms Aditi Gupta) by email through its
registered ermail address to cs.aditiagarwal@gmail.com, with a copy marked to cs@frickmail.com

(2) The meeting shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 21.5 Km,

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7}

(8)

Main Mathura Road, Faridabad, Haryana.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this
AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has
been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available
for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday
September 19, 2023 to Monday, 25" September, 2023, (bath days inclusive).
Final dividend of Rs. 4.00/- per equity share as recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended

31st March, 2023 and subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, will
be credited, on or after the, September 257, 2023 to the following Members or their mandate:

6.1 whose names appear as Beneficial Owners as at the end of the business hours on the September 18",
2023 in the lists of Beneficlal Owners to be furnished by National Securities Depository Limited ('NSDL')
and Central Depository Services {India) Limited ('CDSL’) in respect of the shares held in electronic mode;
and

6.2 whose names appear as Members in the Register of members of the Company after giving effect to valid
share transfers in physical form lodged with the Company / its Registrar & Transfer Agents on or befare
September 18", 2023.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred
only in dematerialized form with effect from, April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission
or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for
ease of portfolio management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting
their haldings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company or Company's Registrars and
Transfer Agent, “Linkintime India Private Limited” for assistance in this regard.

Members are requested to notify to the Company any change in their address on or before September 18,
2023 and if any of these requests are received later than the said date, the same will not be taken into account
for the purpose of payment of dividend declared by the Company. Members are also requested to send their
latest specimen signatures to the Company for updation of the record.

Further, the Members whose shareholdings are in electronic mode are requested to directly correspond for
change of address, noftifications and updating thereon of saving bank account details to their respective
Depository Participants, on an immediate basis.
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Process for registration of email id for obtaining Annual Report and user id/password for e-voting and updation of
bank account mandate for receipt of dividend:

Physical Holding Send a request to the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company, Linkintime - at
www.linkintime.co.in providing Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN
card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) for registering email
address,

Following additional details need to be provided in case of updating Bank Account
Details:

a) Mame and Branch of the Bank in which you wish to receive the dividend,
b) the Bank Account type,

c) Bank Account Number allotted by their banks after implementation of Core
Banking Solutions

d) 9 digit MICR Cade Number, and
e} 11 digit IF5C Code

f} a scanned copy of the cancelled chegue bearing the name of the first shareholder

Demat Holding Please contact your Depository Participant (DP) and register your email address
and bank account details in your demat account, as per the process advised by your
DP.

(9) The relevant details as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 of the person seeking re-appointment as Director under Item No. 3 of the Notice is annexed.

{10) Full version of the Annual Report will also be available on the website of the Company www.frickweb.com.

{11) In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, the members whose name appears as the first helder in the

order of names as per Register of Members of the company will be entitled to vote

(12) Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102(1) of the Act, relating to the Special Business
to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed herewith.

(13) Material documents pertaining to above resolutions are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the
Company at 21.5 Km, Main Mathura Road, Faridabad (Haryana) during 2.00 p.m. to 4.00 p.m. an any working day
and will also be available for inspection at the meeting.

(14) Queries on Financial Statements of the Company, if any, may please be sent at the Registered Office of the

will be replied by the Company suitably.

(15) As per the extent of the said Act, every shareholder is entitled to nominate a person in accordance with the

provisions of Section 72 of the Act to whom his / her shares in the Company shall vest in the unfortunate of his
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(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

/ her death. The members who wish to avail the facility of nomination may send in their nemination in Form
5H-13 as prescribed under the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, a copy af which is
enclosaed in the Annual Report. Members holding shares [n electronic mode may contact their respective
Depository Participant for availing this facility.

Members of the Company who hold equity shares in physical form are encouraged to utilize the Electronic
Clearing Systern (ECS) for direct credit of dividend to their bank account. This notice includes an ECS Mandate
Form for the benefit of the Members desiring to receive dividends through the ECS mode. Intimation in this
regard should be sent to the Company immediately,

Unclaimed dividend for the Year ended 31st March, 2016 onwards and the corresponding Equity Shares of the
Company in respect of which dividend entitlements have remained unclaimed for seven consecutive years
from the Anancial year ended 31st March, 2016 will be due for transfer to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund of the Central Government {JIEPF') on MNovember 01, 2023 pursuant to the provisions of
Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 ({'IEPF Rules’). In respect of the said dividend and
corresponding shares, it will not be possible to entertain any claim received by the Company after November
01, 2023,

Details of the unclaimed dividend and particulars with respect to corresponding shares due for transfer to the
IEPF are available on the Company’s corporate website www frickweb.com under the section ‘Investor

Relations'.

Dividend and corresponding shares, as stated in (17} above, once transferred to the [EPF by the Company, may
be claimed only from the |EPF Authority by following the procedure prescribed under the [EPF Rules.

tir. Amit Singh, Company Secretary is the Nodal Officer {refer Directors Report] of the Company for the
purpose of verification of such claims.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular Mo. CIR/OIAE/1/2013 dated April 17, 2013, the Company has to redress the investor
complaint throusgh SEBI Complaints Redress System ("SCORES’) under the web portal http://scores gov.in. As
on date the Company has registered itself with the web-portal of the SEBI SCORES with respect to enabling
investors to lodge and follow up their complaints and track the status of redressal of such complaints from

anywhere in order to safeguard the interest of the stakeholders/shareholders.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated January 15, 2021, May 13, 2022 &
lanuary 5, 2023 read with circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Repart 2022-
23 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with
the Company/ Depositories, Members may note that the MNotice and Annual Report 2022-23 will also be
available on the Company's website www. Frickweb.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges l.e, Metropalitan
Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.mselin, Further, pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CED/PaD-
2/PfCIRS2023/4 dated January 05, 2023, the relaxation pursuant to furnishing of hard copy of Annual Report
has been extended till September 30, 2023. However, hard copies of the Annual Report, financial statements
{including Board report, Auditor report or other documents required to be attached therewith) and Molices of
Annual General Meeting will be made available to the members, who reguest for the same and the web link of

the full Annual Report shall also be available in the notice of AGM published by advertisement to enable
shareholders to have full access of the same.

Members attending the AGM through VT / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum
under Section 103 of the Act.
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(22)

(23)

(24}

(25)

(26)

(27}

(28)

Pursuant to Finance Act 2020, dividend income will be taxable in the hands of shareholders w.e.f. April 1,
2020 and the Company is reguired to deduct tax at source from dividend paid to shareholders at the
prescribed rates. For the prescribed rates for various categories, the shareholders are requested to refer to
the Finance Act, 2020 and amendments thereof. The shareholders are requested to update their PAN with
the Company/ Linkintime India Private Limited {in case of shares held in physical mode) and depositories {in

case of shares held in demat mode).

A Resident individual shareholder with PAN and who is not liable to pay income tax can submit a yearly
declaration in Form Ne, 15G/15H, to avail the benefit of non-deduction of tax at source by
stakeholders@frickmall.com by 11:5% p.m. IST on September 18™, 2023. Shareholders are requested to note
that in case their PAMN is not registered, the tax will be deducted at a higher rate of 20%.

Mon-resident shareholders can avail beneficial rates under tax treaty between India and their country of
residence, subject to providing necessary documents i.e. No Permanent Establishment and Beneficial
Ownership Declaration, Tax Residency Certificate, Form 10F, any other document which may be required to
avail the tax treaty benefits by sending an email to stakeholders@frickmail.com The aferesaid declarations
and documents need to be submitted by the shareholders by 11:59 p.m, I5T on September 18", 2023,

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Number {PAN) by every participant In securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are,
therefore, requested to submit thelr PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining
their demat accounts, Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company/RTA.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Govt. of India has taken a "Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” by
allowing paperless compliances by companies and has issued Circulars inter-alia stating that the service of
notices/ documents to the Members can be made in electronic mode. In support of this Green Initiative of
the Government, the Company hereby requests its Members to send their valid e-mail |I¥'s to the Secretary
of the Company / its RTA / their Depository Participant, so that this initiative can be supported by sending the
MWotices, Audited Balance Sheet, Directors Report, Auditors Report and other related documents and other
correspondences in electronic mode. This initiative is however optional & the members can continue to
receive these documents in physical form. Requisite form for registration of e-mail 10, forms part of the

Annual Report for use by the members.
Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

The members can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. through e-voting or through Voting at the meeting. In
case of voting by both the maodes, vote casted through e-voting will be considered final and voting at the
Annual General Meeting through online voting facility at the meeting will be considered as invalid.

The voting rights of the Members for e-voting and for online voting at the meeting shall be reckoned on the

paid up value of shares registered in the name of shareholders as on the cut-off date (i.e. the record date),
being September 18 2023,

SHAREHOLDER INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING

Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies {Management and

Administration] Rules, 2014, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations the Company is pleased to offer

remote e-voting facility to the members to cast their votes electronically on all resolutions set forth in the Notice
convening the 60" Annual General Meeting to be held at 11:00 AM. on Maonday, 25" day of September, 2023

through Video Conferencing/Audio Visual Mode, The Company has engaged the services of Linkintime India Private

Limited to provide the remote E-\Voting facility.

or
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The remote E-Voting facility is available at the link: https://instavote linkintime.co.in

(E-VOTING EVENT COMMENCEMENT OF REMOTE E- ENDC OF REMOTE E-VOTING
NUMBER) VOTING
230214 September 22, 2023 at 10:00 A.M. September 24, 2023 at 05:00 P.M.

These details and instructions form an integral part of the notice for the 60th Annual General Meeting to be held
on Monday, 25" day of September, 2023 at 11:00, through Video Conferencing/Audic Visual Mode.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

{f} The remote e-voling period begins from 10:00 A.M. on September 22, 2023 and ends at 05:00 P.M. on
September 24, 2023, During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or In dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date September 18, 2023, may cast their vote

electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by Linkintime for remote e-voting
thereafter. Those Members, who will be present in the AGM through VT [/ OAVM facility and have not
cast their vote on the Resolutions through remaote e-vobing and are otherwise not barred from doing sa,

shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the AGM,

(i} Login method for individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode/physical mode is given

below:

Type of
Shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with N5DL

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz... https:/feservices.nsdl.com
either on a personal computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the
"Beneficial Owner” lcon under "Login™" which is avallable under 'IDeAS' section, this will
prompt you to enter your existing User |0 and Password. After successful authentication, you
will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services, Click on "Access to a-Voting”
under e-Vating services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company narme or
e-Voting service provider name e, LINKINTIME and you will be re-directed to "InstaVote”
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

register is available
Portal" or click

If you are not registered for |DeAS e-Services, option to
at https://eservices.nsdl.com Select "Register Online for |DeAS
at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https:/ fwww.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a personal computer or on 3 mobile. Once the
home page of e-\oting system is launched, click on the icon "Login” which Is available under
'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 1D
(l.e. your sixteen-digit demal account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-\oting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to
“InstaVfote” website for casting yeur vote during the remote e-Vating period,

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with CDSL

Users who have opted for COSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id
and password, The option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The wsers to login Easi [/ Easiest are reguested to visit CDSL website
wiww.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasl Tab and then use your
existing my easi username & password,

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible
companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by the company.
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On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting
service provider i.e. LINKINTIME for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining wirtual meeting & voting during the meeting, Additionally, there are also links provided
to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers' website directly,

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, the option to register is available at CD5L website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration
option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access the e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Mumber and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page, The
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in
the Demat Account. After successful authentication, the user will be able to see the e-Voting
aption where the evating is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-
Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
{halding
securities in
demat
mode) &
login
through
their
depasitory
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository
Participant registered with NSDL/COSL for e-Voting facility, After Successful login, you will be
able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
MNSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting
feature, Click on the company name or e-Voting service provider name i.e, Linkintime and you
will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote
e-Yoting periad.

Login
method for
Individual
shareholders
holding
securities in
physical
form/ Mon-
Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
is given
below:

Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form / Nen-Individual
Sharehaolders holding securities in demat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register
for e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under:

1. Openthe internet browser and launch the URL: https:/finstavote linkintime.co.in

2. Click on "Sign Up" under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and register with your following
details: -

A, User ID:

Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event Mo + Folio Number
registered with the Company. Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account
shall provide & Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digit Client 1D; Shareholders holding
shares in CD5SL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary 1D,

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who
have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use
the sequence number provided to you, if applicable,

C. DOB/DON: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) [As recorded
with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)

0. Bank Account Mumber: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as
recarded with your DP/Campany.

*Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C" and 'D’, shall
provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above

*Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above

- Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8
characters, at least one special Character (@ 145&%), at least one numeral, at least
one alphabet and at least one capital letter).

- Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated).
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3. Click on ‘Login” under *‘SHARE HOLDER' tab.

4, Enter your User 1D, Password and Image Verification {CAPTCHA) Code and click on
‘Submit’,

Cast your vote electronically:

1. After successful login, vou will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select
“View' icon.

2. E-voling page will appear.

3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option
‘Favour [ Against’ [If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the “View
Resolution” file link),

After selecting the desired option iLe. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on Yes',

4, else to change your vote, click on 'No' and accordingly modify your vote,

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are
required to log on the e-voting system of LIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and
register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body'. They are also reguired to
upload 3 scanned certified true copy of the board resolution fauthority letter/power of
attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised
representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body' login for
the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional
sharehalders:

Sharehalders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk
by sending a request at enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 — 4918 6000.
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective
helpdesk far any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e, NSDL and CDSL.

_Login type | Helpdeskdetails R
Individual Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
Shareholders holding helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdi.co.in or call at
securities in demat 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2495 7000
mode with N5SDL
Individual Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
Shareholders holding helpdesk by sending a request at
securities in demat helpdesk evoting@cdslindia com or contact at toll free no. 1800
mode with CDSL 225533

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the password:

If an Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the LUSER 1D
[Login ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” opton
available on the e-Voting website of Link Intime: https://instavote linkintime.co.in

- Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER' tab and further Click *forgot password?”
« Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on
“SUBMIT".

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered
e-rail address. Shareholders can set the password of hisfher choice by providing the
information about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank
Account Mumber (last four digits) etc, as mentioned above, The password should contain
minimum & characters, at least one special character (@ 1#54*), at least one numeral, at least
one alphabet and at least one capital letter.

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User I1D is
Event Mo + Folio Number registered with the Company
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the
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password:

Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User |D/ Password are advised to use Forget User |D

and Forget Password option available at abovermentioned depository/ depository participants
website.

# It s strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

¥ For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used
only for voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

¥ During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of tme till
they have voted on the resolution{s) for a particular "Event”,

Process and manner for attending the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

Members will be able to attend the AGM through VT / OAVM through Instameet service provided by Linkintime
India Private Limited, also, shareholders, can speak or can vote during the Annual General Meeting through
Instarneet, if they have not casted their votes through the remote e-voting.

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https:/finstameet_linkintime.co.in

followed by & Digit Client ID

the Company

PAN with the Depository Participant (OP)/

# Select the "Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: -

F Click "Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the

A. Demat Account Mo. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No

= Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary (D
= Shareholders members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID

= Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) {Members who have not updated their

Company shall use the sequence number provided ta vou, if applicable.
L. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number.

D. Email ID: Enter your emnail id, as recorded with your OP/Company.

meeting).

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

1,

L

Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 3 days in advance with
the company on the specific email id created for the general meeting.

Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the client.
Sharehalders will receive "speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting.

Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting.

Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video
mode and audio of your device.

Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the name
and serial number for speaking.

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ members
who have not exercised their vate through the remote e-vating can cast the vote as under:

On the Shareholders VT page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”
Enter your 16 digit Demat Account Mo, / Felic No. and OTP (received on the registered maobile number/
registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET and click on 'Submit’.

After successful lagin, you will see "Resolution Description” and against the same the option "Favour/ Against”
for voting.
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4, Cast your vate by selecting appropriate option fe. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares
{which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against',

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on
“Save”, A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish 1o canfirm your vote, click en “Confirm”, else to change
your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote.,

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote
subseguently,

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so,
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted through
Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual General
Meeting through InstabMeest, However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting.

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband
for better experience,

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Maobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network, It is therefore
recommended to use stable Wi-Fl or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to
instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel; 022-49186175.

Maote:

(a) Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through Insta-Meet facility and have
not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred  from doing so,
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted
through Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the
Annual General Meeting through Insta-Meet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the
meeting.

(b

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through
broadband for better experience,

{c) Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to
avoid any disturbance during the meesting.

(d} Please note that Shareholders/Members connecting from Maobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. It Is

therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fl or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches,

In_case shareholders/members have any gueries regarding  login/e-voting, they may send an email to
instameet@linkintime,co,in or contact on; - Tel; 022-49186175.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS:

i. The remote e-voting period begins from 10:00 A.M. on September 22, 2023 (Friday) and ends at 05:00 P.M. on
September 24, 2023 (Sunday), during this period, the members of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in demat form, as on the cut-off date i.e, September 18", 2023 may cast their vote electronically, Once
the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subseguently.

ii. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend/ participate in the
AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

fiil. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the pald-up equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date,
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iv. The Company has appointed Ms, Adit Gupta from M/s Adit Agarwal & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretary (FCS No. 9410, CP No. 10512), located at 2™ Floor, Manish Chambers, LSC, Mayur Vihar, Phase-li,
Mew Delhi - 110091 as the Scrutinizer for the voting process (both for remote e-voting process, voting by
electronic mode at the AGM through VC / OAVM, at the 60% Annual General Meeting) in a fair and
transparent manner,

The Scrutinizer shall, within a period not exceeding 3 (three) working days from the conclusion of the &0
Annual General Meeting, make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, and also the
valid and invalid votes, forward to the Chairman of the Company or the person authorized by him in writing,

who shall counter sign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

v, Subject to the recelpt of sufficient votes, the resolution shall be deemed to be passed at the 60th Annual
General Meeting of the Company scheduled ta be held on Monday, 257 September, 2023 at 11:00 AM,,
through Video Conferencing/Audio Visual Mode, At the said 60th Annual General Meeting, the Chairman shall
declare the results of remate e-vating on the resolutions set out in the Notice. The results declared along with
the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website www. frickweb.com and on the website of
Linkintime - wwiw linkintime.co.in, immediately after the declarations of results by the chairman or a person
authorized by him in writing.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ("the Act’)

Item No. 4

The Board has approved the remuneration of M/s Jatin Sharma & Co,, Cost Accountants [Firm Registration
Mo101845), as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2023-
2024 at a remuneration of INR 120,000/~ [Indian Rupees One Lakh Twenty Thousand Only] exclusive of any taxes
and statutory levies as applicable plus reimbursement of out of pocket expenses as may be incurred during the
course of Cost Audit for the Financial Year 2023-24, and also the Cost for conversion of reguisite documents / Cost
Audit Report and related annexures in Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL) shall also be paid and
reimbursed by the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the Members of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item Mo. 4 of the
Motice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditars for the financial year 2023-2024,

Mone of the Promoters / Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives, are in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at [tem Mo. 4 of the Notice.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Iltem No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the Members.

Date: May 24, 2023 By Order of the Board of Directors
Place: New Delhi Frick India Limited

[tasmohan Singh)

Managing Director

DIN: 00383412

Address: 5, Friends Colony (West),
New Delhi-110065
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR

SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING PURSUANT TO

REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS & DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT(S) REGULATIONS, 2015

Name of the Director

Director's ldentification Number (DIN)

Date of birth

Date of appointment

Qualification

Experience & Expertise in specific

Terms & Conditions of reappointment
Remuneration last drawn

Shareholding in the Company as on 31.03.2023

Relationship with other Directars

Mo. of Meetings of Board attended during
the year 2022-2023

List of companies* in which outside directorship
held Chairman/Member of the Committee* of Board
of Directors of Indian public companies:

Major Directorship

Committee Position

Date: May 24, 2023

Place: New Delhi

Regd. Office: 21.5 KM, Main Mathura Road

Faridabad - 121003 {Haryana)

Ph. 0129-2275691-94, 2270546-47; Fax. 0129-2275695
Email - cs@frickmail.com

Ms. Gurleen Kaur
05270533
December 31, 1965
December 29, 2012
M.B.B.S. (Doctor)

Medicine

Mot-applicable
3.300 Fully paid Equity Shares of INR 10/- each

Sister of Mr. Jasmohan Singh, Managing Director and
Ms, Jasleen Kaur Queenie Singh, Non-Executive Director
of the Company and KMPs of the Company. Not related to
any other key-Managernal Personnel of the Company.

Five (05)

Not-applicable

il

By Order of the Board of Directors
Frick India Limited

{Jasmohan Singh)

Managing Director

DIN: 00383412

Address: 5, Friends Colony (west)
Mew Delhi- 110065
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS,
FRICK INDIA LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting to you the 60™ Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for
the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Your Company's performance during the year as compared with the previous year is summarized below:

Rs. in Lakhs
Particular For the year ended 31" | For the year ended 31*
March, 2023 (Audited) March, 2022 (Audited)

Total Revenue 36927.00 28771.80
EBITDA 4270.34 2603.13
Financial Expenses 198.51 196.31
Depreciation / Amortization /Impairment Loss 215.37 217.11
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 3856.46 2189.71
Provision for Tax 1004.25 553.37
Profit after Tax(PAT) 2852.21 1636.34
Balance of Profit Brought Forward - -
Balance Available for Appropriation 2852.21 1636.34
Appropriation - -
Dividend Paid 18.00 18.00
Corporate Dividend Tax - -
Transfer to Other Equity 2834.21 1618.34
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet . .
Basic Earnings per Share 475.40 272.73
Diluted Earnings per Share 475.40 272.73

BUSIMESS PERFORMANCE
During the Financial Year 2022-2023, your Company has earned Total Income of Rs. 36927.00 Lakhs, as compared
to that of previous year 2021-22, being at Rs. 28771.80 Lakhs.

*The pre-tax profits for the Current Accounting Year 2022-2023 are recorded at Rs, 3856.46 Lakhs as compared to
that of previous year 2021-22, being st Rs. 2189.71 Lakhs.

The Company’s management is continually concentrating on consolidation of various lines of business of the
Company, to cut extra costs and boost turnover. Your Directors' are hopeful of increasing trend of growth in the
refrigeration sector due to rising global food prices.

CAPACITY EXPANSION / MODERNISATION OF FACILITIES

Frick India Limited has been under the process for capacity expansion as well as for modernization of facilities,
therefore, over the period of time has acquired various advanced technological equipments. The most recent one
acguisition made by the Company is Roller Conveyor Shot blasting Maching Model RC 2500 complete with Mn
Steel lining and NEW 9'-00" GMT Make Extra Heavy Duty Lathe Machine Centr Height 30", Width of Bed 30", Width
of Bed 307, Spindle Bare,

QUALITY INITIATIVES

Frick India Limited have been undertaking various initiatives on the Quality matters, in all aspects, viz. from the
stage of procurement of raw-materials / inputs for the production process up to the stage of final installation at
the Project Site of the Client and beyond commissioning as well, under the Annual Maintenance Contracts. Hence
no changes have been made in the financial year 2022-23.
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DIVIDEND

The Board has, subject to approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, recommended a
dividend @ 40% p.a. i.e. Bs. 4 Per Share for the year ended 31st March, 2023 on the 5,99,975 Equity Shares of face
value of Rs. 10/- each.

During the year, unclaimed dividend of Rs. 60,896/-pertaining to the year ended 31st March, 2015, was transferred
to the Investor Education & Protection Fund after giving due notice to the members.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND UNCLAIMED SHARES
The details relating to unclaimed Dividend and unclaimed Shares forms parts of the Corporate Governance Report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Board is pleased to report that with the view to reinforcing the financial strength of the Company, the Company
had transferred an amount of Rs. 2834.21/- Lakhs being 99.37% of the profit after tax of the year under review,
to the General Reserve of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, there has been no change in the authorized, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company.
The Authorized Share Capital of your Company is Rupees 3,00,00,000/- (comprising of 30 lacs Equity Shares of As,
10/- each and Paid up share capital of Rs. 59,99,750/- {comprising of 5,99,975 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.}

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONMNEL

Ms. Gurleen Kaur will retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being eligible, has offered herself
for re-appointment. The Board recommends her re-appointment. Brief resume of Ms, Gurleen Kaur with other
details as stipulated under Secretarial Standard —2 and Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 are provided in the Notice convening the 60th AGM.

The details of Directors and KMP for the financial year 2022-2023 as under:

Director's Identification No. Name of the Director(s) Designation

00383412 Mr. Jasmohan Singh Managing Director

05269658 Ms. Jasleen Kaur Queenie Singh Non- Exscutive Director

05270533 Ms. Gurleen Kaur Non- Executive Director

00038529 Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain Independent Director

00493992 Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao Independent Director

05357922 Mr. Divaker Jagga Independent Director

Identification No. Name of KMP's Designation

D03s3412 Mr. Jasmohan Singh Managing Director

PAN : ADCPB17828 CA Sharad Bhatnagar Director (Finance & Taxation) &
Chief Financial Officer

PAN : AMFPT1051M CS Arnit Singh Company Secretary & Manager
Legal

ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of Sections 92(3) and 134(3){a) of the Act, annual return is available under the ‘Investors’ section of the
Company's website, www. frickweb.com and can be viewed at the following link: hitp://frickweb.com/annual
report.aspx

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their
knowledge and ability, confirm:

1]
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(i} in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along

with proper explanation relating to material departures in the Auditor Report and Notes to Accounts;

(i) that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and of the profit or loss of the company far
that period;

{iii} that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adeguate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and

for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

liv] that the Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 on a
“going concern” basis;

iv) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(wi] the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DECLARATION

The Company has received the necessary declaration from each Independent Director in accordance with Section
149{7) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulations 25(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and refated amendments thereof that they meets the criteria of independence as
laid out [n Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1){b) of the Listing Regulations.

In the Opinion of the Board, Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Act, Rules made there
under and Listing Regulations and are independent of the management,

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors ("10s') inducted on the Board go through an orientation programme on March 14, 2023 a
copy of the same has been posted on the website of the Company www frickweb.com. Presentations are made by
Executive Directors and Senior Management giving an overview of our operations toe familiarize the 1Ds with the
Company's business operations. The |1Ds are given an orientation on the Company’s products, group structure,
Board constitution and procedures, matters reserved for the Board, and the major risks including risk management
strategy,

In terms of the Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015,
the Company has adopted a familiarization programme for the Independent Directors to familiarize them with
working of the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company,
their roles, rights, responsibilities and other relevant detalls.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI {Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board, in consultation with its Nomination & Remuneration Committee, has
formulated a framework containing, inter-alia, the criteria for performance evaluation of the entire Board of the
Corpany, its Committees and individual Directors, including Independent Directors.

A structured guestionnaire, covering various aspects of the functioning of the board and its Committee, such as,
adequacy of the constitution and compaosition of the Board and its Committees, matters addressed in the Board
and Committee meetings, processes followed at the meeting, Board's focus, regulatory compliances and Corporate
Governance, etc., is in place. Similarly, for evaluation of individual Director's performance, the guestionnaire
covering various aspects like hisfher profile, contribution in Board and Committee meetings, execution and

performance of specific duties, obligations, regulatory compliances and governance, etc., is also in place.
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Board members had submitted their response for evaluating the entire Board, respective committees of which
they are members and of their peer Board members, including Chairman of the Board.

The Independent Directors had met separately on March 14, 2023 without the presence of Non-Independent
Directors and the members of management and discussed, inter-alia, the performance of Non-Independent
Directors and Board as a whole and the performance of the Executive Director of the Company after taking into
consideration the views of Executive and Mon-Executive Directors.

The performance evaluation of all the Independent Directors have been done by the entire Board, excluding the
Director being evaluated. On the basis of performance evaluation done by the Board, it shall be determined
whether to extend or continue their term of appointment, whenever the respective term expires.

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.
Remuneration for Independent Directors and Non-Independent Mon-Executive Directors

The Mon-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors, are paid sitting fees for attending the meetings of
the Board and committees of the Board. The overall remuneration [sitting fees and commission) should be
reasonable and sufficient to atiract, retain and motivate Directors aligned to the requirements of the Company
including considering the challenges faced by the Company and its future growth imperatives, The remuneration
should also be reflective of the size of the Company, complexity of the business and the Company's capacity to pay
the remuneration.

The Company pays a sitbing fee of Rs. 55,000/- per meeting per Director for attending meetings of the Board,
Audit, Nomination and Remuneration, Stakeholder Relationship and Executive Committees w.e.f. April 01, 2021.

MNUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
During the Financlal Year 2022-23, Five {05) Board Meetings were held:-

Sr. No. Date of Meeting

1 May 17, 2022
August 12, 2022
Movernber 14, 2022
December 26, 2022
February 13, 2023

wn B W | kS

The gap between any two meetings was not more than one hundred twenty days except the relaxations provided
by Ministry of Corporate affairs and SEBI through various circulars issued from time ta time as mandated under the
provisions of Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Momination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of your
Board has formulated a Remuneration Policy for the appointment and determination of remuneration of the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees of your Company. The NRC has
also developed the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors
and for making payments to Executive and MNon-Executive Directors of the Company. The NRC takes into
consideration the remuneration practices in the industry while fixing appropriate remuneration packages.

Further, the compensation package of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, senior management and other
employees is designed based on the set of principles enemerated in the said policy. Further directors affirm that
the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, senior management and other employees is as
per the Remuneration Policy of your Company.

REMUNERATION OF MR. JASMOHAN SINGH, MANAGING DIRECTOR

In pursuance of the terms of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company and on the
recommendation of Momination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors, the Members approved
the revision in terms and condition of remuneration of Mr., Jasmaohan Singh, Managing Director in the 58th Annual
General Meeting held on September 18, 2021 for a period of 3 (three) years effective from April 01, 2021.
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The Remuneration detalls of the Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, along with details of
ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of employess of the Company for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2023 under review are provided, which is attached as Annexure-"G".

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit{s} under Sections 73 of the Campanies
Act 2013, read with the Rules made there under and no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as of the
date of the Balance Sheet. Further, there are no small depositors in the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES / JOINT VENTURES / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the year under review, no Company has become ar ceased to be subsidiary, joint venture or associate of
the Company.,

AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS AMND THEIR REPORT

M/s Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants, [Firm Registration No. 301051E], were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the period of 5 (five) Years at the 539" Annual General Meeting of the Company to
hold office up to the conclusion of 64" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12)

During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board
under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

The Board had appointed Ms, Adit Gupta, Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice of M/s Aditd Agarwal &
Associates, Company Secretaries, New Delhi [COP No. 10512] to conduct Secretarial Audit pursuant to the
provisions of Section 204 of the Act for the Financial Year 2022-2023, Secretarial Auditors of the Company has
been re-appointed at the Board Meeting of the Company held on May 17, 2022, The Company has received a
certificate from the Secretarial Auditors to the effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

There were following observations of Secretarial Auditors in their Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3, being
attached with the Directors’ Report and the respective explanation to the same by the Board of Directors of the
Company, is reproduced herein below!

i, Pursuont to the provision of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and
Frotection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Tronsfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, a Company whose dividend
remains unpaid/uncloimed for o period of seven consecutive years shall be required to tronsfer such shares to
the special purpose DEMAT Account, accordingly, the Company was required to tronsfer such shares into
DEMAT Account of IEPF. We have been informed that during the Finoncial Yeor 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20,
2020-21 gnd 2021-22, the Company hos been receiving several request(s) from certaoin shareholders claiming
their unpaid dividend for post vears and therefore due to change in shareholders details as available in the
records of the Company, the Company is taking time in identifying the outhenticity of the registered
shareholders, who have not encashed the dividend warrants for o continuous period of last seven yeoars and
hence, Form [EPF-4 for filing of statement of shares tronsfer to [EPF could not be filed til date. The
management of the Company is taking appropriate measures to comply with the above mentioned provision
af the Act.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND ({IEPF)

Pursuant to the provision of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer And Refund) Rules, 2016, a Company whose dividend
remains unpaid/unclaimed for a period of seven consecutive years shall be required to transfer such shares to the
special purpose DEMAT Account, accordingly, the Company was required to transfer such shares into Demat
Account of IEPF. Since Financial Year 2017-18, 2018-138, 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22 the Company had
repeatedly received request from certain shareholders claiming their unpaid dividend for past years and therefore
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was in process of identifying the shareholders who have not en cashed the dividend warrants for a continuous
period of last seven years. The Company has got published the newspaper advertisement on 12.08.2022 in
Financial Express (English Edition) and Harl Bhoomi {Hindi Edition)in relation to the Transfer of shares of the
Company to Demat account of IEPF Authority, in respect of which dividends have not been paid or claimed for
seven consecutive Yedars or more.

Further, the Board confirmed in its meeting dated May 17, 2022 that the list of shares, on which dividend was
unpaid or unclaimed for seven consecutive Financial Years, preceding the Financial Year 2021-22 was uploaded on
the website of the Company so that the investors can claim their unclaimed dividend after following the procedure
as laid down In Form |EPF = 5.

LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT

The particulars of loan, guarantees and investment under section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 provided under the
Mote No, 4 & 5, to the notes of accounts,

COST AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

The Cost Records of the Company are maintained in accordance with the provisions of section 148{1) of the Act as
specified by the Central Government. The Cost Audit Report, for the year ended 31st March, 2022, was filed with
the Central Government within the prescribed time.

In accordance with the provisions of section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, since the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for FY 2023-2024 is required to be ratified by the
members, the Board recommends the same for approval by members at the 60th AGM.

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Central
Government has prescribed audit of cost records for certain products. Accordingly, the Company needs te carryout
cost audit of its products. M/s Jatin Sharma & Company., Cost Accountants, [Firm Registration No.101845] were
appointed by the Board of Directors to carry out the cost audit during the Financial Year 2022-2023.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND POLICY

In terms of Section 188{1) of the Act, all related party transactions entered into by the Company during Financial
Year 2022-2023 were carried out with prior approval of the Audit Committee. Omnibus approval is obtained for
the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature, No approval of the Board was required as all
transactions were on an arm’s length basés and in the ordinary course of business. There are no material significant
related party transactions made by the Company during the year that would have required shareholder approval
under Regulation 23(4) of the Listing Regulations. A statement of all related party transactions is presented before
the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis, specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of the transaction.
The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties in the Form AQC-2 attached as Annexure —A,

There were no material significant related party transactions made by the Company with the promoters, directors,
key managerial personnel or other related parties, which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large,

The policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed on the Company's website, www.frickweb.com.
The details of the transactions with related parties during Financial Year 2022-2023 are provided in the
accompanying financial statements.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Research and Development has always been and continues to be a priority area for the Company. The focus of the
research and technology activities undertaken from time to time has been on to provide inputs to develop new
products, devising energy saving measures, catalyst development to support existing business and up gradation of
production processes and quality. In this era of high competition in the Indian environment, these inputs prove as
a major boost to the Company for its survival and growth. In addition, it serves as one of the means by which
business can expenence future growth by developing new products or processes to improve and expand their
aperations.
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INFORMATION ON CONSERVATIOM OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGMN EXCHANGE

Disclosure of information regarding Conservation of Energy, Research & Development, Technology Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo etc. under Section 134(3){m} of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of Directors’ Report for the Financial Year ended on 31st

March

A,

L]

2023,

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(a) Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy:

* |nstalled new synchronized efficient Gen-5ets of smaller capacity at requisite points In order to optimize
all operations. These help the controlled user of the big gen-sets.

= Switch OFF Power Transformer at no load Condition

= Switching Off Machine at Tea and Lunch Time

= |Jse of Energy Efficient LED light, installed / replaced at all points.

All Electric machinery usage is checked and controlled periodically.

Improving jigs and fixtures and tooling's for reducing machining time.

Existing plant have been made maore efficient by using various energy saving devices.

High Efficiency Cooling Coils, shall be manufactured and put to use at appropriate locations, to assist in

energy conservation.

(b} Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

The measures listed above are part of the continuing efforts of the Company to conserve energy.
In addition, the Company has an ongoing programme for bringing/generating awareness amaong
employees of the need to conserve electricity, cils, lubricant and likewise, The Company ordered
the Gas generator to replace with Diesel Generator. Ongoing Energy audit in the Tactory and
customer sites is done in order to utilize alternate sources of energy. Revamping of Solar Energy
cells for better efficiency. Planning to do away with Diesel Electricity Generator with Gas
Electricity Generator to lower Carbon Emission,

[c) Capital Investment on energy conservation equipment

Approx. capital investments on energy conservation equipment in FY 2022-23: NIL.
Total Energy Consumption and Energy Consumption per unit of production as per prescribed Form -A: Mot
given as the Company Is not covered under the list of specified Industries.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

Effarts made towards technology absorption:

More Scientific Research carried out for designing and developing high efficiency refrigeration and air
conditioning compressor.

Further research carried out for improving metallurgy as per international standards to minimize casting
defacts,

Further designing and manufacturing of import substitute products as well as energy efficient indigenous
products.

Emphasis laid on further development of testing systems, procedures and facilities for improving product
quality, safety and performance & its actual user for testing equipment’s.

Mare impravement of existing products bath in terms of improving design and components to achieve
greater efficiency at a lower cost.

The Company uses software from M/s Heat Transfer Research, Inc, USA ("HTRI') to upgrade its design &
develppment of various heat-exchanges for different refrigerants.

To design custom bullt for India (rural & urban) for the retail and post-harvest cold chain system.
Ventilation for modified and controlled atmosphere cold room.
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(i} Benefits derived, like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution

The benefits include improvernent in design, increase in efficiency, decrease in capital and running costs,
lesser power consumption and lower maintenance/ down- time costs.
Expenditure on Research and Development (Rs. in Lakhs)
(a) Capital
(b} Recurring
* Revenue ; 330.29
* Amortization of Intangible Assets

* Depreciation

Total ] 330.29

Total R & D Expenditure as % of total turnover

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo-
The Foreign Exchange earnings of the Company amount to Rs. 163918 (in Lakhs) from export sales
whereas the outgo has been Rs. 5031.26 (in lakhs) on account of purchase of raw-materials and capital
poods, commission, foreign travel, rovalty. During the financial year 2022-23, Rs. 3.60 (in Lakhs) was paid
as dividend to a non-resident shareholder, The Company has developed the new category of comprassors
for the export market,

ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT:

SEBI wide its circular CIR/CFD/CMD/27/2019 dated Bth February, 2019, has made it compulsory for all listed
entities to ensure an additional check by the Practicing Company Secretary (PCS), on compliance of all applicable
SEBI Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued there under, conseguent to which, the PCS shall submit a report
Annual Secretarial Compliance Report to the listed entity. Pursuant to the aforementioned SEBI Circular the Annual
Secretarial Compliance Report as submitted by M/s Adit Agarwal & Associates, Company Secretaries was filed with
the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India where the equity shares of the Company are listed.

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

As per the SEBI (LODR) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), the Reconciliation of Share Capital
Audit is undertaken by M/s Aditi Agarwal & Associates, Company Secretaries on Quarterly basis. The audit is aimed
at reconciliation of total shares held in COSL, NSDL and In physical form with the admitted, issued and listed capital
of the Company. The Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Reports as submitted by the Auditor on quarterly basis
were filed with the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSEI), where the equity shares of the Company
are listed,

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual working
and associating with the company, through various interventions and practices. The Company always endeavors to
create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.
In view of the same, your Company has in place a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace, This
policy is in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace [Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees, whether permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees are
covered under this Policy,

As per the said Policy your Directors have constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to redress the complaints
received regarding sexual harassment, which currently comprises of the following persons:

1. Mrs. Krishna Chhabra, Presiding Officer
2. Ms. Aditi Gupta, Independent Member
3. Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Katoch , Member
4, M. Amit Singh Tomar , Member

During the relevant Financial Year, an Internal Complaints Committes Meeting has been held on 200 Day of May
2022 and 3™ day of January 2023 and attended by the following persons:
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Mrs. Krishna Chhabra, Presiding Officer
M=, Aditi Gupta, Independent Member
Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Katoch, Member
Mr. Amit Singh Tamar, Member

il ool oo

There were no complaints received till date and all compliances related to Prevention of Sexual Harrassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 were duly adhered in time by the Company.
Therefore, the meeting was concluded,

Also, the Annual Report for the year December 31, 2022 under Section 21 of Sexual Harassment of Waomen at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 was duly submitted [ filed by the Company.

There were no complaints reported under the Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 so the guestion of number of complaint disposed of during the
Financial Year or the number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year does not arise,

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE HUMAN IMMUNODEFICIENCY VIRUS AND ACQUIRED IMMUNE DEFICIENCY SYNDROME
(PREVENTION AND CONTROL) ACT, 2017.

The Human Immunodeficiency Virus and Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (Prevention and Control) Act,
2017 has been notified by the Central Government on September 10, 2018, During the period under review (i.e
fram April 01, 2022 dll March 31, 2023, no complaints were received during the relevant period.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company is fully compliant with the applicable Secretarial Standards {55) viz. 55-1 & 55-2 and 55-2 on Meetings
of the Board of Directors, General Meetings and Dividend respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is essential to success and is an integral part of our culture. While we need to accept a
level of risk in achieving our goals, sound risk management helps us to make the most of each business
opportunity, and enables us to be resilient and respond decisively to the changing environment,

Qur approach to risk management assists us in identfying risks early and addressing them in ways that manage
uncertainties, minimize potential hazards, and maximize opportunities for the good of all our stakeholders
including shareholders, customers, suppliers, regulators and employees. Risks can be broadly classified as
Strategic, Operational, Financial, and Legal/Regulatory.

Alsa, in pursuance to the Risk Management approach during the scenario of COVID -19, the Company had adopted
all the appropriate measures, for sanitization, work from home facility, also, implementation of the Lockdown or
arrangement for work with engaging limited persons for ensuring the safety and health of all the employees,
customers, suppliers.

Also, for the proper sanitization, and safe working environment, the Company, has taken appropriate measures, as
per the government guidelines, for the health and safety.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESFONSIBILITY {CSR)

The committee on Corporate Social Responsibility was constituted on May 09, 2014 and thereby formulated and
approved the CSR Policy for the Company indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, in pursuant
to Section 135 (1) of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibilities Policy)
Rules, 2014. The C5R policy updated on March 20, 2021 has been hosted at the website of the Company lLe.
www_frickweb.com. This includes the full list of projects/activities/programmes proposed to be undertaken by the
company. The CSR Committee has been entrusted with the prime responsibility of recommending to the Board and
monitaring the implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the amount to be spent on
CSH activities.

The Company is committed to discharge its social responsibility as a good corporate citizen. During the year, the
Company has undertaken the C5R activities and complied with all the provisions of Section 135 in accordance with
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the Companies Act, 2013. The meeting of the CSR committee was held on March 14, 2023 in order to identify,
evaluate and recommend to the Board of Directors of the Company, the amount of expenditure / contribution to
notified funds / organizations with respect to the activities referred to in Clause (B) of sub-section (3) to Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as in terms of the provisions contained in by Rule 7 of the Companies [Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, During the Financial Year 2022-23 the minimum amount of expenditure
required to be done by the Company, on CSR activities is Rs, 44,31,842/- approx, (i.e. atleast 2% of the average net
profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding Financial Years) which has been calculated in
accordance with the Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. In view of above, the Committes in its Meeting held
on March 14, 2023 has discussed with regard to the challenges being faced by the public at large for the Oxygen
during Covid waves which recccur year-by-year, hence, it was duly proposed by the committee members to allocate
the CSR funds towards donation and commissioning of PSA Oxygen Plant amounting upto INR 56 Lacs approx
alongwith promotion of Education amounting to INR 1 Lacs, wherein the total amount of C5R expenditure was
incurred till March 31, 2023 amounting to INR 49,65,372/-. In view of above, the members of the Board considered
and ratified the amount of spending/expenditure/allocation done tll 31-03-2023 towards C3R activities pertaining
to Financial Year 2022-23 and directed to carry forward the surplus/excess expenditure as spent relating to the (SR
activities (i.e. INR 49,569,372 - INR 44,31,842 = INR 5,37,530) towards utilization of CSR expenditure in the next
Financial Year i.e. 2023-2024.

The details of C3R activities including the details of expenditure & C5K Committee are provided in the Annexure-B
VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company already has put in place a policy to prehibit managerial personnel from taking adverse personnel
action, employees disclosing in good faith, alleged wrongful conduct on matters of public concern involving viclation
of any law, mismanagement, and misappropriation of public funds, among others. Employees can raise concerns
regarding any discrimination, harassment, victimization, any other unfair practice being adopted against them or
any instances of fraud by or against your Company. Employees aware of any alleged wrongful conduct are
encouraged to make a disclosure to the Audit Committee, No personnel of the Company were denied access to the
Audit Committee.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

Mo other material changes except as mentioned in this Report and commitments affecting the Financial position of
the Company have occurred between April 01, 2023 and the date on which this Report has been signed.

LISTING OF SHARES

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited, Series : BE

Vibgyor Towers, 4th floor, Plot Ne € 62, Symbol : FRICKINDIA

G - Block, Opp. Trident Hotel, Bandra Face Value (INR} : 10.00

Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Industry : INDUSTRIAL ENGINEERING
Murmbai- 400 098, India. ISIN : INE4S9C0O1012

Telephone : +91 22 6112 9000

Fax 491 22 2654 4000

https:/fwww.mseiinfindex.aspx

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

Internal Contral Culture is pervasive in the Company. The Company has a comprehensive Internal Control System
for all the major processes to ensure reliability of Financlal Reporting, timely feedback on achievement of
operational and strategic goals, compliance with policies, procedures, laws and regulations, safeguarding of assets
and economical and efficient use of resources, The Internal Control system is basically covers the area of ERP
system for Accounting control, Compliance Audit of units on regular interval of time by the Internal Auditors, The
Internal Audit department also assesses opportunities for improvement in business processes, systems and controls
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, provides recommendations, designed to add value to the organization and follows up on the implementation of
corrective actions and improvements in business processes after review by the Audit Committee,

Comprehensive policies, guidelines and procedures are laid down for all business processes. The internal control
system has been designed to ensure that fnancial and other records are reliable for preparing financial and other
statements and for maintaining accountability of assets.

REGULATORY ORDERS

The details of the significant and material orders/directions passed by the Regulators or Courts ar Tribunals are
furnished under the Auditors’ Report provided by the Statutory Auditor of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL GOVERMANCE (ESG) POLICY/BUSINESS RESPOSIBILTY & SUSTAINABILTY REPORTING
POLICY

Frick India Limited is the largest equipment manufacturing company and turnkey solution provider for all Industrial
Refrigeration Applications

FRICK INDIA LIMITED was incorporated as a public limited company in 1962, Now the company has diversified and

developed into one of the front ranking companies and its equipment is rated amongst the world's best.

It provide Energy efficient & Environment Friendly refrigeration solutions, fully supporting te "Make in India"
program. Mow a front-ranking company, Frick India has been adapting to new technologies and is offering the
customer the energy efficient latest systems for all Industrial refrigeration applications. Keeping this in view new
products / equipment have been brought in and existing one's upgraded as per requirement prevalling in the
Industry. The Company can also provide on line Total Energy Management System (TEMS) for almost all industrial
refrigeration applications.

It has started manufacturing screw comprassors since 2000-01 with testing facility as per 150 917: 1989(E)
standards. The rotors are being supplied by M/s Holroyd of UK. Frick India also packages Screw Compressors using
blocks from MYCOM lapan. The Company has wide range of High Speed Reciprocating Compressors, Besides
compressors, Frick India has a whole range of Refrigeration equipment including Product coolers, Condensers, Heat
Recovery System, Pressure Vessels (ASME) and electrical & automation systems.

Frick India also installs turnkey projects and wses their 50 years' experience in Industrial Refrigeration Comprassor
manufacturing in good stead to give energy efficient and reliable Refrigeration systems in India and 50 other
countries across the world.

The main products of the Company are:

Rotary Twin Screw Compressar Blocks

High Speed Reciprocating Compressors

Frigid Coils 'S' Series (Stainless Steel Tubes & Aluminum Fins)

Frigid Coils "Prime" Series (Stainless Steel Tubes & Aluminum Fins)

Frick India Microtech System [Automation System For The Refrigeration Plants)
Rotary Twin Screw Compressor Packages

High Speed Two Stage Compound Reciprocating Compressor

Frigid Colils "A" Serles (Aluminum Tubes & Aluminum Fins)

Liquid Overfeed System

Evaporative Condensers

By being a Listed Public entity, the Company has clearly articulated its intent of being an Admirable, Inspirational
and Sustainable institution, Through its governance practices, the Company aims to conduct business in an ethical
manner. The core values of Pride, Integrity, Discipline and Ambition are embedded into the Company’s working
culture. These values guide the decision-making process, thus enabling all the employees to take ownership and
responsibility for their individual actions,

Erwironmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) has gained increasing attention over the past few years. ESG processes
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and procedures focus on non-financial performance indicators that address a Company’s approach towards
responsible investment, sustainability, its impact on society and the environment, as well as other ethical and
corporate governance considerations.

The Board approved the policy on introduction of a regulatory framework for ESG in the Indian securities market,
and related proposals.

ESG Vision

To be an environmentally and socially responsible financial institution built on the foundation of “Assurance’,
focused on generating sustainable long-term value for all our stakeholders.

ESG Goals

+ Profitability with ethical, environmental and social responsibility.
- Mainstream ESG practices into business, operations and value chain
- Achieve best in class ESG ratings

The ESG Paolicy (“the Policy”) of the Company is attached to this report as Annexure - . It proposes to act as a
guiding framework to manage the Company’s environmental, social and governance impacts and risks as well as
enable responsible financing oriented towards long-term value creation,

Further the Company has also approved the following policies

*  Annual Performance Management Policy

#  Grievance Redressal Policy & Guidelines

= Diversity, Equity & Inclusion [DEI} Policy Guidelines

= Discrimination Free Waorkplace Policy & Guidelines

+  Safe & Harassment Free Workplace Policy & Guidelines

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, Management Discussion
& Analysis is annexed as part of this report separately as Annexure—C.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The report on Corporate Governance along with the Certificate regarding the Compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 is
annexed and forms part of this Annual Report as Annexure —D,

The Company is commitied to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the
Corporate Governance requirements as set out by SEBL. The regquisite Certificate from M/s Aditi Agarwal &
Assoclates, Company Secretaries [COP 10512, confirming compliance with the condittons of Corporate
Governance as stipulated under the aforesaid SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 is annexed and forms part of this Annual Report as Annexure —E,

The Board has also evolved and adopted a Code of Conduct based on the principles of good Corporate Governance
and best management practices that are followed globally. The Code is available on your Company’s wehsite,
wiwwy. frickweb.com,

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 is attached to the Balance Sheet,
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The statement of Disclosure of Remuneration as reguired under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5{1) of Companies [Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial personnel) 2014 forms an integral part of
this report. However, as per the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Reports are
being sent to the Members of the Company excluding the statement of particulars of employees under Rule 5(2) of
the Rules. Any Member interested in obtaining a2 copy of such statement may write to the Director (Finance &
Taxation) and C.F.O. of the Company, at the registered office of the Company. In accordance with the
requirements of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 (2) of Companies {Appointment and
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Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) the details regarding the employees and their remuneration is provided
under Annexure —F.

EMPLOYEES

The Company follows pragmatic methods towards human resource retention and development. The human skill
development part is taken care of through various training programs as organized from time to time. The training
programs are designed in a systematic manner after identifying an individual's training needs. Cutting across the
organizational hierarchy, training sessions are held for promoting team spirit and for addressing training needs.
The motivation part is taken care of through empowerment and ensuring healthy working environment, The
remuneration system of the Company is designed in a manner to promote talent within the Company. The
Company also endeavors to ensure that its different functions are adequately manned. Industrial relations
continued to be cordial, during the year. Total employees on the rolls of the Company, as on March 31, 2023 were
725 compare to 656 last year.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors would like to express their sincere thanks to the Shareholders & Investors of the Company
for the trust reposed on us over the past several years. Your Board of Directors would also like to place on record
their sincere appreciation for the wholehearted support and contributions made by all the employees of the
Company as well as customers, suppliers, bankers and other authorities, The Directors also thank the Government
of various Countries, Government of India, State Governments in India and concerned Government Departments /
Agencies for their co-operation.

For AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Date: May 24, 2023 FRICK INDIA LIMITED
Place: New Delhi {lasmohan Singh) {Ramesh Chandra Jain)
Managing Director Director

00383412 00038529
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Form No. AOC-2

{Pursuant to clouse (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8{2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length
transactions under third proviso thereto

1,

(a)
(b)

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
[NOT APPLICABLE]

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

{c)  Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any
le) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions
(f] date(s) of approval by the Board

(g} Amount paid as advances, if any:
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to

sechion 188

{a) MNamels) of the related party and nature of relationship

Mr. Jasmohan Singh, Managing Director of Frick India Limited, is the Non-Executive Director as well as

the Member in the under mentioned related parties, respectively.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

sl Name of the Companies Date of Authorised | Paid up | Nature of | Share- Date on
MNo. | /Bodies Corporate/ Incorporati | Equity Equity | interest or | holding which

Firms/ Association of an Share Share concern/ interest or

Individuals Capital [Rs. | Capital | change in concern

in Lakhs) {Rs. in | interest or arose
Lakhs) concern changﬂd

Walco Engineering 31-08-1973 | 40.00 12.00 MNon- 12.50% 01-10-1986
1 Limited Executive

U742100L1973PLCO0BED Director

5
5 Freezeking Industries 14-06-1966 | 15.00 12.37 MNon- 12.50% 01-10-1986

Private Limited Executive

U74899DL1966PTCO0461 Director

1

Ess Thermofoam 11-11-1977 5.00 1.00 Member 12.48% 01-10-1986
3 ; s

Industries Private Limited

U74899DL1977PTCOORTS

a

M 5 Kold Hold Industries | 09-06-1978 | 15.00 13.87 Mon- 12.50% 01-10-1986
4 Private Limited Executive

U748990L1978PTCOO205 Director

]

Transfrig India Limited 19-11-1980 | 100.00 5.00 Member 12.50% 19-11-1550
2 LS1SMDL1930PLC0AZ1]

a

Snow Valley Foods 08-02-1995 | 300.00 501 Member 0.04% 14-08-2000
& LtdU15114HP1995PLCOL

5772
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Ms. Jasleen Kaur Queenie Singh, Non-executive Director of Frick India Limited, is Member as well as Director

in the under mentioned related parties, respectively.

sl Name of the Companies / Date of Authorise | Paid up | Nature of Share- Date on
MNo. Bodies Corporate/ Firms/ Incorporat | d Equity Equity interest or | holding which
Association of Individuals ion Share Share concern/ interest or
Capital Capital change in concern
(Rs. in (Rs. in interest or arose /
Lakhs) Lakhs) COnCern changed
1 Walco Engineering Limited | 31-08- 40.00 12.00 Member 12.50% 01-10-1986
U742100L1973PLCO0GE0S 1573
2 Freezeking Industries 14-06- 15.00 12.37 Member 12.50% 01-10-1986
Private Limited 1966
U748990L1966PTCO04611
3 EssThermofoam Industries 11-11- 5.00 1.00 Wember 12.48% 01-10-1986
Private Limited 1977
U748890L1977PTCOOBY84
4 M 5 Kold Hold Industries 09-06- 15.00 13.87 Member 12.50% 01-10-1986
Private Limited 1978
U74899DL1978PTCO0S056
5 Transfrig India Limited 19-11- 100.00 5.00 Member 12.50% 18-11-1990
U519090L1990PLCO42118 1950
& Beauty By Bie Private 22-01- 2.02 1.09 Director —- 22-01-2022
Limited 2021
U24299MH2021PTC353984
7 Indian Refrigeration Indus - 15-02- 12.75 12.75 Partner 12.50% 28-06-2019
tries [Partnership) 19592

Mes. Gurleen Kaur, Non-executive Director of Frick India Limited, is Member in the under mentioned related parties,

respectively,

sk Name of the Companies [ Date of Authorise | Paid up | Nature of Share- Date on
Mo. | Bodies Corporate/ Firms/ | Incorporat | d Equity Equity interest or | holding which
Association of Individuals ion Share Share concern/ interest or
Capital Capital change in concern
(Rs. in {Rs. in interest or arose /[
Lakhs) Lakhs) concern changed
1 Walco Engineering Limited 31-08- 40.00 12.00 hember 12.50% 01-10-1986
U74210001973PLCODGEDS 1573
2 Freezeking Industries 14-06- 15.00 12.37 Member 12.50% 01-10-1986
Private Limited 1966
U7489901L1966PTCO04611
3 EssThermofoam Industries 11-11- 5.00 1.00 Member 12.48% 01-10-1986
Private Limited 1977
U748990L1977PTCOOBYRA
4 M 5 Kaold Hold Industries 09-06- 15.00 13.87 Member 12.50% 01-10-1986
Private Limited 1978
L7489900L1978PTCO09056
5 Transfrig India Limited 19-11- 100.00 5.00 Member 12.50% 19-11-1990
U51909DL1990PLCO42118 1950
5] Indian Refrigeration Indus - | 15-02- 12.75 12.75 Partner 12.50% 28-06-2019
tries (Partnership) 1892
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(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
Purchase / Sale of manufactured products, at arm'’s length price under the authorized purchase orders /
sales orders issued under the sanctioned limits approved by the Board of Directors.

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions
As per the terms and conditions of the purchase orders / sales orders that have been executed, at arm’s
length price, under the approval from the Board.

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
As per the terms and conditions of the purchase orders / sales orders, with respective related parties
restricted to the aggregate value of transactions, as approved by the Board of Directors for each such
related parties, mentioned in the table furnished below.

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:
Meeting of the Board of Directors held on February 11, 2022.

a. Period of Approval : April 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023
(Rs. In Lakhs)

5L No. Mame of the Related Party Limit for the Amount w.r.t. Purchase, sale,

service, guarantee and service received.

T M/s. Freezeking Industries Private Limited 200

(being a Private entity)

{f) Amount paid as advances, if any:
As per the terms and conditions of the purchase orders / sales orders the outstanding balances were
settled.

For AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Date: May 24, 2023 FRICK INDIA LIMITED

Place: New Delhi

{Jasmaohan Singh) {(Ramesh Chandra Jain)
Managing Director Director
00383412 00038529
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AMNNEXURE “B" TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
Disclosures on C.5.R. Activities

1. A brief outline on the CSR policy of the Company: At Frick India Limited, business success is not just about
profits and shareholder returns. We believe in pursuing wider socio-economic and cultural objectives and
have always endeavored ta not just live up to it, but to try and exceed the expectations of the communities in
which we operate. The definition and scope of corporate responsibility is quite vast. Terms like corporate
responsibility, corporate social responsibility, sustainable development, corporate philanthropy, corporate
citizenship, corporate consciousness, responsible business etc. are used interchangeably. Now, the investors
and shareholders are no longer the only stakeholders in the business, Business draws on resources both
natural and social from the society and planet and provides products and services to the saciety, It forms an
integral part of the society and is responsible and accountable to a wide range of stakeholders i.e. customers,
employaes, supply chain, nature, environment, regulatory bodies etc. With the emergence of corporations
and conglomerates, the pressure on business on corporate governance, ethics, values and disclosures have
increased. Along with regulatory frameworks a number of voluntary frameworks and guidelines require
businesses to disclose the manner in which the business is being conducted. In India, the Companies Act,
2013 mandates Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities to be undertaken by companies meeting the
criteria specified in the Act

Key features of the C5R Policy areas under:

1) The broad guiding principles for selection of C5R activities include needs assessment, if required, programmes
identified/adopted will be adaptive and flexible to meet the changing dynamics with focus on long term
sustained impact rather than one-time impact or requiring continuous intervention.

2) The implementaton of the identified CSR activities shall be carried out either directly by the Company and/or
through an implementing agency.

3) A robust monitaring mechanism is in place to ensure that the CSR projects/ programs are undertaken effectively
in accordance with the approval granted and fully in compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.
Monitoring of CSR activities is achieved through:

a. Periodic assessment of key projects
b. Impact assessment with key indicators in our area of operations (if any)
c. Regular review by CSR Committee

4) The Committee will place for the Board's approval, an annual action plan delineating the C5R Programmes to be
carried out during the financial year and the succeeding years in the case of Ongoing Projects along with the
specified budgets thereof

i. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. |DIN Name of Director Designation / Number of Number of
No. Nature of meetings of meetings of
Directorship CSR CSR Committee

Committee attended
held during during the year

the year
1, 00038529 | Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain Chairman 1 1
2 00383412 | Mr. Jasmohan Singh Member 1 1

3, 05270533 | Ms, Gurleen Kaur Member 1 1

£



Frick India Limited

il. Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and C5R projects as approved by the board are disclosed on the
website of the company: www.frickweb.com

ili. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3} of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014: Not Applicable

5) Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Not

Applicable
5l. Financial Year Amount available for set-off Amount required to be set-off for the
No. from preceding financial years financial year, if any (in Rs)
{in Rs)
1 = =
TOTAL

6) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):
2019-20: INR 20,00,72,941.24
2020-21: INR 23,78,58,375.11
2021-22: INR 22 ,68,45,072.00
Total :INR 66,47,76,388.35
Average Net Profit: INR 22,15,92,129.45/-
7) (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 44,31,842.589/-
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL
{c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 44,31,842 589/-

4) (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Spent for the

Financial Year. (in Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Rs.) to Unspent CSR Accountas | Schedule VI as per second proviso to section 135(5).

per section 135(6).

Amount. | Date of Mame of Amount. Date of transfer.
transfer. the
Fund

44,31,842.589/- MA MIL MA MIL MA
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(b} Details of C5R amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not Applicable

(1} i2) 13 (4) (5] (6] (7 (8] {9} {10} {11}
5l. MName Item Local | Location of the | Project Ameoun | Amount Amount Mode Mode of
MNe. | of the from the | area | project. durat- t spent In transferr | of Implementation —
Project, | list of [Yes laar, allocat the ed to Imple Through Imple-
activ- Mo} ed current Unspent | m- menting Agency
ities in fina-ncial | CSR entatio
Sche: forthe | yoar(in | Account | m-
dule VI ) project | pey, for the Direct
to the State Dristr {in Rs.). project [Yes Namea CEH_
Act ict. as par M), “‘-‘5_"5"
Section '_"t'“;e
135(6) number
{in Rs.).
_._-_-—l—-_-_-_u_-_-_.
[ —
___._-—l—-—'_-_- _._-_.._-_._
(c} Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) 1z) 12 i4) () (8] {7 {8}
5l. Mame of the ftem Local Location of the project. Amount spent Mode Mode of implementation
Mo, s from the for the project of imple ~Through implementing
Project list of ot {in Rs.). mentatio
itﬁ:“iﬁ!! {Yes/No). n- BRENCY.
1]
schedule Direct {¥e
Mao).
Vil to the State. District. /No) Name. CSR registrati
Act. on number,
1. Delhi Sikh Schedul Yes Celhi Central 47.19,372 Yes -
Gurudwara e Vil Dialhi
hManageme o {iv]
nt
Committee
(DSGMC)
2. Children Schedul Yes Celhi South East 1,000,000 No Children | CSRODDOTT?
Reading e VIl i) Delhi Reading 85
Society to (i) Saciety
TOTAL 48,19,372

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: INR 1,50,000
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
(f) Tetal amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+Bc+8d+8:): INR 49,69,372/-

(g} Excess amount for set off, If any: —
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5l Ne. Particular Amount {in Rs.}

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 44,31,842
135(5)

(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 4969372

(i) Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii)-(i)] 5,37,530

{iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities MIL
of the previous financial years, if any

(v} Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [{iii}-{iv)] 5,37,530

9) {a} Details of Unspent C5R amount for the preceding three financial years: NONE

sl Preceding Amount Amount | Amount transferred to any fund specified Amount
Mo. | Financial transferred | spentin under Schedule Vil as per section 135(6), if rema-
Year. to Unspent | the any. ining
CSR reporting to be
Account Financial | Name Amount |Date of transfer spentin
under Year {in of the {in Rs) succee-
section Rs.). Fund ding
135 (B) financial
{in Rs.) years.
{in Rs.)
—
i _'_._._-_-_._._.___._-—‘
1 I e
—
TOT. — |

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year{s):

NOMNE
(1) 2} (3) {4) (5] (8] (7 (8] (2
sl Project | Name Financial Froject Total Amount Curmulativ | Status of the
Mo, 1o, af the Yearin duration. | amount spent on g amount | project -
Project. | which the allocated | the spent at Completed
project was for the project in | the end J/Ongoing.
commenced, project the of
{in Rs.). reporting reporting
Financial Financial
Year (in Year. (in
Rs). Rs.)
_.—-—'—'_'_'_'"._._._._
| —
TOTAL ________._._-—-—-—'—'—'_'_'_'_
..—-—'_'_'__'_-_._._._
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10) In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSR spent in the financial year. (asset - wise details)

{a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): NA
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: NA

{c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered,
their address etc.; NA

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the
capital asset): NA

Mo capital asset was created / acquired during FY 2022-23 through CSR spend.

11) Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section
135(5): Mot Applicable

Date: May 24, 2023 {Jasmohan Singh) {Ramesh Chandra Jain)
Place: New Delhi Managing Director Director

00283412 00038529
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ANNEXURE “C" TO THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

FRICK INDIA LIMITED was incorporated as a public limited company in 1962 in collaboration with Frick Company
USA, one of the world's oldest and largest manufacturers of industrial refrigeration & air-conditioning equipment,
Frick India is now independent and has diversified and developed into one of the top-ranking companies and its
equipment is rated amongst the world’s best.

Today, Frick India Limited is the largest equipment manufacturer and turnkey solution provider for Industrial
refrigeration in India,

The Global Refrigeration Compressar market is expected to grow at a CAGR of 4.5% from 2021 to 2026, driven by
the increasing demand for refrigeration systems in all over the word. The Company also installs turnkey projects
and uses their 62 years of experience in industrial refrigeration compressor manufacturing in good stead to give
energy efficient and reliable refrigeration systems in India and 50 other countries across the world. Its
manufacturing facilities are located at Faridabad (Haryana), an industrial township in the periphery of the national
capital & are spread over a 22 acre multi-block complex.

The main customer base of the Frick India is dairy industry and food processing industry. Frick India has unmatched
advantage of providing a single source responsibility for turnkey refrigeration and air-conditioning systems
covering design, manufacture, packaging, installation and service to standard specifications as well as custom-built
to meel customers’ speclal requirements, With collaboration and technologies from LK., Japan, U.5.A. and
Europe, Frick India also provides on line Frick Energy Management System (FEMS) for almost all Industrial
Refrigeration Applications. The Company is presently manufacturing a lot of eguipment like various types of
Compressors, and packages Condensers, Air handling units, Heat Exchanger & pressure vessels, Liguid re-
circulation pump, lce-making equipment, Plate & blast freezers, Packages chillers ete, used in Food [ Chemical
Industry.

Frick India Limited has been awarded as 'Excellence in Industrial Refrigeration and Turnkey Solutions," presented
by the Knowledge Chamber of Commerce and Industry of india. (March 18, 2023) and also as "Business Dynamos
of the Year in Refrigeration Industry” during THE INDIA 2022 55 TRILLION ECONOMY Summit at Hotel Lalit, New
Delli. This award was presented by Shri Bhanue Pratap Singh Verma, Hon'ble Minister, Ministry of MSME,
Government of India. Further, the Company has also been awarded "Business Sphere Gold Award” for best
Cormpany providing Turnkey Solutions for all Industrial Refrigeration Applications during Business Sphere National
Conclave & 17" Award Function presented by Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Balyan, Ministry of State for Animal Husbandry,
Dairying and Fisheries, Mr. Anil Aggarwal, Member of Parllament, Rajya Sabha and Mr. Manoj Tiwari, Member of
Parliament, Lok Sabha. Apart from this, Mr. lasmohan Singh, Managing Director of the Company, has been
awarded as “National Award CED of the Year 2021" at a function organized by “Social and Corporate Governance
Awards” at Taj Lands End, Mumbal,

Cold chains impart storage and distribution services for products that have to be maintained at a glven
temperature. India is currently the world's largest producer of milk, second largest producer of fruits and
vegetables and has a substantial production of marine, meat and poultry products. Most of these products are
temperature sensitive and require specific temperature ranges 1o be stored and transported. This has resulted in
the establishment of a very large cald chain infrastructure in the country.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The Magnetic Refrigeration Market is expected to be commercialized by 2022 at USD 4 million, and it is expected
to grow at a CAGR of 105.4 % from 2022 to 2027 to reach USD 165 million by 2027. The Indian cold chain market
reached a value of nearly INR 1,678.79 billion in 2022. The Industry is further expected to grow at a CAGR of 14.3%
over the forecast period of 2023-2028 to attain a value of INR 3,742.98 billion by 2028. India’s cold storage
capacity is likely to reach 40.7 millien metric tonnes by 2023, rising 8.2% from 2020, as per Colliers’ latest report,
oppartunities in Indian cold chain assets, Also 75% of the cold storage facility are suitable only for storing single
commodities, mainly potatoes. The surge in online grocery, processed foods and pharmaceuticals sales have
opened up ample opportunities for developers and third-party logistics players to develop mult-purpose cold
chain facilities in India. The Company is focusing in increasing its sales in domestic as well as Export,
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Currently, India has about 7,129 cold storage facilities with about 32 million metric tonnes capacity and about
10,000 actively refrigerated vehicles, most of which are operated by small cold storage and/or transport service
providers. Cold storage industry annually grows by 12-15 per cent in bulk storage capacity, As consumer preference
and habits for food ranging from vegetables, fruits and eatables, cold storage would combine to be grown. We see
expansion of frozen vegetable capacity as major difference prevailed in season and off season price. Frick India
equipment and application are widely used in food related refrigeration applications, Frick India can produce
customized refrigeration plants for:

Pre-Cooling (98% RH)

Controlled/ Modified Atmosphere Cold Storages
Cold Stores for Fruits & Vegetables

Ripening Rooms

High Humid Ware Houses

IOF

Frozen Stores

Chilling Units

Distribution Rooms

Frick India Limited vide its products and manufacturing facilities at present has been serving following industries;

1. Dairies and Ice cream Industries
l. Foodand Agriculture Industries

. Beverages and Brewery Industries

V. Refrigeration System For Chemical & Pharmaceutical Industries
V. Refrigeration System For Meat Poultry & Sea Food Industry

VI, Air-Conditioning

Vil. Low Temperature Application

Organized retail is expected to be armongst the biggest drivers of the cold chain market in India. With the growth of
the arganized food retail, we expect consumers to get access to a very large variety of fresh fruits and vegetables,
dairy products, meat and poultry products and a number of other temperature sensitive commodities that
require cold chain storage and transportation. Most of the organized retail players have already acknowledged
that setting up of a strong cold chain infrastructure is a key step in efficiently managing their supply chains.

There has been a marked improvement in the consumer demand for processed foods, The Indian government has
also announced the intent of establishing several mega food parks. This augurs well for the development of the
cold chain industry in the country.

Due to Increasing risks and investments in grain crops, farmers are moving towards cultivation of fruits and
vegetables. Most of these crops require refrigeration and hence are expected to encourage the development of
cold storage facilities.

A number of healthcare products such as vaccines, biopharmaceuticals as well as clinical trial materials are heat
sensitive and must be stored at temperatures ranging from 29C - 8%C. With India’s vaccine, biopharmaceutical and
clinical trials market expected to grow at double digit growth rates, we expect a strong demand of efficient cold
chain facilities in the coming years.

The consumption of ready-to-eat products, beverages, and frozen food has increased considerably worldwide in
the recent years, which is further boosting the demand for commercial refrigeration equipment. Rising disposable
income, along with the increasing impact of western lifestyle has fueled the acceptance of such products among
the large middle-class consumers of developing countries. The changed food consumption trend is being supported
by rapid expansion of supermarkets, hypermarkets, and food and restaurant chains around the warld.

The increased number of such stores has also forced small grocery retailers and unorganized restaurants to
upgrade their infrastructure, with improved electronic appliances including commercial refrigeration equipment.
Frick India has been providing refrigeration solution to almost all the wital industries, related to Food and
Agriculture, Dairy Production, Meat, Fisheries and Livestack, Beverages and Breweries.

India ranks second largest in the world in production of fruits and second in vegetables, accounting roughly 10 and
15 per cent, respectively, of total global production. The estimated annual production of fruits and vegetables in




Frick India Limited

the country is about 130 million tonnes accounting to 18 per cent of our agricultural output, India have a strong and
dynamic food processing sector playing a vital role in diversifying the agricultural sector, improving value addition
opportunities and creating surplus food for agro-food products.

Major vegetables grown are Potato, Onion, Tomato, Cauliflower, Cabbage, Bean, etc. The major fruits grown in
India are Manges, Grapes, Apple, Apricots, Orange, Banana, Papaya, etc., accounts for 40 percent of the national
fruit production and India is one of the leading exporters of fresh table grapes to the glabal market. The changing
food habits are discernible. There has been a positive growth in ready serve beverages, fruit juices and pulps,
processed fruits and vegetables products and fruits, pickles and chutneys, etc.

Mearly one third of our horticultural produce, especially fruits and vegetables are wasted, mainly on account of
poor cold storage and other storage facilities. Wastage of fruits and vegetables due to poor post-harvest
management and lack of cold chain facilities have been estimated o cost up to Rs 500 billien annually. The country
also experiences wide fluctuations in prices of horticultural produce, particularly potatoes and onions. The cold
storages will help boost exports of agricultural and allied produce, marine produce etc.

Varipus scheme has also been implemented by NABARD/NCDC/NHB, National Horticulture Board towards
construction, expansion and modernization of cold storages for horticulture products, to promote setting up of cold
storages in the country for reducing post harvest losses.

The Government which subsidizes a major portion of the farmers’ costs in an effect to uplift them also loses money
in this wastage. Hence proper cold chain infrastructure is the need of the hour. Frick India proposes appropriate
technologies for Indian Cold Chain where high-value fruits and vegetables can be kept for longer periods thereby
adding some value for the farmers. Fresh and frozen fruits, vegetables are other perishable food commodities
which reguire a cold stream, right from harvesting to consumption, to maintain quality, nutritive value and hygienic
safety of the products. Any break in this cold-chain can cause heavy loss due to biological deterioration. The
Company has been providing refrigeration solution to almost all the vital industries, related to Food and
Agriculture, Dairy Production, Meat, Fisheries and Livestock, Beverages and Breweries, Chemical and
Pharmaceutical Industry etc.

Manufacturing has emerged as one of the high growth sectors in India. Prime Minister of India, Mr. Narendra
Madi, had launched the “Make in India® program to place India on the world map as a manufacturing hub and give
global recognition to the Indian economy. In the present scenario, owing to the necessity for boosting the
industrial strength of India, there are a lot of processes requiring refrigeration eguipments.

The expansion of organized food retall services, along with the increasing demand for fresh fruits and vegetables,
dairy products, meat and poultry items etc., represent some of the factors driving the Indian cold chain market.

PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

Ammonia is stll the refrigerant of choice for large cold storage facilities, Newly developed Liguid Ammonia
Hermetically Sealed Pump is performing well and has less power consumed also. It has been launched in bath
Mational and International market. Frick has installed vapour ammonia absorption system with agueous ammonia
for low temperature (Freezers) application working well with better COP and low steam consumption. Frick has
lzunched Glycol Floor Heating System for Cold storage and Frozen applications in the market.

Frick Screw Compressors as installed in the market are performing well, it saves 2 to 5% power than other
competitor’ compressors due to “No pump Technology” and “Variable V1" in the |atest market. Frick has
manufactured National biggest CI2 liquification equipments (650 TPD) with single unit installed which Is performing
well,

Frick is supplying "ASME" certified pressure vessels and heat exchangers in the international market also. The
specialty of Frick Reciprocating compressor is that it saves 1 to 3% of power consumption than others. Frick gas
cooled compressor s giving outstanding performance and is less in oil consumption {less than 10 ppm) with
coalescing oil separators.

Frick aluminum Air cooling units are spreads in the ammonia international markets giving good performance, less
power than 55 coils. Frick evaporative condensers are less water consumption with silent operation. Frick India has
developed PUF panel with different sizes for Cold Storage, Freezers & Air conditioning applications.

Frick India has been providing refrigeration solution to almost all the wital industries, related to Food and
Agriculture, Dairy Production, Meat, Fisheries and Livestock, Beverages and Breweries, Chemical and
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Fharmaceutical Industry etc.

The main products are:

Rotary Twin Screw Compressor Blocks

Rotary Twin Screw Compressor Packages

High Speed Reciprocating Compressars

Liguid Overfeed System

Evaporative Condensers

Twao Stage Compound Reciprocating Compressor

Frigid Colls 'S’ Series [Stainless Steel Tubes & Aluminum Fins)
Frigid Coils "A” Series (Aluminum Tubes & Aluminum Fins)

e ol e al ol e e al

RISK AND CONCERNS

In any business, risks and prospects are inseparable. Frick is a well-known entity and is also exposed to various risks
and uncertainties and has access to opportunities across its global presence.

The performance, future prospects and cash flow generation could be materially impacted by any of these risks or
opportunities. As a respensible management, the Company's principal endeavor is 1o maximize returns. The
Company continues to take all steps necessary to minimize its expenses through detailed studies and interaction
with experts. Further, there are constant review meeting at management leve! to discuss and analyze various near
term and long-term risk and formulate plans to mitigate the same.

Input Cost Risks

Risk: The key raw material consumed by the Company has been very volatile and sudden change can have an
atverse impact on the Company’s operating margins.,
Concern: The Company has many long-term contracts with its major OEM customer where the raw material cost

has been passed through.
Financial risks

Risk: Financial risks relates to the Company’s ability to meet its financial obligations and lessen the impact of
various factors like interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, credit rating ete. It also includes any risk to
servicing pension obligations and to financial ratios due to impairment.

Concern: Company is well positioned to service financial risk and facilitates its growth objectives. The Company has
adequate measures to deal with all types of financial risks.

Legal and Compliance risks

Risk: Legal and compliance risks refate to risks arising from outcome of legal proceedings, government action,
regulatery action, which could result in additional costs,

Concern: Company has ensured compliance of all laws applicable to the Company and effectively monitors through
efficient compliance management system.

QUTLOOK

The outlook for the Company for the coming years continues to be positive. Most of the customers have indicated
robust growth plans which augurs well for the growth of the Company. However, due to COVID-15 lasting impact
an the manufacturing and service sector, there are challenges with the supply chain, procurement of raw material,
and a slight slow-down in the demand of the products which the company has been overcoming now, also, due to
limitation of the labour workforca, as per the government guidelines, the manufacturing capabilities had recorded
some decrease in the production as compared to what the Company use to produce and sell in the normal
SCEnarios.

On the other hand Make-in-India, Mational Manufacturing Palicy (NMP), and Goods & Services Tax [GST)
implementation are expected to aid the growth of core sectors thus contributing to new demand for screw
compressors, initiatives pertinent to energy efficiency will drive the services market, The Company is confident of
capltalising on future growth opportunities driven by [ts strong capabllities and credentials, and Intends to
continue investing in marketing, brand building and new product development, as well as nurturing the current
areas of the business of the Company.
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The long-term outlook of the global refrigeration and air conditioning compressors market size is projected to
reach USD 15750 million by 2028, from USD 16630 million in 2021, at a CAGR of 2.5% during 2021-2028.

Introduction of sustainable compressors for commercial refrigeration application is a key trend identified in the
global refrigeration and air canditioning compressars markeat across the globe,

As per the estimates of national income release by the National Statistical Office (NSO} the growth in real GDP
during 2022-23 is likely to be estimated at 7.0 per cent as compared to 8.7 per cent in 2021-22. Real GVA at Basic
Real GDOP or GDP at Constant (2011-12) Prices in the year 2022-23 is estimated at 7157.60 lakh crore, as against the
Provisional Estimate of GDP for the year 2021-22 of 7147.36 |akh crore, released on 31st May, 2022, Estimates are
likely to undergo revisions due to various causes In due course, as per the release calendar,

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Following are the financials highlights of the company for the year ended March 31, 2023 on a comparable
consolidated basis.

o Total revenwe has registered an increase of 28.34% from Rs. 28771.80/- Lakhs fn 2021-22 to Rs.
36527.00/- Lakhs in 2022-23.

o Profit before tax (PBT) registered an increase by 76.11% from Rs. 2189.71/- Lakhs in 2021-22 to Rs.
3856.46/~ Lakhs in 2022-23.

o Profit after tax (PAT) registered on increase of 74.30% from Rs. 1636.34/~lakhs in 2021-22 to Rs. 2852.21/-
lakhs in 2022-23.

DETAILS OF CHANGES IN RETURN ON NETWORTH

Sr. No. | Particulars 2022-2023 2021-2022
L Met Worth (Rs. in lakhs) 23175.42 20363.98
2. Return on Net worth 12.31 8.03%

As per the above table return on net worth is increased by 4.28% for the year ended on 31% March 2023 in
comparison to the previous year ended on 31 March 2022.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS AS COMPARED TO IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS
FINANCIAL YEAR

As per the latest amendment as introduced by SEBI wvia SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirement)
{Amendment} Regulations, 2018 on May 09, 2018 effective from April 01, 2019, new sub-clause (i) has been
inserted in Clause | in Part B of Schedule V of SEBI{Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirement), Regulations, 2015
according to which the sted entity shall provide the details of significant changes (e, change of 25% or more as
vompared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios, along with the detailed explanations
thereof, including:

Ratios Financial Year 2022-2023 Financial Year 2021-2022 | Change from last year
Debtors Turnover Ratio 4.49 3.50 times Increased by 0.99 times
Inventory Turnover Ratio 4.80 5.59 times reduced by 0.79 times
Interest Coverage Ratfio 95.16 43.03 times Increased by 52.13 times
Current Ratio 2.67 2.59 times Increased by 08 times
Debt Equity Ratio 0.07 0.08 times Reduced by .01 times
Dperating Profit Margin {%) 10. 74% 8.51% Increased by 2.23%
Met Profit Margin (%) 10.63% 7.81% Increased by 2.82 %

INTERNAL CONTROL 5YSTEMS AND THE ADEQUACY

The Company's internal financial control framework is commensurate with the size and operations of the business
and is in line with requirements of the regulations. Internal control systems have been a core focus for the
Company. The Company has lald down procedures and policies to guide the operations of the business. Effective/
adequate internal control systems are in place to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected against
unauthorized use and the transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. Such controls which are
subjected to periodical review also ensure efficiency of operations, accuracy and promptness of financial reporting
and compliance with all applicable laws and repgulation. The Company's internal control systems are routinely
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tested by the Management, Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors.
INTERNAL AUDIT

A regular Internal Audit System is also in place. Outside expertise is availed to supplement internal resources. The
Internal Audit Report along with management comments thereon is reviewed by the Audit Committee of the
Board comprising of Independent Directors which also monitors implementation of the suggestions. Further, the
Audit Committee regularly interacts with the Statutory Auditors about the adequacy of internal control systems
and seeks suggestions, if any.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATION FRONT INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
AND PERSONNEL

Caring for its people has always been the way of life in the Company as its people are always treated as most
valuable assets. Your Company has been continuously working to improve human resources skills, competencies
and capabilities in the Company, which is critical to achieve results as per our strategic business ambitions. The
Company has been successful in fostering a people-centric cohesive culture within the organization that has been
instrumental in creating its diverse pool of intellectual capital. The Company is focused and committed towards
empowering its employees and continues to embark upon several initiatives on this front.

The underlying rule of Company's policy towards human resource development is that competent and motivated
manpower is the most important factor in achieving business goals. The policies in this regard are evolved and
pursued to achieve this objective. Industrial relations remained cordial at all locations during the year. No working
hours was lost due to any labour dispute.

As on March 31, 2023, the total number of employees on the payroll of the Company as a whole was 725.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis may contain certain forward looking remarks within
the meaning of applicable Securities law and Regulations. Actual results may vary significantly from the forward
looking statements due to various risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include the effect of
economic and political risks within and outside India, volatility in interest rates, change in Government or
regulatory policies that may impact the Company’s business as well as its ability to implement the strategy. The
Company does not undertake to update these statements.

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has followed the guidelines of accounting standards as mandated by the Central Government in
preparation of its financial statements.

For AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Date: May 24, 2023 FRICK INDIA LIMITED
Place: New Delhi (Jasmohan Singh) (Ramesh Chandra Jain)
Managing Director Director

00383412 00038529
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ANNEXURE “D” TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[Pursuant to Schedule V{C) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations")]

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance at Frick India Limited takes care of overall well-being, sustainability and transparency of
the system and takes into account the stakeholders’ interest in every business decision. Corporate Gavernance is a
combination of voluntary practices and compliances of laws and regulations leading to effective control and
management of the Organization and its valuable resources through effective and transparent business conduct,
integrating communication, integrity and accountability towards its stakeholders.

On September 2, 2015, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) introduced the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, effective from December 1, 2015, replacing the erstwhile Listing
Agreement with the 5tock Exchange. The Company has promptly taken all necessary steps to implement the
revised norms of Corporate Governance. The Company understands that compliances of applicable legislations and
timely disclosures enhance the image of the Company as a good corporate citizen in the Country.

Frick India Limited has always believed in and followed the best business practices, and has been compliant with all
the laws, exercised fairness and integrity in all its dealings, thereby reiterated its commitment to enhancement of
stakeholders’ value. The Company has a defined set of guidelines for its internal governance based on business
ethics, legal compliance and professional conduct, The Company has been transparent in its accounting practices
and procedures, in framing and adhering to policies and guidelines, in insisting on responsibility and accountability
and by regular audit of its policies and procedures;

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS

a. COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS

The Company’'s Board comprises of an appropriate combination of Executive, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors as on 31st March, 2023 the Board has 6 Directors out of which one is Executive Director,
two are MNon-Executive Directors and three are Independent Directors who are persons of eminence with
experience in the fields of finance, taxation, trade and industry. Hence, the Board’'s composition is in line with the
Corporate Governance requirements. In terms of Regulation 17 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), at least 50% of the Board should
comprise of Non-Executive Independent Directors with at least one woman director, The Independent Directors
constituted 50% of the Board as on 31st March, 2023. The Company has two women directors aon the Board who
are holding offices as Non-Executive Directors.

b. DETAILS OF ATTENDANCE

Details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings and at the last year's Annual General Meeting with
particulars of their other Directorships and Chairman/Membership of Board Committees showing the position as
at 31st March, 2023 are given hereunder:

Number of board meetings and dates on which held during the Financial Year 2022-2023, Five (05) Board
Meetings were held:-
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Mame & DIN Date of Board Meeting { Attended : Yes/No)
17-05-2022 12-08-2022 14-11-2022 26-12-2022 13-02-2023

Mr. Jasmohan Singh, Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
DIN 00383412

Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain, Yes Yoo Yag Yes Yes
DIN 00038529

Ms. Jasleen Kaur Queenie Singh | No Mo Yes No MNo
DIN 05269698

Ms. Gurieen Kaur, Yes Yes Yes Yes =
DIN 05270533

Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Rac DIN 00433992

Mr. Divaker lagga, Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
DIN 05357922

The maximum time gap between two board meetngs was less than 120 days. Minutes of the mestings of all the
Board and Committees are circulated to all the Directors.

Table 1: Category of Directorships, Relationship with other Directors, Attendance record as on 31 March, 2023

MName & DIN Category of | Relationship with other | No. of Board Meetings | Whether

Directorships Directors of the Company | attended the

{During the year] last Annual
General
Held Attended Meeting

Mr. lasmohan Managing Brother of Ms. Gurleen 5 5 Yes
Singh, DIN Director Kaur & Ms, Jasleen Kaur
00383412 Queenie Singh
Mr. Ramesh MNon-Executive / | Mo Relation 5 5 Yes
Chandra lain, DIN Independent
00038529 Diractor
Ms. laslean Kaur Non-Executive Sistar of Mr. lasmohan 5 1 Yes
Queenie Singh, Director Singh & Ms. Gurleen
DIN 05269698 Kaur
Ms. Gurieen Kaur, Non-Executive Sister of Mr. Jasmohan Singh 5 5 Yes
DIN 05270533 Director & Ms, lasleen Kaur Queenie Singh
Mr. Govindarajula | Mon-Executive / | Mo Relation 5 5 Yes
Bhaskara Rao DIN Independent
00493992 Director
Mr. Divaker lagga, Non-Executive / | Mo Relation 3 5 Yes
DI 05357922 Independent

Director

DIRECTORSHIPS AND MEMBERSHIPS OF BOARD COMMITTEES
Table 2: Number of Directorships / Committee positions of Directors as on March 31, 2023

Directorships
No. of Memberships/
MName of Director In Listed In Unlisted In Private Chairmanships in Board
Companies Public limited Limited Committees

Companies Companies Member Chairman
Mr. lasmohan Singh 1 1 3 2 0
Ms. lasleen Kaur Queenie Singh 1 0 1 ] 0
Ms. Gurleen Kaur 1 0 1 1 0
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain 3 2 q 4 2
Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara 2 2 2 1 1
Rao
Mr. Divaker Jagga 1 0 1 2 0
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As per the recent Amendments introduced in PART C of Schedule V of SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reqguirement), Regulations, 2015
It is mandatory to provide the name of listed entity wherein the Board Members are directors along with the

category of Directorship.

sr. Name of Director | Name of Company in which Category of Company Category of
MNa. holds Directorship Listed / Unlisted Directarship
Public/Private Executive/Non
Executive/Independent
1 Mr. lasmohan Frick India Limited Listed Company Executive Director
Singh Walco En_EineerinE Limited Unlisted Public Company | Non-Executive Director
Freezeking Industries Private Private Company Mon-Executive Director
Limited
M 5 Kold Hold Industries Private Company Mon-Executive Director
Private Limited
Beauty By Bie Private Limited | Private Company Director
2 Ms. lzsleen Kaur Frick India Limited Listed Company Mon-Executive Director

Cueenie Singh

Beauty By Bie Private Limited

Private Company

Director

Ms. Gurleen Kaur

Frick India Limited

Listed Caompany

Mon-Executive Director

Mr. Ramesh
Chandra Jain

Frick India Limited

Listed Company

Independent Director

5. 1.5 Enterprise Limited

Listed Company

Independent Director

Minda Sai Limited

Lnlisted Public Company

Director

The Hi-tech robotic systemz Unlisted Public Company | Director
Limited
Titagarh Agrico Private Private Company Director
Limited
Indoi Systems Private Limited Private Company Director

Exotech Plastics Private
Limited

Private Company

MNon-Executive Director

Movus Hi-Tech Robotic
Systemz Private Limited

Private Company

Director

The Hi-Tech Gears Limited

Unlisted Public Company

Mon- Executive Director

Kamdhenu Limited

Listed Campany

Mon- Executive Director

5 Mr. Divaker lagga | Frick India Limited Listed Company Independent Director
Concept Tax Gaurdian Private Company Mon-Executive Director
India Private Limited

6 Mr. Frick India Limited Listed Company Independent Director

Govindarajula
Bhaskara Rao

Mars Finance and consultancy
services Private Limited

Private Coampany

Mon-Executive director

Table 3: Details of Equity Shares of the Company held by Non-Executive Directors as on March 31, 2023

Nama of Director Category of Directorship No. of Shares held
Ms. Jasleen Kaur Queenie Singh Mon-Executive Director 9835

Ms. Gurleen Kaur Non-Executive Director 3300

Mr, Rarmesh Chandra Jain Independent Director a

Mr. Divaker Jagga Independent Director [}

Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao Independent Director 1]

Mo director is @ member of more than 10 Beard Committees or Chairman of more than 5 Board Committeas across
all public limited companies where he/she is a Director. Further, no Independent Director serves as Independent
Director in more than 7 listed companies.
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Particulars about Director seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM are given in the
Annexure to the Notice,

The Company has received declarations on criteria of independence as prescribed in Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 16 (1) {b) and Regulation 25(8)of the Listing Regulations from the Directors of
the Company who have been classified as Independent Directors as on 31st March, 2023.

It is pertinent to note here that as per the annual evaluation of the Independent Directors it is opined by the Board
of directors that the independent Directors of the Company fulfill the conditions specified in Listing regulations and
are independent of the management,

CERTIFICATE FROM A COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE

As per the latest Amendment introduces in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 wia SEBHLODR){Amendment)
Regulations, 2018 a new clause has been inserted in the Schedule V PART C of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations in
adherence to which a Certificate from Ms. Aditi Gupta, a Practicing Company Secretary of M/s Aditi Agarwal &
Associates, Company Secretaries, certifying that none of the directors on the board of the Company have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of Companies by the Board/ Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The said Certificate is attached herewith as an Annexure-H to
the end of this Repaort.

€. APPOINTMENT AND TENURE

In terms of the applicable provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Ms. Gurleen Kaur,
Mon-Executive Director of the Company, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, has offered herself for re-appointment.

The Company would not have any upper age limit of retirement of Independent Directars from the Board and their
appointment and tenure will be poverned by the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.

d. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors meet at least once in a year, without the presence of Executive Directors or
Management representatives, The Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors last held was on March 14,
2023,

€. FORMAL LETTER OF APPOINTMENT TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The Company issues a formal letter of appointment to independent directors in the manner as provided in the

Companies Act, 2013. As per Regulation 46 (2] of Listing Regulations, the tarms and conditions of appointment of
independent directors are placed on the Company’s wehsite www. frickweb.com.

f. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMMES

The Independent Directors have been famillarized with the Company, their roles and responsibilities in the
Company, nature of the Industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company etc. During
2022-2023, independent directors were taken through various aspects of the Company’s business and operations,
With a view to familiarizing the Independent Directors with the Company's Operations, as required under
regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations, as well as to take the informed decision by the Independent Directors in
their separate meeting held on March 14, 2023, the Management of the Company conducted Familiarization
program before the commencement of the said meeting a copy has been posted on in the official website of the
Company www.frickweb.com.

E. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

Frick India Limited believes that Good Corporate Governance [s the key to the Conduct of Company's Business in a
transparent, reliable and vibrant manner. It is of paramount importance for any Company to create an atmosphere
of faith, integrity, accountability, responsibility and financial stability by adhering to commitment, ethical business
conduct, 3 high degree of transparency thereby unlocking the individual intellectual capabilities and enabling its
Board of Directors to canduct its duties under a moral authority, which ultimately leads to enhance legitimate
needs and value of the stakeholders. A copy of this code formulated in terms of Regulation 17 of the Regulations
has been posted at Company’s official website www. frickweb.com,
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h. CODEOF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has a comprehensive Code of Conduct for its Management, 5taff and Directors for prevention of
Insider Trading in compliance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The code lays down the
guidelines and procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing with the Shares of the
Company and cautioning them on the consequences of non-compliance. The pieces of the price sensitive
information are disseminated to the Stock Exchanges timely, adequately and promptly on continuous basis for
prevention of Insider Trading. The Company Secretary has been appeointed as Compliance Officer and is
responsible for adherence to Code for prevention of Insider Trading. A copy of the same has been posted at the
official website of the Company www . frickweb.com.

i. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the financial year 2022-2023, the Independent Directors met separately on 14" March, 2023 without the
presence of Non- Independent Directors and members of the management in compliance with Regulation 25 (3) of
the Listing Regulations and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, In the said meeting, the Independent
Directors inter-alia considered the following:
I Review of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whaole;
11 Assess the guality, guantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

2. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Commitiees play & crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been constituted
to deal with specific areas [ activities which concern the Company and need a closer review. The Board
Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined roles which are
considered to be performed by members of the Board, as a part of good governance practice. The Board
supervises the execution of its responsibilities by the Committees and is responsible for their action. The Chairman
of the respective Committee informs the Board about the summary of the discussions held in the Committee
Meetings. The minutes of the meetings of all Committees are placed before the Board for review. The Board
Committees can reguest special invitees to join the meeting, as appropriate.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Brief description of terms of reference

A gualified and independent Audit Committee has been set up by the Board in compliance with the requirements
of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, The role and terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are inter-alia as under:

This Committee of the Board was constituted In the year 2003, The Audit Committee inter-alia, ensures to the

Board of the existence of an effective internal control systems, During the year, five meetings of the Audit
Committee were held on May 17, 2022, August 12, 2022, November 14, 2022, December 26, 2022 and February
13, 2023, The Audit Committee consists of Four Members, ocut of which three are Non-executive Independent
Directors and one Executive Directar, All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate as defined in
Repulation 18 (1) of the Listing Regulations.

Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao is acting as the Chairman of the Audit Committee. He had expert knowledge in
banking and financial matters,

Table 4: COMPOSITION, NAME OF MEMBER & CHAIRPERSON, MEETING AND ATTENDANCE OF AUDIT
COMMITTEE AS ON 31 MARCH, 2023

Name of the Member Designation No of Meetings
Held Attended
Mr, Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao Chairman 5 5
Mr, Jasmohan Singh Member 5 5
Mr. Rarnesh Chandra Jain Member 5 5
Mr. Divaker Jagga Member 5 5
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The Audit Committee Meetings were attended by invitation by the Chief Financial Officer, Internal Auditor and the

Statutory Auditors. Mr. Amit Singh, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer acted as the Secretary to the
Committee,

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Brief Description of Terms of reference

The Remuneration Committee was constituted by the Board on 30.07.2005 and later on in the meeting of the
Board of Directors held on August 13, 2014 it was re-named as 'Nomination and Remuneration Committee’, in
terms of the provisions of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI Circular No.
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/2/2014 dated April 17, 2014. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met twice
during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023 on May 17 2022 and December 26, 2022. A copy of Nomination
and Remuneration Policy has been posted at the official website of the Company www.frickweb.com. Nomination
and Remuneration Committee consists of the following four Members, out of which three are Non-Executive
Independent Directors and one Executive Director.

Table 5: COMPOSITION, NAME OF MEMBER & CHAIRPERSON, MEETING AND ATTENDANCE OF NOMINATION &
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AS ON 31 MARCH, 2023

Name of the Member Designation No of Meetings
Held Attended
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain Chairman 2 2
Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao Member 2 2
Mr. Divaker Jagga Member 2 2
Ms Gurleen Kaur Member 2 2

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions of the Listing Regulations, the
Annual performance evaluation was carried out for 2022-23 by the Board in respect of its own performance, the
Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Momination and Remuneration,
Stakeholder Relationship and CSR Committees. A structured questionnaire covering various aspects of the Board's
functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and
performance of specific duties, obligations and governance was prepared based on the Guidance note issued by
SEBI vide circular no, CMD/CIR/P/2017/004 dated 05.01.2017. In terms of Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations, the
Board of Directors in its meeting held on June 08, 2021 and May 17, 2022 evaluated the performance of
Independent Directors in terms of criteria of performance evaluation as laid down by MNomination and
Remuneration Committee which covers the area relevant to their role as Independent Director in the Company.
During the Financial Year(s) 2021-22 and 2022-23, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the
Company was held respectively on March 29, 2022 and March 14, 2023 in terms of Regulation 25 of the Listing
Regulations.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual directors of the Board who were
evaluated on parameters such as guidance/ support to management outside Board/ Committee meetings, degree
of fulfillment of key responsibilities, effectiveness of meetings etc.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board except for the
Director being evaluated. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Pecuniary transactions with non-executive directors

During the year, there were no pecuniary transactions with any non-executive director of the Company. The
register of contracts is maintained by the Company under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, The register is
signed by all the directors present at the respective Board Meetings.

Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors

MNon-executive directors of the Company play a crucial role in the independent functioning of the Board. They bring
in an external perspective to decision-making, and provide leadership and strategic guidance while maintaining
objective judgment. They also oversee the corporate governance framework of the Company. As stated earlier, the
Momination and Remuneration Policy, inter alia, disclosing the criteria of making payments to directors, key
managerial personnel and employees is placed on the Company’'s website www.frickweb.com.

Remuneration policy:

Remuneration policy in the Company is designed to create a high performance culture, It enables the Company to
attract, retain and motivate employees to achieve results. Our business model promotes customer centricity and
requires employee mobility to address customers’ needs. The remuneration policy supports such mobility through
pay models that are compliant to local regulations. The Company remunerates its Managerial Personnel (Executive
Directors) by way of salary, perquisites, allowances, commission as per the terms approved by the shareholders
and within the limits as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013. The Non-executive Independent Directors are
paid sitting fees as decided by the Board from time to time and within the limits as laid down under the Companies
Act, 2013. In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Agreement and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the Company has the Policy on Momination &
Remuneration, approved by Board of Directors in their meeting held on February 11, 2016.

On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Company and approval by the Board of Directors, the
members of the Company in the 56th Annual General Meeting held on September 26, 2012 approved the revision
in terms and conditions of remuneration of Mr. Jasmohan Singh as the Managing Director of the Company for a
period of 2 (two) years with effect from April 1, 2019.

Further, in pursuance of the terms of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company and on the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and approval by the Board of Directors, the
members of the Company in the 58th Annual General Meeting held on September 18, 2021 approved the revision
in terms and condition of Mr. Jasmohan Singh as the Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 {three)
years with effect from April, 2021.

The details of remuneration of Directors for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 are given below (Rs. in Lakhs)

Name Salary Perquisites Commission Others Total
Mr. Jasmohan Singh 171.60 62.72 0.00 12.96 247.28

Managing Director

*Provident Fund of Rs. 12.96 Lakhs, Perqusits of Rs. 62.72 Lakhs and Remuneration of Rs. 171.60 aggregates to Rs.
247.28 Lakhs. Above appointment is contractual in nature.

No stock options were issued by the Company to its Directors / Employees.

Non-Executive Independent Directors

The non-executive directors are paid sitting fee for attending the Board /Committee Meetings. The sitting fees paid
during the Financial Year 2022 - 2023 are given below:
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Name of Director Sitting Fees (Rs. In Lakhs)
Mr. Ramesh Chandra lain q.90
Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao 7.15
Mir. Divaker Jagga 9.35
Total 26.40

STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the Regulations, the “Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee” constitutes of 4 (Four) Directors as members. The “Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee” has been empowered to consider and resolve the grievances of shareholders of the Company
including complaints related to transfer of shares, non- receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends
and other miscellaneous complaints.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Committee met four Smes on May 17, 2022, August 12, 2022, November
14, 2022 and February 13, 2023 the Committee took note of the status of requests received from the Shareholders
for Dematerialisation, Rematerialisation, non-receipt of Annual Report, non-receipt of declared dividend, Transfers
and Transmissions of Shares as on March 31, 2023,

All matters related to transfer/ transmission of shares and Investors’ grievances have been entrusted to the
Stakeholders’ Relationshio Committee comprising of the following:-

Table 6: Composition and attendance of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committes as on March 31, 2023

Name of the Member Designation No of Meetings
Held Attended
hr. Ramesh Chandra Jain Chairman 4 4
Ms, Gurleen Kaur Member 4 4
Mr. lasmahan Singh Member 4 4
Mr. Divaker Jagga Member 4 4

Mr. Amit Singh, Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the Committee Compliance Officer for complying
with the requirements of Securities laws.

a. [INVESTORS' COMPLAINTS RECEIVED AND RESOLVED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-2023

Investor Complaints MNo. of complaints received/resolved during 2022-23
Pending at the beginning of the year il
Recelved du;lng the year il
Disposed of during the year Mil
Remaining unresolved at the end of the year il

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE {“"CSR COMMITTEE")

In terms of provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 , the Corporate Social Responsibility Committes
("CSR Committee”) constitutes of following 3 (Three) Directors as members to monitor the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy of the Company as approved by the Board. During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Committee
met once on March 14, 2023, During the Financial Year 2022-23 the minimum amount of expenditure required to
be done by the Company, on C5R activities is Rs. 44,31,842.589/- approx. {Le. atleast 2% of the average net profits
of the Company made during the three immediately preceding Financial Years] which has been calculated in
accordance with the Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.The Committee in its Meeting held on March 14,
2023 has approved and recommended Rs, 44,31, 842,589/ approx. towards CSR Expenditure taking inte account
the proposals as received from various agencies engaged in C5R Activities.

Accordingly on March 14, 2023 the members of the C5R Committee had passed resolution for authorizing Mr.
Sharad Bhatnagar, Director (Finance & Taxation) & CFO and Mr. Amit Singh, Company Secretary of the Company
for analyzing the appropriate proposals received after March 14, 2023 on the basis of merits and on the basis

of CSR Policy and thereafter recommend to the Board towards carmmy forward of the surplus amount of expenditure
to the next FY 2023-24  as remained unspent during the FY 2022-2023.
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Table 7: Composition and attendance of CSR Committee as on March 31, 2023

Name of the Member Designation No of Meetings
Held Attended
hr. Ramesh Chandra Jain Chairman 1 1
Mr. Jasmohan Singh Member 1 1
Mz, Gurleen Kaur PMember 1 1
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

A. The previous three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) were held at the registered office of the Company at
21.5 KM, Main Mathura Road, Faridabad {Haryana) on the following dates:

Financial Year Date &Time
2019-20 26.09.2020 (at 11:00 AM)
2020-21 18.09.2021 {at 11; 00 AM)
2021-22 23.09.2022 (at 11:00 AM)

B. Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot —details of voting pattern - No special
resolutions were passed during 2022-23 through postal ballot.

C. Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise: N.A,

D. Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot: At present there is no
proposal to pass any special resolution through postal ballot.

E. Procedure for postal ballot: N.A.

EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS

Mo Extra-ordinary General Meeting was held during the previous Financial Year 2022-2023. Further, no Postal
Ballot Resolution was passed at the above AGMs,

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
The Company publishes Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual results as required under the Listing Regulations,

The results are normally published in the Newspapers, viz, The Financial Express (English) and the Hari Bhoomi
{Hindi), The results are also forwarded to the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited.

The notice of the AGM along with Annual Report is sent to the shareholders well in advance of the AGM,

The List of the notice is also published in the newspapers. In addition, the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India
Limited is notified of any important developments that may materially affect the working of the Company.

Disclosures with regard to shareholding pattern, change in major shareholding, and guarterly Reconciliation of
Share Capital Audit Report etc, are also sent to the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited as required under
various regulations,

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

The Board holds at least 4 meetings in a year and the gap between 2 meetings is not more than 120 days. The
Quarterly Financial Results are also subjected to Limited Audit Review by the Statutory Auditors. The AGM is
regularly held within & months from the date of the closure of the Financial Year.

DATE OF BOOK CLOSURE

The Register of Members and other Share Transfer Books will remain closed from Tuesday, September 13, 2023 to
Maonday, September 25, 2023 both days inclusive).

GENERAL SHAREOLDER INFORMATION
60" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The B0% AGM will be held on Monday, 25" day of September, 2023, at 11:00 AM., through Video
Conferencing/tdudio Visual Mode.
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Financial Year

Financial Year of the Company commences on 01st April and ends on 31st March. The respective Four Quarters of
the Company ends on 30th lune, 30th September, 31st December and 31st March for each Financial Year.

Dividend payment date

The Board in its meeting held on May 24, 2023 recommended a dividend of Rs. 4 per share (40%) for the year
2022-23, which would be distributed after approval of the same by the shareholders at the 60™ Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

Unclaimed dividends

All the shareholders who have not claimed/encashed their dividends in the last seven consecutive years from 2013
are reguested to claim the same. The concerned authorities are reguested to verify the details of their unclaimed
amounts, if any by writing to the Company’s Registrar before the same becoming due for transfer to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund of the Central Government ['IEPF').

Dividend and corresponding shares, as stated above, once transferred to the IEPF by the Company, may be claimed

only from the IEPF Authority by following the procedure prescribed under the |EPF Rules.

Mr, Amit Singh Tomar, Company Secretary is the Nodal Officer of the Company for the purpose of verification of
such claims.

Listing on Stock Exchanges and Stock Code

The Company has listed its 5,99,975 Equity Shares were listed on The Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited
(MSEl} w.e.f. December 31, 2015, vide their letter no. MSEI/LIST/SL/2015/6539, dated December 29, 2015 as well
as Circular no. MSEI/LIST/3690/2015 dated December 29, 2015 and stock code is FRICKINDIA.

The Annual Listing Fees for the year 2022-23 had been paid in advance to the aforesaid The Metropolitan Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

Credit Ratings

The details of the Credit rating for Financial Year 2022-23 assigned by the rating agency is provided below:

5.No. Instrument Description Rating Agency Rating Assigned
1 Bank Loan Facilities- Long Term CRISIL Limited CRISIL A/- Stable [Reaffirmed)
2 Bank Loan Facilities- Short Term CRISIL Limited CRISIL Al {Reaffirmed)
Market price data

Though the shares of the Company are listed with MSEl and are not traded among stakeholders hence market
price data is not available. As such to the best our information, no exchange guote is available for the Current Year.

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

M{s Link Intime India Private Limited is Share Transfer Agent for both De-mat & Share Registry work in terms of the
directions of SEBI. Shareholders are requested to send all their De-mat & Share transfer papers to the Share
Transfer Agent along with copy of the same to the Company.

The address of the Share Transfer Agent is:

M5 Link Intime India Pvt. Limited,

MNoble Heights, 1* Floor, NH-2,

C-1, Block LSC, Mear Savitri Market, lanakpuri, New Delhi-110058
Phone: 011-41410592/93/94. EmaillD :delhi@linkint me.co.in

The shareholders may also write to the Company at its registered office for any grievances [ share transfer related

matters to enable the Company to get the matter sorted out expeditiously.
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Frick India Limited

21.5 Km., Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad-121003 (Haryana)

Phone : 0129 - 2275691 - 94, 2270546 - 47

Fax 10129 - 2275695, Emall 1D : es@frickmail.com

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

Equity Shareholding Number of Equity | Percentage % | Equity Shares | Percentage %
From To Shareholders
1 500 2163 97.7406 106804 17.8014
501 1000 18 0.8134 13371 2.2286
1001 2000 13 0.5874 16856 2.8095
2001 3000 4 0.1808 11261 1.B769
3001 4000 3 0.1356 10776 1.7961
4001 5000 4 0.1808 17857 2.9763
5001 10000 3 0.1356 26610 4.4352
10001 And above 5 0.2259 396440 66.0761
Total 2213 100.00 599975 100.00
Shareholding Pattern (as on March 31, 2023)
Category Mo. of shares held (in Lakhs) Pen:entage
Promoters 3.82538 63.76%
Naon-Pramaters (including Public) 2.17437 36.24%
Taotal 5.99975 100,00

DE-MATERIALIZATION OF EQUITY SHARES

The shares in the Company are under compulsory dematerialized trading. Up to 31.03.2022, 554,103 Equity
Shares In the Company (i.e. 92.35%) have been dematerialized. Subsequently, during the Financial Year 2022-23,
further 2475 Equity Shares were dematerialized. Therefore, up to March 31, 2023, 5,56,578 (i.e. 92.76%) Equity
Shares of the Company are in dematerialized form. The Company's ISIN Mo, is INE499C01012,

PLANT LOCATIONS
The Factory and Works of the Company are located at 21.5 KM, Main Mathura Road, Faridabad - 121 003
(Haryana).

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

Mr. Amit Singh Tomar

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer {Manager Legal & Secretarial)
Frick India Limited

21.5 Km., Main Mathura Road,

Faridabad-121003 (Haryana)

Phone : 0129 - 2275691 - 94, 2270546 - 47

Fax : 0129 - 2275695, Email 1D : cs@frickmail.com/ dft@ frickmail.com

OTHER DISCLOSURES
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY /VIGIL MECHANISM

The Whistle Blower policy/Vigil Mechanism of the Company has been formulated as per Regulation 22 of the
Repulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, The policy provides a channel to the employees,

Directors and any other person whe avails such mechanism to report to the management concerns about




Frick India Limited

unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Codes of conductor policy. The mechanisms of
policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees, Directors and any other person who
avails such mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in appropriate
and exceptional cases. The said policy has been communicated to all the personnel of the Company and is available
on the website of the Company www.frickweb.com.

During the year under review, no unethical behavior has been reported, Further, the Company has not denied any
personnel access to the Audit Committee and it will provide protection to Whistle Blower, if any, from adverse
personnel action.

POLICY ON PRESERVATION OF DOCUMENTS / ARCHIVAL

The Policy on Preservation of Documents/ Archival Policy on Website Disclosure has been framed in accordance
with the Regulation 9 and Regulation 30(B) of the Regulations which provides the framewark for preservation of
documents and records of the Company for a specified period and the records of the Company which are no longer
needed or are of no value are discarded after following the due process for discarding the same. This Policy aids
the employees of the Company in understanding their obligations in retaining and preserving the documents and
records which are required to be maintained as per the applicable statutory and regulatory requirements. The said
palicy is available on the website of the Company www.frickweb.com.

POLICY ON CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING MATERIALITY OF EVENTS

The Paolicy on criteria for determining Materiality of Events has been framed in accordance with Regulation 30 of
the Regulations which defines the criteria for determining the materiality of events or information related to the
Company provides that such information should be adequately disseminated in pursuance with the Regulations
and further provides for the overall governance framework for such determination of materiality. The said policy is

available on the website of the Company www. frickweb.com.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In compliance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Board through its Momination and Remuneration
Committee has devised a Policy on Board Diversity. The objective of the Policy is to ensure that the Board
comprises adequate number of members with diverse experience and skills, such that it best serves the
povernance and strategic needs of the Company. The Board composition as at present meets with the above
objective. The said Policy is placed on the Company's website www. frickweb.com.

FEES OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

Total fees paid by the company for all services on a consolidated basis to the Statutory Auditors and all entities in
the network firm / network entity of which the Statutory Auditors is a part is Rs, 9.27 Lakhs.

DISCLOSURE UMDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

There were no complaints received till date and all compliances related to Prevention of Sexual Harrassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2012 were duly adhered in time by the Company.

POLICY ON DEALING WITH RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The palicy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed on the Company’s website www. frickweb com.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Effective risk management is essential to success and is an integral part of our culture. While we need to accept a
level af risk in achieving our goals, sound risk management helps us to make the most of each business
opportunity, and enables us to be resilient and respond decisively to the changing environment,

Qur approach to risk managerment assists us in identifying risks early and addressing them in ways that manage
uncertainties, minimize potential hazards, and maximize opportunities for the good of all our stakeholders
including shareholders, customers, suppliers, regulators and employees. Risks can be broadly classified as
Strategic, Operational, Financial, and Legal/Regulatory.

NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

The Company has not been able to adopt any of the non-mandatory reguirements. The process for obtaining
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voluntary Secretarial Compliance Certificate from the Company Secretary in practice is however continuing.
CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

In terms of Listing Regulations, the certification by Managing Directors and Chief Financial Officer on the financlal
statements and internal controls relating to financial reporting has been obtained. The same is provided as
Annexure to this Report.

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Compliance certificate from Practicing Company Secretary regarding Compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance is annexed with this report.

DECLARATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER /f MANAGING DIRECTOR

I, Jasmohan Singh, Managing Director of the Company hereby declare that all Board members and Senlor
Management have individually affirmed compliance with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics adopted by the
Company during the year 2022-2023.

MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Regulation 17 to 27 and Clause |b) to (i) of sub-
regulation {2} of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations,

Details of Compliances are given below:

I Disclosure on website in terms of Listing Regulations Item Compliance Status
(Yes/MNo/NA)

1 Detalls of business Yes

2 Terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors Yes

3 Directors Composition of various committees of board of directors Yes

4 Code of conduct of board of directors and senior management personnal Yes

5 Details of establishment of vigil mechanism/ Whistle Blower policy Yes

6 Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors Yes

7 Policy on dealing with related party transactions Yes

] Policy for determining ‘material” subsidiaries M

9 Details of familiarization programmes imparted to independent directors Yes

10 Contact information of the designated officials of the Company who are Yes
responsible for assisting and handling investor grievances

11 Ermail address for grievance redressal and other relevant details Yes

12 Financial results Yes

13 Shareholding pattern Yes

14 | Details of agreements entered into with the media companies and/or their Ma
associates
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15 Schedule of analyst or institutional investor meet and presentation made by MNA
the listed entity to analysts or institutional investors simultaneously with
submission to stock exchange
16 Mew name and the old name of the listed entity A
17 Advertsement as per REEutati-:rn A47(1) Yes
18 | Credit rating or revision in credit rating obtained Yes
19 Separate audited financial statements of each subsidiary of listed entity in A,
respect of a relevant financial year
20 | Whether company has provided information under separate section on ils Yes
website as per Regulation 46(2)
21 | Materiality Policy as per Regulation 30 Yes
22 | Dividend Distribution Policy as per Regulation 43 A { as applicable) A
23 It is certified that these contents on website of the listed entity are correct Yes

Annual Affirmations

Particulars

Independent director(s) have been appointed in terms of specified Criteria | 16(1)(b) & 25(8) Yes
of Independence and/or eligibility

Board Compaosition 17(1) 17 (1A) & 17 (1B) Yes
Meeting of Board of directors 17(2) Yes
Cuorum of Board of Directors 17(24) Yes
Review of Compliance Reports 17(3) fas
Plans for orderly succession for appointments 17(4) Yas
Code of Conduct 17(5) Yes
Fees/compensation 17(6) Yesg
Minimum Information 17(7) Yes
Compliance Certificate 17(8) Yes
Risk Assessment & Management 179} Yes
Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors 17(10} Yes
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Recommendation of Board 17(11) Yes
Maxirmum Number of Directorships 174 Yes
Composition of Audit Committee 18(1) Yes
Meeating of Audit Committes 18(2) Yes
Compaosition of Nomination & Remuneration committee 19(1) & (2) Yes
Queorum of Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting 19(2A) Yes
Meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 19{3A) Yes
Composition of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committes 2001), (2) & 20{24) Yes
Meeting of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 20(348) Yes
Compaosition and role of Risk Management Committee 21(1012013004) A
Meeting of Risk Management Commiltee 21(3A) MA
Vigil Mechanism 22 Yes
Policy for Related Party Transaction 23(1),(18) (5L16).07) Yes
&(8)

Prior or Omnibus approval of Audit Committee for all Related Party | 23(2), (3) A
Transactions

Approval for material Related Party transactions 23(4) Yes
Disclosure of related party transaction on consolidated basis 23(9) Yes
Composition of Board of Directors of unlisted material Subsidiary 24(1) MNA
Other Corporate Governance reguirements with respect to subsidiary of | 24(2),(3),(4),15) & 6 NA
Company

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 24({A) Yes
Alternative Director to Independent Director 25(1) MNA
Maximum Tenure 25 (2) Yes
Meeting of Independent Directors 25(3) & (4) Yes
Familiarization of Independent Directors 25(7) Yes
Declaration from Independent Director 25(8) & (9) Yos
D & O Insurance for Independent Directors 25(10) Yes
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Memberships in Committees 26(1) Yes
Affirmation with compliance to code of conduct from members of Board of 26(4) Yes
Directors and Senior Management Personnel

Disclosure of Shareholding by Non-Executive Directors 26(3) Yes
Policy with respect to Obligations of Directors and Senior Management 26(2) & 26(5) Yes

MATRIX SETTING OF SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

The Table gives the details of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in

the context of Company's business{es) and sector{s) for Company to function effectively and those actually

available with the Board.

5l. No. | Core Skills/Expertise/Competencies Available with the Board (Yes/
No)

1 Knowledge of Core Business i.e. Refrigeration Yes

2 Plant Management Yes

3 Strategic Planning Yes

4 Product Development and Marketing Yes

5 Knowledge of Macro Environment vis-a-vis Industry Yes

b Financial Literacy Yes

7 Ability to read Financial Statements Yes

In Compliance with the requirements specified under {i) to Para C of the Schedule V to the SEBI [LODR)
Regulations, 2015, the Confirmation is hereby provided that in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors
fulfill the Conditions specified in these regulations and are Independent of the Management of the Frick India

Limited.

Date: May 24, 2023

Place: New Delhi

For AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FRICK INDIA LIMITED

{Jlasmohan Singh) (Ramesh Chandra Jain)
Managing Director Director
00383412 00038529
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE AS PER REGULATION 17(8) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To

The Board of Directors

Frick India Limited

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of Frick India
Limited ("the Company’), to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

d.

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended 31"

March, 2023 and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
any staterments that might be misleading;

2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance
with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by

the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Management Committee have

confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the effectiveness

of the same over the financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit

Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and

the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit

Committee:

1. significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;

2. significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same has been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the

management or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over

financial reporting.

Date: May 24, 2023 For FRICK INDIA LIMITED

Place: New Delhi {Jasmohan Singh) {Sharad Bhatnagar)

Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
00383412 PAN. ADCPB1782B
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ANMNEXURE “E"

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members of

FRICK INDIA LIMITED

21.5 KM Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad, Haryana -121003

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Frick India Limited, for the
Financial Year ended 31 March, 2023 as stipulated in Regulations 17, [17A], 18, 19, 20, 22, 23, 244, 25, 26, 27
and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (collectively
referred to as SEB| (LODR) Regulations, 2015).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Gowernance is the responsibility of the Management. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to
ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015. My examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted
by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit
nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the
representations made by the Directors and the management, we hereby certify that the Company has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015, during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023,

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid Regulations and may not be
suitable for any other purpose.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17.05.2023 ADITI GUPTA
Company Secretary in Whole-Time Practice
M/s Aditi Agarwal & Associates, Company Secretaries
Peer Reviewed Firm 2200/2022
FC5: 9410
CP No: 10512
UDIN: FO0D9410E000325462
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ANNEXURE “F"

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Statement of Particulars of Employees pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2)
of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial personnel) 2014

Name & Age Designation, Nature of Qualification/ Gross Last Employment
Duties and date of | EXPerience Remuneration Designation/ MName
Rs. In Lakhs

commencement of of the Company/
employment period

Mr. Jlasmohan Singh | Managing Director/ | B. Tech (Electrical) | 247.28 NA

(57 Years) Managerial  functions/ | 35 Years.
12.10.1986

MNotes:

1. The nature of employment is contractual and terminable by notice on either side.
2. Designation of the employee denotes his nature of duties.
3. Gross remuneration includes salary, provident fund, commission and other perks like Medical

reimbursement / Insurance & Electricity.

Calculation of Remuneration of Managing Director

5l Particulars Amount
No. (Rs. in Lakhs)
1. Gross Salary
a. Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act 1961 171.60
b. Value of Perquisites u/fs 17(2) Income tax Act 1961 62.72
c. Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income Tax Act. | g.oo
1961
Stock Option 0.00
Sweat Equity 0.00
Commission 0.00
as % of profit 0.00
others, specify 0.00
5. Others, Please Specify 12.96
Total (A) 247.28
upto Celiling limit as per the Companies Act, 2013

*Provident Fund of Rs. 12.96 Lakhs, Perqgusits of Rs. 62.72 Lakhs and Remuneration of Rs, 171.60 Lakhs, aggregates

to Rs. 247.28 Lakhs
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ANMNEXURE “G"

DISCLOSURE BY THE LISTED ENTITY

5l Mo, Particulars Details

1 the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 51:1
employees of the company for the financial Year

2. % increase in remunerations of each Director or KMP, if any, in the financial year
MDD 7.26
CrO 16.14
s 21.53

3. % Increase in the median remunerations of employees in the financial year -0.51%
the Number of parmanent employee on the roll of Company 75

5. the explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance
On an gveroge, employees received an annual increase of 10% mn India
The Individua! increments varied from 5 % to 20 %, bosed on individual performance

. comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the
performance of the company
*Aggregote remuneration of Key Manogeriol Persannel (KMP) in FY 2022-23 342.06
Revenie {Rs. In Lakhs) Jesar.00
*Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in FY 2023-23 (s ¥ of Revenue)] .93
Profit before Tax (PBT) (Rs. In Lakhs) 85646
*Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in FY 2023-23 {as % of PET) a.87

7. variations in the market capitalization of the company, price earnings ratio as at | Mot applicable, since Shares
theclosing dateof the current financial year and previous financzl year and | of the Company are not
percentage increase over decrease in the market guotations of the shares of the | traded on Stock Exchange
company in comparison to the rate at which the company came out with the last
public offer in case of listed companies, and in case of unlisted companies, the
variations in the net worth of the company a3 at the close of the current financial year
and previous financial year

. average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the | 9.81 % (Employees other
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile | than Managerial
increase in the managerial remuneration and |ustification thereof and point out if | Personnel}5.72% (Managerial
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration Personnel)

9, comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the company
Rs. in Lakhs Managing Director C.F.O. C.5.
Remunaration in FY 2022-23 24728 78.16 16.62
Revenue 36927.00
Remuneration as % of 067 0.21 0.04
Revenue
Profit before Tax (PAT) 1856.46
Remuneration as % of PAT 6.41 2.03 0.43

10. the key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the Mot Applicable
directors;

a b the ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who Mone
are not directors but recelve remuneration in excess of the highest pald director during
the year; and

12. affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company Yes

3]
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5l No, Particulars Details
1. the financial summary or highlights Refer Page No.
02

2 the change in the nature of business, if any; Na Change

3. the details of directors or key managerial personnel who were appointed or have resigned | Refer Page

during the year No......

4, names of companies which have become or ceased to be its Subsidiaries, joint ventures or | Mot applicable

associate companies during the year;

5. the details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Act, Not applicable
a.accepted during the year Mot applicable
b.remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year; Mot applicable
c.whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest

thereon during the year and if so, number of such cases and the total amount

involved -

at the beginning of the year; Mot applicable
maximum during the year; Mot applicable
at the end of the year; Nat applicable

6. the details of deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the | Not applicable

Act;

T the details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals | Mot applicable

impatting, the m concern status and company’s operations in future

2. the details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial | Refer Auditors

Statements. Report
For AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Date: May 24, 2023 FRICK INDIA LIMITED
Place: New Delhi {Jasmohan Singh) (Ramesh Chandra Jain)
Managing Director Director
00383412 00038529
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ANNEXURE “"H"

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

T,

The Members

FRICK INDIA LIMITED

21.5 KM Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad, Haryana -121003

‘We have examined the relevant registers, returns, records, forms and disclosures received from the Directors of
Frick India Limited (CIN: L74899HR1962PLC002618], having its registered office at 21.5 Km Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad, Haryana 121003 (hereinafter referred as “the Company”), produced before us by the Company for
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Sub
Clause 10{i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015 for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications and examination of the
disclosures under section 184, 164, 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act”) and the status of Director
Identification Number of all directors of the Company as per web portal of Ministry of Corporate Affairs i.e.,
www.mca.gov.in, as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its Company
Secretary, we hereby certify that none of the below named Directors on the Board of the Company as on March
31, 2023, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed as director or continuing as directors of any
company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other statutory
authority.

5. No. Director Name of Director Designation
Identification
Number (DIN)
1. 00383412 Mr. lasmohan Singh Managing Director
2, 052696098 Ms. Jasleen Kaur Queenie Singh Mon-Executive Director
3. 05270533 Ms. Gurleen Kaur MNon-Executive Director
4, Q0038529 Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain Independent Director
5, 05357532 Mr. Divakar lagga Independent Director
6. 00493392 Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao Independent Director

Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the basis of our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This certificate is based on the information and records available up to this date and we have no responsibility
to update the certificate for the events and circumstances occurring after the date of the certificate.

Place: New Delhi
Date; 17.05.2023 ADITI GUPTA
Company Secretary in Whole-Time Practice
M/s Aditi Agarwal & Associates, Company Secretaries
Peer Reviewed Firm 2200/2022
FCS: 9410
CP No: 10512
UDIN: FOOS410E000325418
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AMNMNEXURE “I”

Principles and Palicies of Business Responsibility (ESG)
Introduction:

This is an overarching policy in line with the nine principles of the Mational Voluntary Guidelines on Social,
Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of business issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and
requirement under Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Frick India Limited ("FIL"} is fully committed to the introduction of BusinessResponsibility Policy and intends that
business responsibility initiatives should become embedded wherever appropriate into its policies and practices,
to the bengfit of its internal and external stakeholders. This Policy is intended to ensure that the FIL contributes
towards the sustainable development and fulfls its social, environmental and economic responsibilities.

As required under Regulation 34(2)(f) it has become mandatory for the top one thousand listed companies based
on market capitalization [calculated as on 31* March of every financial year) to include in its Annual Report,
Business Responsibility Report (BRR) now known as Business Responsibility and sustainability Report (BRSR)
describing the initiatives taken by them from an environmental, social and governance perspective (ESG) in the
format as specified by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) from time to time.

Key principles:

The Company has adopted the following nine key principles of the Business Responsibility envisaged in National
Voluntary Guidelines on Social, Environmental and Economic Responsibiliies of business issued by the
Ministryof Corporate Affairs and requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Policy 1: Ethics Transparency & Accountability

1.1. Frick India Limited believes in value based governance and practices. The Board of Directors and senior
management have a responsibility to set exemplary standards of ethical behavior, both internally within the
organization, as well as in their external relationships. Every employee of FIL shall conduct himself-and deal on
behalf of the company with professionalism, honesty and integrity, while confarming to high moral and ethical
standards.

12, Frick India Limited shall create / develop necessary governance structures, procedures and practices to
ensure ethical conduct at all levels; and to promote the adoption of this principle across the value chain,
1.3. Frick India Limited shall discharge its respensibility on financial and other mandatory disclosures.

1.4. Frick India Limited shall ensure that genuine concerns of misconduct/ unlawful conduct can be reported in
a respansible and confidential manner through its VigitMechanism.

15. Frick India Limited shall encourage its business partners and third parties with whom it conducts busingss
to abide by this palicy.

1.6. Frick India Limited shall report on the status of adoption of these Guidelines, as necessary.

2.1, Frick India Limited shall assure safety and optimal use of all the resources over the business lifecycle

2.2, Frick India Limited shall wark towards ensuring that services are delivered embedding the principles of
ethics, occupational health, safety and environment.

2.3, Frick India Limited shall continue to progressively factor in relevant social and environmental considerations
during the process of development of rendering of services,

2.4, Frick India Limited shall encourage its business partners and third parties with whom it conducts business to
abide by this policy.
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Policy 3: Well-being of all Employess

3.1 Frick India Limited shall provide and maintain equal opportunities at the time of recruitment as well as during
the course of employment irrespective of caste, creed, gender, race, religion, disability or sexual orientation,

3.2 Frick India Limited shall provide facilities for the wellbeing of the employees including those with special
needs.

3.3 Frick India Limited shall provide a workplace enviranment that is safe, hygienic, humane, and which upholds
the dignity of the employees. The Company shall create awareness of these provisions to the employees and
training them on a regular basis.

3.4 Frick India Limited shall endeavor in finding suitable post for differently able people,

Policy 4: Stakeholders’ Engagement

4.1 Frick India Limited shall systematically identify stakeholders, understand their concerns, defining the
purpose and scope of engagement, and commitment to engage withthem.

4.2 Frick India Limited shall acknowledge responsibility and be transparent about the impact of the policies,
decisions & services.

Paolicy 5: Human Rights

5.1 Frick India Limited shall integrate respect for human rights in management systems, in particular through
assessing and managing human rights impacts of operations, and ensuring all individuals impacted by the
business have access to grievance mechanisms,

5.2 Frick India Limited shall recognize and respect the human rights of all relevant stakeholders and groups,
including that of communities, consumers,

5.3  Frick India Limited shall, within its sphere of influence, promote the awareness and realization of human
rights across their value chain.

5.4  Frick India Limited shall encourage its business partners and third parties with whom it conducts business
to abide by this policy.

Policy & : Protection of Environment

6.1 Frick India Limited shall utilize natural and man-made resources in an optimal and responsible manner
and ensure the sustainability of resources.

6.2 Frick India Limited shall proactively persuade and support the value chain to adopt this policy.

6.3 Frick India Limited shall make its employee's environment conscious by training and conducting safety
audits, tanning, performance efficiency studies at work places.

6.4 Frick India Limited shall ensure trees and natural habitat are preserved and enhanced that includes
planting trees on annual basis.

Policy 7: Responsible advocacy

7.1  AsaCorporate Citizen, the Company understands its responsibility to function within the democratic set
up and the constitutional framewark. The Company and its employees respect the legal / regulatory
framework and shall comply with all the applicable provisions of existing local, state, national, and
internaticnal laws. They shall also follow and obey the palicies, procedures, rules and regulations relating to
the business of the Company.

7.2 Frick India Limited believes that policy advocacy must preserve and expand public good.
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Policy 8: Inclusive growth and equitable development

8.1 Frick India Limited has been and will continue to give emphasis to the conservation of enviranment while
conducting its business through lot of means like energy efficiency, product efficiency and efficient repair, best
utilization of energy, re-consumption, recycle after life span, using alternative and interlinked devises, designing
equipment for heat reclaim for higher co-efficient of performance (COP).

8.2 Frick India Limited shall endeavar in making eguipment design suitable to capture and store gases including
liguefaction to periodic review of internal consumption of energy, source and consumption of energy.

Policy 9: Customer Value
9.1 Frick India Limited shall take into account the overall well-being of the customers and that of society,

9.2 Frick India Limited shall exercise due care and caution while providing services that result in over
exploitation of natural resources or lead to excessive conspicuous consumption,

9.3 Frick India Limited shall provide adequate grievance handling mechanisms to address customer concerns and
feedback.

9.4 Frick India Limited shall exercise periodic review of external consumption of our product and services.
10. Implementation

The policy shall be appropriately communicated within the Company across all levels and shall be
displayed on the Company’s website.

The Company Secretary through the functional heads of the business shall be responsible for ensuring
that the policy is implemented throughout the Company,

Any grievances/ complaints with respect to violation of the policy shall be reported to the Company
sSecretary.

11, Amendment:

The Business Responsibility policy would be subject to revision / amendment in accordance with the
guidelines as may be issued by the regulatory authorities or Voluntary organizations in Business
Responsibility field.

The Company reserves its right to alter, modify, add, delete or amend any of the provisions of this
policy,

The power to interpret and administer the policy shall rest with the Board whose decision will be final
and binding. The Board is also empowered to do make any supplementary rules / order for effective
implementation of the policy,

For AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Date: May 24, 2023 FRICK INDIA LIMITED

Place; New Delhi

{lasmohan Singh) {Ramesh Chandra Jain)
Managing Director Director
00383412 00038529
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
Tao,

The Members,
Frick India Limited

21.5 Km, Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad (Haryana) -121003

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutary provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Frick India Limited (hereimafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory

compliances and expressing our opinion thereon,

Based on our verification of the Frick India Limited, books, papers, minute hoaoks, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023, complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
Frick India Limited {“the Company”) for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions

of:

] The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Securities Contracts [Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(i} ~ The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

vl Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1939 ('FEMA’) and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment (‘FDI'), Overseas Direct Investment {"ODI") and External Commercial

Borrowings(ECB); (Mo FDI, ODI and ECB was taken by the company during the Audit Period)

[w) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 {'SEBI Act'):-
{a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;
ik} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
{c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2009; {Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)
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(vi)

{vii)

{d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and

{h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not Applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period);

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable rules,

regulation and other communications issued from time to time.

OTHER LAWS AS APPLICABLE TO THE COMPANY:
(a) The Factories Act, 1948 and the rules made thereunder,

(b) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and rules made thereunder;
{c) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 and rules made thereunder;
(d) Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 and rules made thereunder;

{e) The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and the rules made
thereunder;

(f}  The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 and the rules made thereunder;

{g) The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 and the rules made thereunder;
(h)  The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and the rules made thereunder;
(i)  The Trade Union Act, 1926 and the rules made thereunder;

(i}  The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 and the rules made thereunder;

(k)  The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 and the rules made thereunder;

(I}  The Apprentices Act, 1961 and the rules made thereunder;

im) The Employees Compensation Act, 1923 and the rules made thereunder;
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(n) Personal Injuries (Compensation Insurance) Act 1963 and the rules made thersunder,;

(o) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and the rules made thereunder;

(p) The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 and the rules made thereunder;

(g) The Sexual Harassmenl of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013 and
the rules made thereunder;

ir) The Industrial Employment {Slanding Orders) Acl, 1946 and the rules made thersunder,;

(s) The Noise Poliution (Regulation and Control) Rules, 2000

{ty The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and the rules made thereunder;

(u) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 and the rules made thereunder;

(v} The Information Technology Act, 2000 and the rules made thereunder;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 as issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
and notified by Central Government.

(i)  The Listing Agreement {ta the extent applicable during Audit period) entered into by the Company with
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listng Obligations and

Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The Board composition is as per the applicable provisions of SEBI (LODR)

Regulations, 2015.

Adeguate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meestings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out by majority as recorded in the minutes of

the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adeguate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, we have observed that:

Pursuant to the provision of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, a company whose dividend
remains unpaid/unclaimed for a2 period of seven consecutive years shall be required to transfer such shares to the

special purpose DEMAT Account, accordingly, the Company was required to transfer such shares into DEMAT
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Account of IEPF. We have been informed that during the Financial Year 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21 and
2021-22, the Company has been receiving several request(s) from certain shareholders claiming their unpaid
dividend for past years and therefore due to change in shareholders details as available in the records of the
Company, the Company is taking time in identifying the authenticity of the registered shareholders, who have not
encashed the dividend warrants for a continuous period of last seven years and hence, Form IEPF-4 for filing of
statement of shares transfer to IEPF could not be filed till date. The management of the Company is taking

appropriate measures to comply with the above mentioned provision of the Act.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17.05.2023 ADITI GUPTA
Company Secretary in Whole-Time Practice

M/s Aditi Agarwal & Associates, Company Secretaries

Peer Reviewed Firm 2200/2022

FCS: 9410

CP MNo: 10512

UDIN: FO09410E000325231

NOTE: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure A’ and forms an integral

part of this report.

o
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‘ANNEXURE A’

To,

The Members,
Frick India Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter

Place: New Delhi

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done based on the
provided documents/details/information provided by the Company. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The compliance of Industry specific laws as applicable to the Company is the responsibility of the senior
executive(s) of the concerned department/team of the Company. Hence, the verification of the said
compliances is done based on the information/documents/compliance certificate as provided by them.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Date: 17.05.2023 ADITI GUPTA

Company Secretary in Whole-Time Practice

M/s Aditi Agarwal & Associates, Company Secretaries
Peer Reviewed Firm 2200/2022

FC5: 9410

CP No: 10512

UDIN: FO09410E000325231
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of FRICK INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial staternents of FRICK INDIA LIMITED [ "the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 317 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (indluding Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes In Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
therein after referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so
reguired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March,
2023, its Profit {including Other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {S4s) specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Staterments section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
belizve that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 3 basis for our opinion on
the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Koy audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, ware of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate apinion on
these matters. We have determined that no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other infarmation. The ather information comprises the
information included in the Annual report, but doss not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge abtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibility of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position/ state of affairs,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section
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133 of the Act, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act tor safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
ather irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
rmaintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
compieteness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statemenits
that give a true and fair view and are freée from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financal statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our epinian.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered materizl if, individually or in the apggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with 54z, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
thraughout the audit. We also:

|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate te provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fram error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Chtain 2n understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143 (3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for exprassing
our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such contraols,

Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting policies vsed and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt an the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. |f we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going cONcernn.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing aof the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies In Internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a staterment that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financal statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare cireumstances, we determine that a matler should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expectad to
outweigh the public intarest beneafits of such communication.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluabing the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

b}

£}

d}

el

f)

E)

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Repart) Order, 2020 ("the Order™), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the *Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repart that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
befief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss Including other comprehensive income, the Statement of
Changes in Eguity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

Im our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basls of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March, 2023 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31" March, 2023 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls aver finandal reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 8" Our report expresses
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Campanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us;

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Mote No. 32 to the financial statements;

The Campany has made provision, as reguired under the applicabile law or Indian Accounting Standards, for
material foresesable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts; and

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

{a) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclesed in note no
57 to the financial statements, no funds {which are material either individually or in aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds} by the company to or in any other person{s) or entity{ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficlaries”) ar provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{b) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in nota no
57 to the financial statements, no funds [which are material either individually or in aggregate) have
been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by ar on behalf of the Funding Party ("Witimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantes,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) above as required by Rule 11{e) of Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014,
as amended, contains any material mis-statement.

v. The dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act,
as applicable. As stated in Note No. 16.1 to the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company
has proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual
General meeting. The dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company
with effect from 1st April, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023.

h) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the managerial
remuneration for the year ended 31st March, 2023 has been paid/ provided for by the Company to its directors
in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For LODHA & CQO,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 301051E

(Gaurav Lodha)

Partner

Membership No. 507462
UDIN: 23507462BGVDID5228
Place: New Delhi

Date: 24™ May, 2023
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ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

i

()

ib)

(d)

(e)

ia)

ih)

{a)

{b)

{A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets,

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by
which Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three vears, which
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its Property, Plant
and Equipment. Based on information and records provided, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification,

Accarding to the infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
registered sale deed [ transfer deed [ conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of
all the immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and
equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

The Campany has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment {) and intangible assets during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and records provided, no proceedings have
been initiated during the yvear or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amendead in 2016)
and rules made thereunder.

As per the physical verification program, the inventories of the Company were physically verified during
the year by the Management at reasonable intervals (except for stock lying with the third parties and in
transit, which have been verified based on confirmations have been received/material received). In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its operations, Discrepancies noticed were not of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories on such physical verification of inventaries when compared with books of account and have
been properiy adjusted.

According to the infarmation and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time during the year, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the guarterly returns [ statements filed by the Company with
such banks or financial institutions are generally in agreemeant with the unaudited bogks of account of
the Company of the respective quarters

The Company has made investments in and granted loans to other parties during the year and has
not provided guarantee or security granted advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecurad, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships ar any other parties during the year.

Particulars Loans (Fs. in Lakhs)
A, Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year:
- Others 91.59

B, Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of
ahbove cases:
- Others 67.62

During the year, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the above-
mentioned loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest. Further,
during the year, the Company has not provided guarantees, provided security and granted advances in
the nature of loans to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties,

TE



Frick India Limited

i,

wii,

(c) Inrespect of loans granted by the Company as stated above in para (a), the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest, if any has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been
regular.

(d} According to information and explanations glven to us and based on the audit procedures perfarmed, in
respect of loans granted by the Company, there s no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the
balance sheet date.

(e} According to infermation and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed, No
loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or
fresh |oans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f} According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed,
the Company has not granted any loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment during the year, Hence, reporting under clause 3(ii)(f) is not applicable.

According to the informationand explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, made
investments ar provided guarantees or securities that are covered under the provisions of sections 185
ar 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, and hence reporting under clause 3 {iv) of the Order is not applicable.

As per the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not accepted any public
depnsits from public within the provision of Section 73 to 76 of the Act or any other relevant provisions
of the Act and Rules framed thereunder (to the extent applicable), Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(v} of the COrder are not applicable to the Company. We have been informed that no order has been
passed by the Company Law Board or Nationzl Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any
Court or other Tribunal in this regard.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act in respect of the
Company's products and services to which the said rules are made applicable and are of the opinion that prima
facie, the prescribed records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the said records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

a.  According to the records of the Company, the Company is been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues with
the appropriate authorities to the extent applicable and there were no undisputed statutory dues payable
In respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tay,
Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excize, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at 31% March 2023 far a period of mare than six manths from the date they become payable,

b,  According to the records and information & explanations given to us, details of statutory dues referred
to in sub-clause {a) above which have not been deposited as on 315t March 2023 on account of disputes
are given below!

(Rs. Lacs)

Mature of statute Mature of Amount * Period to which the | Forum where dispute is pending

duas amount relates

Works Contract Tax 92

Bhubaneshwar Works 0.82 F.¥. 1990-91 & 1991- | Matter pending before Tribunal
r

Contract tax
Act, Odisha

West Bengal Sales Sales Tax 0.32 F.Y. 1975-76 Appeal pending before Tribunal

tax Act

1.05 F.Y. 1976-77 Appeal pending before Appellate
Authority

Imcome Tax Act, Income Tax 809 A, 2006-07 Appeal pending with ITAT
1961

1.30 AN, 2012-13 Appeal pending with
CIT(Appeals)

0.28 ALY, 2017-18
7.38 AN, 2018-19
5.43 AN, 2020-21
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*MNet of tax pald under pratest and this to be read with Note No. 32.

wiil.

il.

EATT

Hiv,

v,

There were na transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as
incame in the tax assessmeants under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961} during the year.

{a) In our opinion, the Company has not defavlted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b} The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any governmenl authority,

] Tothe best of cur knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, applied
by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained. There were no
unutilized term loans at the beginning of the year.

id) The Company has not taken raised any funds during the vear and hance, reperting under clause 3 (ix){d) of
the Order is not applicabla.

(2] The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and hence, reporting
under clause 3{ix){e] and {f} of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised maneys by way of initial public affer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x){a) of the Order is not applicable.

(B} During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debenturas (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3{x){b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

{a) Based on the audit procedures performed and on the basis of information and explanations provided by
the management, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed ar
raported during the year.

{b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

() As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints recelved by the
Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi
campany and hence, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order 15 not applicable.

According to the information and explanations and records made available by the management of the Company
and audit procedures performed, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements ete, as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards,

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
ratura of (ks businass.

(b} We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and oll date in

determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

On the basis of records made available to us and according to information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with its directors
and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-18 of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 and hence
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reporting under clause 3 (xvil{a), (b} and {c) of the Order is not applicable. As per the information and
representation provided by the management, the Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and
accordingly reporting under clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

svil. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the

immediately preceding financial year,

sviil, There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

Hi¥,

KX,

¥,

On the basis of the financial ratios (as stated in note no. 56 to the financial statements), ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities (as per the
payment schedule/ re-scheduled), other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any materizl uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of halance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and/ or certificate with respect to
meeting financial obligations by the Company as and when they fall due. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of ane year from the balance sheet

date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due,

(a) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility [CSR)
and there are no unspent C5R amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in
Schedule VIl to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-
section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xx) of the Order
is not applicable for the year,

{b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to
aspecial account incompliance of provisions of sub section (8) of Section 1350f Companies Act, 2013.
This matter has been disclosed in note no 44 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture and thus Company is not
required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements. Accordingly, reparting under clause 3(xxi)
of the Order is not applicable.

For LODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 301051E

{Gaurav Lodha)

Partner

Membership No, 507462
LDIN: 23507462BGVDID5228
Place: New Delhi

Date: 24'" May, 2023
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ANMNEXURE “B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FRICK INDIA LIMITED (“the
Company™) as of 31¥ March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Anancial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essentlal components of internal contrelstated inthe Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountantsofindia. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were cperating effectively for ensuring the ordery and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to respective Company’s palicies, the safeguarding of jts assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, andthe timely preparation
ofreliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Owr responsibility is to express an opinion on Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note an
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143{10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, tothe extent applicable to an audit ofinternal financial controls, ThoseStandards and
the Guidance Note reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all matarial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adegquacy of the internal
financial controls system ower financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting Included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and aperating effectivenessofinternal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidencewe have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis forour
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial contrel over financial reporting is a process designed te provide reasonabie
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. & Company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that tranzactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timeby detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Cantrols Over Financial Reporting
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Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

Inour opinion, tothe best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31" March, 2023, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofindia.

For LODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 301051E

(Gaurav Lodha)

Partner

Membership No. 507462
UDIN;: 23507462BGVDID5228

Place: Mew Delhi
Date: 24" May, 2023
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

(Rg. In Lakhs)
) | As at31st March, As at 31st March,
Particulars Note No. 2023 2022
ASS5ETS
{1) Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment ] 98677 983.13
(b} Capital work-in-progress 2 1.94 -
(e} Intangihle assets 3 14,38 20.82
(d) Financial Assets
{i1 Investments 4 A 3.074.42 2.440.58
(i} Loans 5 16.19 17.00
(i) Other Financial Assels & 1.,118.65 4,299.78
(e} Deferredtax assels (Net) 7 184.16 98.30
(f} Other Non Current Assets 8 4.56 0.59
Total Non-Current Assets 5401.07 T.860.18
{2) Currenl assols
{a) Inwentories | B.994.88 6,129.79
{b} Financlal Assets
{  Investments 4B . 134.04
(il Trade receivables 10 8,573.80 T,595.24
(i} Cashand Cash Equivalents 11 131.45 1.872.85
{iv} Bank balances other than (i) Above 11 9,610.99 3,258.27
{v] Loans 12 51.43 3B.65
(vi) Other Financial Assets 13 272.55 B4.18
(¢} Other current assels 14 1,719.48 1,403.43
Total Current Assets 29.354.58 20,516.55
Total Assets 34,755.65 28,376.73
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a} Egquity Share Capital 15 60,00 60.00
{b) Other Equity 16 23,115.42 20,303.98
Total Equity 2317542 20,363.98
LIABILITIES
{1) Non-Curre nt Liabilities
(&) Financial Liabilites
(i} Borrowings 17 11.00 7.24
{b) Provisions 18 570.84 491.76
Total Non-Current Liabilities 581.84 498.97
{2) Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
{i} Borrowings 19 1.714.43 1,557.91
(i} Trade payables 20
Total outstanding dues of micro 28.13 2741
anterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other 2.049.81 1,508.66
than micro enterprises and small
amMarprises
(i) Other Financial Liabifties FE 1.030.59 912.40
{b) Other current Rabilities 22 5,226.21 2,884.04
{c} Provisions 23 252.38 205.04
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 24 6a7.84 417.22
Tolal Current Liabllities 10.998.39 7.513.78
Total Equity and Liabilities 34, 75565 28,376.73
| Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompaning notes referred to above form an Integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board
Frick India Limited

As per our report of even date

For Lodha & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No.301051E
Jasmohan Singh Ramesh C. Jain
Managing Director Director
DIN - 00383412 DIN - DO03E529

Gaurav Lodha

Partner

M.Nao, 507462 Sharad Bhatnagar Amit Singh

Place: New Delhi Director (Finance & Taxation} Company Secretary
Date: 24.05.2023 PAN ADCPB1TEZE M.No. A4BE13
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the yvear e nded 31st March, 2023

{Rs. In Lakhs)

| Significant Accounting Policies

Hote For the year ended For the year ended
ESINEuE No. 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
I. Revenue from operations 25 36.282.80 28,046.69
I Other Income 26 644.20 T725.11
1L, Total Income (| +11) 36,927.00 28,771.80
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 27 2556277 20,444 .34
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and
Stock in Trade 28 (1.315.85) {1,355.05)
Employee benefit expense 29 5106.44 4.338.83
Finance costs 30 198.51 196,31
Depreciation 2 206.24 203.00
Amortization Expenses 3 9.13 14141
Other Expenses a1 3.303.39 2.740.55
IV.Total Expenses 33,070.54 26,582.09
V. Profit before tax (llI-IV) 3.856.486 2,180.71
VI Tax expense:
{1) Current tax 1.100.00 578.00
{2) Deferred tax (78.20) (24.63)
{3) Provision for earlier years {17.55) -
Total tax expense 1.004.25 553.37
¥il. Profit after tax [V-VI} 2.852.21 1,636.34
Will. Other compre hensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
- Remeasurement of defined beneafit plan (30.43) (14.89)
= Income Tax effect on above T7.66 3.75
Total Other comprehensive income (VIll) (22,77} {11.14)
IX. Total Comprehensive income [VIi+WVIIl) 2,829.44 1,625.20
X. Earning per equity share (Face Value Rs,10/- each): a6
(1} Basic 475.40 272.73
{2) Diluted 475.40 2T2.73

The accompaning notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Lodha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.301051E

Gaurav Lodha
Partner
M. Mo, S0T462

Placa: New Dalhi
Date: 24,05.2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Jasmohan Singh
Managing Director
DIN - D0383412

Sharad Bhatnagar
Director (Finance & Taxation}
PAN ADCPB17E2E

Frick India Limited

Ramesh C. Jain
Director
DIN - 00038529

Amit Singh
Company Secretary
M.No, A 46813
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 21st March, 2023

A. Equity Share Capital

(R&. In Lakhs)

Balance as at 1st April 2021 Changes in Balance as at 31st Changes in Equity | Balance as at 31st
Equity Share March, 2022 Share Capital during March, 2023
Capital during 2022-23
2021-22
B0.00 - 60.00 - 60.00
B. Othar Equity
[Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Reserve & Surplus Other Comprahensive Total
Income (OCI)
Earnings ' Reclassified to profit
‘or loss
Re-measurement of
the net defined benafit
plans
‘Balance as at 15t April 2021 - 18,763.94 (67.16) 18,696.78
Profit for the year 1,636.34 - - 1,636.34
Dividend (18.00) z {18.00)
Transfer from Retained Earnings (1.618.34) 1,618.34 - -
Other Comprehenshme income for - - {11.14) (11.14)
the year (Net of Taxes)
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 - 20 382.28 [78.30) 20,303.98
Profit for the year 2.852.21 - 285221
Divide nd (18.00) . . {18.00)
Transfer from Retained Eamnings (2,834.21) 2,834.21 . .
Other Comprahensive income for - - (22.77) (22.77)
the period (Met of Taxes)
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 - 23,216.49 (101.07) 2311542
The accompaning notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Lodha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.301051E

Gaurav Lodha
Partner

M.No. 507462
Place: New Dalhi
Date: 24.05.2023

Jasmohan Singh
Managing Director
DIN - 00383412

Sharad Bhatnagar

Director (Finance & Taxation)

PAN: ADCPE1TB2E

Frick India Limitaed

Ramesh C. Jain
Director
DIN - 00038529

Amit Singh
Company Secretary
M.Mo. A 46813
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Cash lNow statement for the year ended 315t March, 2023

{R=_ In Lakhs)
bl Jaar i) For the year ended.
Particilar I1st March, 2023 ~3st March, 2022
F FR ERATI! TIVITI
Mat profit before tax ER-L 249881
Ad|ustments for ©
Deprecistion 206,24 203,00
Arnorization Exparnass B3 1411
{Profif)/Loss on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment {Me) 020 {0.85)
Property, Plant & Equipment Discarded .36 1.40
Internst Roceied 488,22} {432, 18)
Dividend Recobed {7.37} {B.02)
{Prafif/Loss on sake of lrvestment |Net) - Non Clmant (37.73) {20.31)
Unrrealised (gainiiLoss of imestment (Mel) (32.08) [152.55)
Finance Cost 196.51 196,31
Operating profit befom working capital changaes 3,705,652 1.992.54
usbrrienes for -
{Increase)/Decrease in Trade Recelvables {9T8.56) B54. 18
({Increase)/Decrease in Inmentones (2,865.08) [2.227.16)
{Increass)/Docmass in Other financal assets and othar (328.11) 25.48
s
Increase!{Decrease) in Other financial BEabiiies, provisbn 310612 363.87
arid otiver Eabilties
Cash genarated from operations 2,638,808 1.008.91
Dinecd Taxes paid (BE1.BZ) [GBE,20)
MET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVTIES () 1,777.08 322.71
BICASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Irterest Received 201.71 G98.30
Dividend Received T.3T 6.02
Purchase of Proparty, Plant & Equipment (including CWP) {213.07) [Zd40.47)
Purchase of intangible Assets (2.70) -
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipmant 056G 2.60
Mewvamant in otfer Bunk Balances (2,079.47} [788.92)
{Purchase}Sales of investments {616.B6} 130.27
HET CASH FROM (USED [N) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (=) (3,512,368} [f82.20)
CICASH FLOW FROM FINANCING AGTIVITIES
Drividend pakd {18.00) {18.00)
Financa Cost (148.57) 1174.31)
Proceeds/|Repayment) fromiof short borm borrowings 15425 98,53
Proceeds|Repayments) framial kng term bomowings B.06 {5.08)
NET CASH FROM {USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (=4} [B.20) [38.81)
HET CASH FLOW DURING THE YEAR A+B+C (1, 741.50) 31T
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTSIOPENING BALAMNCE) 1,672.88 184125
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS[CLOSING BALANCE) 131.45 1.872.95
{Refer Nole Mo.11 Lo the Financial Statements)
Notes:
a} Total Liahifities from Financing Activities Rs. In Lakhs
Enstioutar Far tha year ended 31at March_ 2023 | For the year ended 11st March_ 2022
Long Term Short Term Long Term Short Term
Crpening 1215 1,552.87 17.23 1.454.39
Cash Flow Changas
Nt Inflow!| Repaymants) G.OE 154.28 {5.08) aa.58
Nan-Cash Flow Changes - -] 2 =
Claging 1821 1,707.22 1215 1.552.97
b} Previows yaar's figures have besn re-grouped | re-arranged wherevar nacessary.
As per our report of even date For and on behall of the Board
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Charfered Accountarts
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Partnar
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

1
L

COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Company Querview

Frick India Limited (the ‘Campany’) is a public limited Company domiciled in India with its registered office
lecated at 21.5 Km,, Main Mathura Road, Faridabad -121003, (Haryana), The Company is listed on the
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited, The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of
industrial refrigeration & air-conditioning equipment,

These financial statements were approved and adopted by board of directors of the Company in their meeting
held on May 24, 2023,

Basis of Preparation of financial statements and Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

{ i} Basis of Preparation of financial statements:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
thereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind A5') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant amendments rules issued
thereafter. The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies used in the preparation of its
financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared and presented under historical cost convention on accrual
basis, except for the items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS. The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency and
all amounts are rounded to the nearest lakhs and two decimals thereof, except as otherwise stated.

(i} Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies, the accounting disclosures made and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Continuous evaluation is done of the estimates and judgments based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively,

Significant Accounting Policies

Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Recognition and Measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at acquisition cost net of tax/duty credits availed, {if any), less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, (if any). Cost includes expenses directly
attributable to bringing the Asset to their location and conditions necessary for itto be capable of operating
in the manner intended by the management. Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended
use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”. Advances paid towards the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital
advances under other non-current assets.

subsequent cost are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that is future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
Statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, upon sale and
disposition of the assets and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
fAssets costing Rs. 7500/- or less are charged to revenue in the yvear of purchase.

The Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year. If

any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, such change is accounted for as a change in an

accounting estimate.
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{ii) Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment has been provided on written down value methodas per the
useful life of assets, as estimated by the management, which s in line with Schedule |l to the Companies Act,
2013. The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Building 30/60 years
Jig & Dies 8-15 years
Piant and Equipments 15 years
Efectrical Fitting & Instalation 10 years
Furniture and fAxtures 10 years
Vehicles B/10 years
Offi ce equipment 5 years
Computers 3/6 years
Refrigeration equipments 5 years
Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are recognised, If the future economic benefits attributable to the assets are expected to
flow to the company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Such intangible assets are measured at
costless any accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected
useful life, Estimated useful life by major class of intangibleassets are as fallows:

Computer Software: 3 years

Design & Development: 5 years

The amoartization period and the amortization method for an intanglble asset with finite useful life is
reviewad at the end of each financial year, If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, such
change is accounted for as & change inan accounting estimate,

Research and development

Revenue Expenditure pertaining to research |5 charged to the statement of profit & Loss,

Development costs of products are charged to the statement of profit and loss unless a product’s
technological and commercial feasibility has been established, In which case such expenditure is
capitalized.

Inventories

Inventories are valued as under:

a. Raw materials, components, construction materials, stores, spares and loose tools at lower of cost or net
realisable value,

b Work-in-progress at lower of material cost plus labour cast or net realisablevalue,

c. Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, Cost includes related overheads,

d. Contract jobs in progress atsites are valued at |ower of Cost or net realisable value,

Cost is computed on first in first out basis. The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary 1o make
thesale.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash and chegues in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks
where the original mturity is three months or less and other short term highly liguid investments that are
readily convertible into cash and which are subjectto an insignificant risk of changes invalue,

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial Assets

The Company recognizes financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets include cash and cash eguivalents, trade and other receivables, investments in securities
and other eligible current and non-current assets.
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At initial recognition, all financial assets are measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are
added to the fair value of underlying financial assets on initial recagnition. Trade receivables that do not
contain 3 significant financing component areinitially measured at their transaction price.

Subseguent Measurement

such financial assets are subsequently classified under following three categories according to the purpose
for which they are held. The classification is reviewed at the end of each reparting period,

i. Financial assets at amortised cost

At the date of initial recognition, are held to collect contractual cash flows of principal and Interest on
principal amount outstanding on specified dates. These financial assets are intended to be held until
maturity. Therefore, they are subsequently measured at amortised cost by applying the Effective Interest Rate
{EIR} methed to the gross carrying amount of the financtal asset. The EIR amoartisation 1s Included as |nterest
incomein the profit or loss. The losses arising from Impalrment are recognised 1n the profit or loss,

il. Financial assets at Fair value through other comprehensive Income

At the date of initial recognition, are held to collect contractual cash flows of principal and Interest on
principal amount outstanding on specified dates, as well as held for selling. Therefore, they are subsequently
measured at each reporting date at fair value, with all fair value movements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI). Interest income calculated using the effective Interest rate (EIR) method,
impairment gain or loss and foreign exchange gain or loss are recognised 0 the Statement of Profit and Loss,
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
is reclassified from the OCI to Statement of Frofit and Loss.

iii . Financial assets at Fair value through profit or loss

Al the date of initial recognition, Financial assets are held for trading, or which are measured neither at
Amortised Cost nor at Fair Value through OCIH Therefore, they are subseguently measured at each reporting
date at fair value, with all fair value movements recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss,

Trade Receivables

A Receivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if itis in respect to the amount due from customers on
account of goods sold or services rendered In the ordinary course of business. All debts and advances are
reviewed by the management at the year end by taking into account their age, performance of job, complaints
received from customers and other factors. Provision is made by the management after taking into
consideration all relevant facts.

Investment in equity Shares

Investments in Equity Securities are subsequently measured at fair value through Profit and Loss., Any
subsequent fair value gain or loss is recognized through Profit or Loss.

Investments in mutual Funds

Investments in Mutual Funds are subsequently measured at fair value through Profit and Loss. Any
subsequent fair value gain or loss is recegnized through Profit or Loss Account,

Investrments in bonds/debenture

Investments in bonds/debenture are subsequently measured at fair value through Profit and lLoss. Any
subsequent fair value gain or loss is recognized through Profit or Loss Account

Derecognition

The company derecognizes a financial assetwhen the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assetexpire or it transfers the financial asser and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109,

Impairment

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For al| other financial assets, expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at |ifetime ECL. The amount
of expected credit losses {or reversal) thatis required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the
amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profitor loss.
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b) Financial Liabilities

The Company recognizes financial liabilities when It becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial liabilities include long-term and short-term loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and
other eligible current and non-current liabilities,

Initial Measure ment

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the release of financial liabilities, which are not atfair value through profitor loss, are added to the fair
value of underlying financial liabilities on initial recognition. Trade payables that do not contain a
significantfinancing companent are initially measured at their transaction price

Subseguent Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

i. Financial liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading, The
Company has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial measurement recognition at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are at each reporting date with
all the changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

ii. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method ("EIR"). Amortised costis calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profitand Loss,

Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Apayableis classified as trade payable' if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased
or services received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid, Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless paymentis not due within 12 months after the reporting
period.

Derecognition

A Financial Lability iz derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
Bxpires.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amount of Property, plant and equipments, Intangible assets arereviewed ateach Balance Shest
date to assess impairment if any, based on internal / external factors, An assetis treated as impaired, when
the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value, being higher of valuein use and net selling price. &n
impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year inwhich an asset
is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised In prior accounting period is reversed, if there has
been an improvement in recoverable amount.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

An entity shall account far a contract with 2 customer when all of the following criteria are met:
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. the parties to the contract have approved the contract (in writing, orally or in accordance with other
customary business practices) and are committed to perform the irrespective obligations;

. the entity can identify each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred;

. the entity can identify the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred;

. the contract has commercial substance (i.e. the risk, timing or amount of the entity’s future cash flows
i5 expected to change as a result of the contract); and
. it is probable that the entity will collect the consideration ta which it will be entitled in exchange for

the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer,

I evaluating whether collectability of an amount of consideration Is probable, an entity shall consider only
the customer’s ability and intention to pay that amount of consideration when it i5 due. The amount of
consideration to which the entity will be entitled may be less than the price stated in the contract if the
consideration is variable because the entity may offer the customer a price concession

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of product is recognised at the pointin time when control of the asset is transferred 1o the
customer, usually on dispatch of the goods from the factory/storage area/port respectively. Revenue from the
sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and
allowances, trade discounts and velume rebates.

Other income

a. Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective
interest rate.

b. Dividend income 1s accounted in the period in which the right to receive the same is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the same

¢, Export Incentives, interest on bonds & debenture and Insurance Claims are accounted for on receipt basis.

d. Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and itis probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Employee Benefits

a) Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees’ state insurance, labour welfare fund,
employee pension scheme, provident fund etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of
contribution reguired to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. The above benefits are
classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further defined obligations beyond the
manthly contributions.

b) Defined benefit plans

Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity are considered as defined benefit plan and determined on
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method at the balance shest date. Actuarial Gains or
Losses through re-measurement of the net obligation of a defined benefit liability or asset is recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income, Such re-measurements are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in
subsequent periods, Other costs are accountad for in Statement of Profit and Loss,

c) Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as shont
term employes benefits,

Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc., and the
expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized during the periad in which the employes renders refated
service,

d) Other Employee Benefits

Entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognized when they accrue to employess, Sick leave can
only be availed while annual leave can either be availed or encashed subject to a restriction an the maximum
number of accumulation of leave, The Company determines the liability for such accumulated leaves using
the Projected Accrued Benefit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date.

Job Expenses

The expenses incurred on various jobs by our customers and others for which the claims bills are received in
succeeding years have been provided for on estimate basis. The claim exceeding the amount of provisions are
accounted for in the year in which settied.
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Claims realised
Claims realised for material lost or damaged are credited to Purchases in the year of settlement.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costincludes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement
of barrowings . Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized, (if any). All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur,

Income Taxes

Income tax is comprised of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in eguity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current tax:

Current tax |5 the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable profit
differs fram ‘prafit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible under the
Income Tax Act, 1961,

Current tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting period for the amounts
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.,

Deferred tax :

Deferred tax is recognized using balance sheat approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabllitles and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose at
reparting date. Deferred income tax assets and labilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income
inthe years |nwhich those temporary differences are expected 1o be recovered or settled.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary difference can be
utilized, In case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit,
deferred tax assets are not recognized,

Deferred tax labilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. However, in case of
temparary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than
business combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognized, Also, for temporary differences if any that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill,

deferred tax llabilities are not recognized,

Off-setting of assets and liabilities:

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or 1o realize the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously,

In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax labilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authorily on the Company.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event exists and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding to settle such
cbligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated.

Adizclosure for a contingent liability is made when thereis a possible obligation or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of
such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When thereis a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or
disclosureis made,

a1
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Segment Reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacture, supply and execution of Industrial
Refrigeration and Air conditioning systems, As the basic nature of these activities is governed by the same set
of risks and returns, therefore, has only one reportable segment.

Cash Flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows, The cash flows
from aperating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Foreign Currency

Initial Recognition:

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in fareign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spol rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
fareign currencies are translated at the functional currency spol rates ofexchange at the reporting date.
Foreign exchange gains and |osses resulting from the settement of such transactions and from the translation

of monetary assets and liabllities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognized in the Statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of
profit and loss, within finance costs, All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/ (losses).

MWon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costin a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value ina
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item {i.e., translation differences on items
whase fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCl or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively)

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Lease

Right of Use Assets

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset, on a lease-by-lease basis, to measure that right-of-use assetan
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial application.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised. Initial direct costs incurred
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment test.

Lease Liabilities

The Company recognise a lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on a lease by lease basis

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
|ease commencement date if the interest rate implicitin the lease is not readily determinable.
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Short-term Leases and leases of low-value assets

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a |ease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases thatare considered of
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Fair Value Measurements
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies
mentioned above.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
# |1t the principal market for the asset or liability,

OR
= |n the absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;
= Llevel 1- Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities.
= level 2- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
= Level 3- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"} notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA
amended the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

(@] Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements — The amendments require companies to disclose their
material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information,
together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of
primary users of general-purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have

any significant impact on its financial statements.
(b) Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes — The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on

transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the
recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 [recognition exemption) so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on Initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact on its financial
statements.

{c) Ind AS B = Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors = The amendments will help
entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in
accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition,
accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require Ttems in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect
this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements,

a3



il

28

ERL

papuedsns fuend v spokig
s=aufiord uy spalug
ZE PR EL RS

pepusdens feed s spafy
seaifioud Uy gpaiy

ET0L o 1L E 5y

E0L

SIEAA £ LB} auUoiy

e

e 7-|

Jeal | iR ssan

10 Popiad € 10] JIVID U1 Ny

(stpE U =)

- O] S 51 SSalb0ld U RO FERdieD J0 By |

!

raes

oL
(=47

fososl |

(G p—

E20Z Py /¢ ¥ s ey

pauinbo g gy Wodoud v peeeden Loy SsT)

=0f aup Buunp sLogrpy
Z2IT VPI 1SLE B S8 souepg

pednbg g ey Yy upseEces) Ly S5

s Ay Buep S ooppyy
LZ0Z 'y 1510 18 S2 aeEy

{suppEry Uy =)

EORES

seaBoud Ui o, B
L "ON SION \pA peay T

LI3BG

LSL

951

E6'HS

ET0E s e B sy

ELERG

Ty

88

Ko

Z00Z \PR BB Sy
angep, Buriies sy

DEZLE

SEHE

0L 58

BE'GEL

C20E e L B ey

2Lz
41
BEEMET

113
G0

ZED
PG
BEYS

20

25’19

BEE
1591

HoUBRLA, | SES0CED U
mafay o dnap
ZE0E WMEp SIE B Sy

e
00'202
LOR0E'E

EETE
Fiol
GLFHE

@ar

okL

A

&
THEEL

ousgm | sesadsp g
ssfay o fan

1202 ‘ixhy LD IE Sy
LonEDe pIELICaY

BLSLLY

[P

95°EL

arlL

ZaBglL

ET0E UnuE 1516 1B B

Sy
EVEE
ISTLE'E

09'6L

EFOLE

EED

£

0088

Za'8al

spaugEnbe 200

ey Buynp o uegym | spesocsi)
ol ag Bl SonDy

20T Y S0 12 oy

i
DLPeE
05 Z0LE

SLHE
ZLEL

BEE
&5

£l
5.0

Fel

amnpay
‘B amaing

Pary:eei

spaugEnpe a0

o ap Bunp go v | spesocs]
s e Buurp suonppy

1202 ey Bl ESY

anen Buylien ssan

e
PR seyoNEd

(=upEr up =)

JNEICIINIOE O LNV Il ALB0R 2




Frick India Limited

3, INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars EDP Software Design & Total

Gross Carrying Value (Cost)
As at 01st April, 2021 193.45 6291 256.36
Additions during the year -
Disposals during the year -

Other adjustments -
As at 31st March, 2022 193.45 62.91 256,36

Additions during the year 1.37 1.22 2,69
Disposals during the year -

Other adjustments
As at 31st March, 2023 194.82 64.23 259.05

Accumulated Amortisation

As at O1st April, 2021 16528 52.15 22143
Charge for the year 11.39 2.22 14,11
On disposals -

As at 31st March, 2022 181.17 54.37 235,54
Charge for the year 6.77 2.36 913
On disposals -

As at 31st March, 2023 187.94 56.73 244.67

Met Carrying Value
As at 31st March, 2022 12.28 8.54 20.82
As at 31st March, 2023 6.88 7.50 14.38

3.1 Amount spent for EDP software would be utilised for 3 years from the date of its occurrence and amount spent on Design and Development

wiould be utilised for 5 years from the date of its occurrence.
3.2 The Amortisation of the above mentioned intangible assets would be on the basis of stated useful life as assessed by management.
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4 A MON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS - NON TRADE INVESTMENTS

{Bs in Lakhs}
[SNo PARTICULARS Face Units. As al 31st March, | Units As at 31st March,
. (Rs)
(i} QUOTED-LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
{a) |Investment in Equity Shares
{at Fair Valus Through Profit & Loss)
Equity Shanes of Axis Bank Limited 200 - 1.600.00 1247
Equity Shares of DLF Limited 2.00 - 12,500.00 A7.56
Equity Shares of Jindal Steel & Power Lid .00 - 30000 1.60
Equity Shares of | T C Ltd 1.00 1.100.00 422 T.e00.00 17.56
Equity Shares of Canara Bank 1000 11, 100D 31.58 11100000 .
Equity Shares f ON G C 500 19.350.00 222 23 250.00 a1
Equity Shares of Tata Consultancy Services Lid 1.00 1.408.00 A5.14 1.408.00 5264
Equity Shanes of Tata Steel Lid. 1.00 6, 00000 627 1,100.00 14.38
Equity Shares of HDFC Bank Ltd. 1.00 400.00 GA4 A0 5.08
Equity Shares of Gas Authonty of India Lid. 10.00 3.188.00 337 2,132.00 332
Equity Shares of ICICI Bank Limited. 200 - - 1,740.00 121
Equity Shanes of Power Finance Corporation 10.00 - - 2 (601,00 235
Equity Shanes of Hem Motocorp Lid. 2.00 150,00 352 150.00 345
Equity Shares of Larsen & Toubmo Lid, 2.00 120,00 260 207000 3658
Equity Shares of Hindustan Zinc Lid. 200 2.000.00 587 2, 000.00 619
Equity Shanes of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories 500 20000 ] 2000040 BL6A
Equity Shares of Infosys Limited 500 - = 2.2300.00 4196
Equity Shanes of Hindustan Uniever Limied 1.00 - - 230.00 AT
Equity Shanes of Hindustan Petrodeurn Corporation Lid. 10,00 - - 1,500.00 A.04
Equity Shares of HDFC Lid 200 10000 263 10400600 i
Equity Shares of Hindaloo Indusiries Lid 1.00 o000 284 F00.00 3.50
Equity Shares of Indusind Bank 10000 150,00 1.60 150.00 1.40
Equity Shares of Indian i Corporation 10000 1,500.00 147 1,000.00 119
Equity Shanes of Mamnuti Suzuki India Lid S.00 50,00 4.15 50.00 3Ta
(b} |Investment in Equity Schemes of Muteal Fund
{at Fair Value Through Profit & Loss)
HDFC Mid Cap Opportunities Fund = = 74,500 66 2516
Canara Robeco Equity Diversified- Regular Growth 364.53 ora 364.53 081
Canara Robaco Emenging Equities - Regular Growth 542 BT 084 542 87 085
Motilal Ozwal Nasdag 100 Fof Regular Plan Growth 334.B71.51 T3A6 33487151 TI.30
Axis Bluechip Fund - Regular Growth - - 184, 560 05 82 65
Axis Multicap Fund - Regular Growth = - 231,696.02 42.91
Hiotak Emerging Equity Fund - Direct Plan - Growth = = 46,482 20 ar.m
Canara Robeco Consumer Trends Fund - Regular Growihy 1,157 60 o.ra 1,157.60 L]
(Formedy Hnown As Canam Robeco FOR.CE Fund
Regular Growth )
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4 A NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS - NON TRADE INVESTMENTS

[Rs I Lakhs)
o PARTICULARS Ut | Asstdamach2023| Ut | AsatdistMaren, 201
Cafara Hobeoo Blue Chap Eqmalty Fund Regular 7 00668 nE2 2006 68 oaz
Growih (Formerty Known As Canars Robeco
Lange Cap v Fund - Regular Growth)
Canara Fobeco Equily Hytind Fund Fegularn Growih {Formery 30566 075 30566 o7
K As Canada Robeco Balance- Reguiar Growth)
Huotak Standend Multcsp Fund - Direct Plan - Grosth - 43,378.80 24 67
Lin Flexd Cap Fund 643228 14.30 6,482 28 15,80
Hotak Hiuechip Fund 2, H56.74 1061 2 B56.T4 10.53
wnlsal Orswal Growih Opportunities Fund-Sees § 97703132 o7 68| 49134481 5026
lcil Prudential Balanced Advantsge Fund - Dwect Plan - 41,2608.60 23.85 41,260.60 2235
(Crvwih
Mirae Asset Large Cap Fund 37,282.35 28.58 - -
Kotak Equity Opportunilies Fund Growth Regubss Pian 14,042 18 268.53 - -
fcact Prudential irdia Opportunities Fund Growth 175 2304 BT - -
Hulf: Mid-Cap Opportunities Fund Regular Plan Growth 27,713 2T.64 - -
Ii fE-quaity Opportunity Fund 104, 527.30 .96 - -
fg) | ivestment in Debis Funds
{2t Fair Value Through Profit & Loss)
Tats Short Term Bond Fund Direct Flan - Growth 1 . 93, 86667 3969
Hafc Corporate Bond Fund 26524234 F2oo| 26524238 €032
10.50% Inifusineg Bank L Perpeteal 2024 - - 16.00 184,68
L&T Liguid Fund - Regular Growth - 122079 3567
Idfe Artitrage Fund - Growih - (Direct Flan) 258 66441 T6.31| 258,664.41 7220
Axis Banking & Peu Debit Fund Regutar Growth . . 3,831.69 4203
Idtc Barking & Psu Debt Fund Regubar Plan Growth - 411,791 51 8243
Halfi: Liguaind Fumnd - Feular Plan - Growth 11.06 048 1.277.23 53.03
Hudfc Ovemighit Fund Direct Plan Growth Option 4,886.27 16264 4, 88627 154.28
Aditya Birts Sun Life Corporate Bond Fund Growth Direct . . 8,305 43 6321
Ptan
okl Prudential Shoet Tenm Fund - Direct Plas - Growth 175 664,90 8551 17566490 2967
Ciption
Aditya Birle Sun Lite Banking & Fau Debt Fund Growth - 5,830.51 17.74
Direct Fian
Muvame Crossover Opportunies Fund Sees & (Formerty 7M 83448 8719 7OES581.26 90135
Etebweiss Crosstver Opporunibes Fund Series i)
Nippon india E1f Ligusd Beea 7a0.33 730 T00.20 7.00
Adsitys Barts Sun Life Liquid Fund Growih Reguisr Mlan T 10 5 GBE.56 19.37
Tt Overrighd Fund Heg Growih 11,632 58 136.98 - -
I Cevernighit Fund Reg Growth 3328 (ED] - -
Hufe Cvemight Fund Regular Growth 16.76 055 - -
St Owernighil Fund Fegular Growth 2,747.97 2916 - -
(Cafara Robeos Banking And Psu Debt Fund 2459 60262 25320 - -
It Crigil Gill 2087 Index Fund 2,851,066.75 300.78 - -
Eﬁyqﬁm:{sgﬂmm#mmmm 1,692 64 37.68 - -
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[Rs. 1n Lakhs]
5 No. PARTICULARS Face Ualue Units As at 315t March, 2023 Units A5 at 315t March, 2022
(Rs.]
it Prudential Comstant Maturily Gilt Fund Growth 511,386.59 103.50 -
Canara Aobaco Liquid Fund Regalar Growth 3557 0.96 -
Axis Mifty Aza Bond Plus 5dl Ape 2026 50050 EHF Fof Collaction 470 A489,360,77 51,29
Sbi Cpse Bond Plus 5d| Sep 2026 50650 Index Fund 241882894 251,30
MWippon Indla Aaa Psu Bd 5di Sep 26 &5 492, 673.58 50.82 -
Ak Growth Indla Fund 3,267.87 28,84 =
Heppan Indis Nivesh Lakshya Fund 1,355974.73 19983
Shi Magnum Gilt Fund 181 364.91 100.00
{d) Investrment In Bonds/Debentire
{at Fair Vadue Theough Profit & Loss)
|intia Infrastrscture Finance Company Lid. Tax Frae Bonds §,500.00 054 &, 500,00 nn
Hational Highwaya Suthaority Of India BST.00 10.07 5700 122
Wip: Tax Fres Bonds 150000 2409 1.500.00 2506
| Mational Housing Bark Tax Free Bonds 361.00 2383 361.00 2512
7.20% Power Finance Corporation Lid, 2035 10,00 . 00 10.00 100,50
Edied Land Limitad 20,040 210,84
7.96 Rec Ld 2030 33,00 400,81
TOTAL 3,074.42 240056
Agprogate amaunt of quoted investmentsmarket value thoroal 107442 2440 55
Aggregate amount ol upguoted investments/marke? value thereol 4 -
Aggregate provision fof impalement In value of Investrments
48 EURHE.N'I' IH.U'EEI'MEH'I'S- [Rs. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Face Units: As pt 315t March, 2023 Units s it 31t March, 1022
Walue (R
()| GUDTED-SHORT TEAM INVESTMENTS
|al| imvestment in Bonds :
{at Fair Value Through Profit & Loss)
Ededweiss A5 Reconstruction Co. Lid, 115,00 134,04
TOTAL - 134.04
Aggregate amaunt ol guoted irvestments/mar ket value thereol 13404

Aggregate amaunt of unguoted investmants/market value theraol
fggregate peovision for impaiement in value of Inwestrments
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5. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS-LOANS {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Az at I1st March, As at 31t March,
2023 2022
(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Loans to Employess 16.19 17.00
TOTAL 16.19 17.00
5.1 Above Loans and Advances are maturing after 12 months
6. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS-OTHERS |Rs. in Lakhs)
' Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Fixed Depasit with Banks including accrued interest fwith remaining maturity of more than 12 1,022.81 #4,193.55
maonths#
{Unsecured and Considered Good)
Earnest Money deposit 43.01 25.64
Secunty Deposit 47 83 74.59
TOTAL 1,118.65 4,299.78

i Includes deposits pledged with bank to the extent of Ks. 851.2% lakhs (Previous Year Bs 3934.28 Iakhs} against overdraft & margin money for

performance guarantees issued.

7. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/{LIABILITIES) {MET) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for gratuity 15704 140,63
Disallowance u/fs 438 41.78 30.32
Provision for Warranty Expenses 17.30 13,50
Provision for Doubtful Debts 45.30 518
Sub Total 266.32 189,64
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation 52.30 G5, 78
Fair Value of Investmeants 20,86 2156
Sub Total £2.16 91,34
TOTAL 124.16 98.30
8. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Deferred Rent Expenses 0.59
Prepaid Expenses 4.56
TOTAL 4.56 0.59
9, INVENTORIES {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 315t March,
2023 2023
{#4s taken and certified by the Management)
-Raw materials & Compaonents 5,250.81 3,791.29
WP, Factory 1,931.84 1,223.05
-Finished Goods 1,210.71 [ R
Stores & Spare Parts 601.52 51150
TOTAL B,994 88 6,129.79
10. TRADE RECEIVABLESE [Rs. In Lakhs)
- Particulars As at 315t March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
- Considered Goaod - Unsecured 8,7659.68 1505 24
- Credit impaired 20,63
B,769.68 7.615.87
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 195.88 20,63
TOTAL 8,573.80 7,595.24

@ Read with Mate no. 46
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10.1 Ageing of Trade Receivables is as under;

{Rs. In Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particular MotDue | pessthan® E Months- 1-2 Yaars 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Manths 1¥ears ¥ ears
As at 31st March, 2023
i} Undisputed Trade 473346 2.533.07 192.20 538,51 107,00 1B0L0E B.324.79
Receivables-Considered good|
fii)  Undisputed Trade -
Receivables-Credit iImpaired
fiii} Disputed Trade - 1140 647 40.20 125.00 25832 445.39
Recelvables-Considered good|
\iv] Disputed Trade - = Z . .
Heceivables-Credit Impaired
4, 723.46 2.544.47 198.67 528.71 236.00 438.38 8,769.68
Less: Allowance for credit 195.88
lasses
Tetal Trade Receiviles B,573.80
As at 31st March, 2022
il Undisputed Trade 3,512.90 Z,366.58 314.07 484,65 28555 A455.48 7419.24
Recelvables-Considered good|
) Undisputed Trade - - - - - -
Receivables-Credit iImpaired
{ill} Disputed Tradse - 487 - 18,60 103,16 196 63
Receivables-Considered good)|
{iv] Disputed Trade - - - -
Receivables-Credit Impaired
3,512.50 £A41.45 314.07 484,65 304,15 558,65 7,615.87
Less: Allowance for credit 20,63
losses
Total Trade Receivbles 7.585.24
11. CASH AND BANK BALANCES {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
{a) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
{[jRalance with Banks
sCurrent Accodunt 120,11 134.87
() Fixed Deposit with Banks including accrued interest {with original maturity of 3 months
ar less) 1.62 1,730.54
{iii) Cash on Hand 7.72 7.54
13145 1.872.05
b} OTHER BANEK BALAMCES
(Il Earmarked-Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 813 7.35
{il§ Fiked Deposit with Banks including accrued intorest {with ariginal maturity of more than
3 months but remaining maturity of 12 months or less#
5,602.86 3,250.92
TOTAL 9,742.44 5,131.22

# Includes deposits pledged with Bank to the extent of Rs, 876153 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 361608 lakhz| against overdraft & margin money for

guarantees issued.

12, CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS-LOANS [Rs. In Lakhs)
Particufars As at 315t March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
|Unsecured and Considered Good)
Loans to Employesas 51.43 38.65
TOTAL 51.43 38.65

100




Frick India Limited

13. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS-OTHERS {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Ag at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 i
Security Daposit 58.12 1470
Earnast Money deposit 3333 44.79
Other [refer nate 54) 181.10 15.19
TOTAL 27255 84,18
14, OTHER CURRENT ASSETS |Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulirs As at 315t March, Az at 315t March,
2023 2022
Advances 1o 51aff and Erectors 37.42 3552
fahyances to Suppdiers 1,158.98 554,54
Balances with Gowt, Authorities 430.61 30382
Prepald Expenses §7.07 55.48
Dihers ™ 25,00 54.07
TOTAL 1,715.48 1,403,43

# Amount Deposited with metus! fund house for purchase of mutual fund units.
*Including In previous year R 46,96 Lokhe of Oxygen Mant purchased by the Cormpany to be given towards C5A expenses in the FY 2022-23.

15. SHARE CAPITAL [Ra. In Lakhs)
Particulars. As gt 31zt March, 2023 As av31st March, 2022
Authorised
30,00,000 Equity Shares {P.¥. 30,00,000) of Rs. 10/- each 300,00 300.00
Issued, Subscribed & fully paid up
5,99,975 Equity Shares (PY. 5,99,975) of Rs, 10/- each G0, 0 G0, 00
TOTAL 60.00 000
15.1 The recanciliation of the number of sharés autstanding is st out below:
Particulars -As at 31st March, 2023 As at 315t March, 2022
No. of Shares N, of Shares
Eauity Shares at the beginning of the year 590,975 550,975
Aded: Shares ssued during the year .
Less: Shares cancelled during the wear -
Couity Shares at the end of the year 500,975 500,975

15.2 Terms/ rights artached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having face value of As 10/« per share, Each equity shareholder i= entitled to one vote par share

In the svent of winding up af the Company, the squity shateholders shall be entitled to be recelve remaining atsetd ol the Company alter payment af

all [eabifithes in the ratio of the amount of capital paid upon such equity shares.

15.3 For the period of five years immadiately preceding the balance sheet date:
- The company has not allotted amny shares pursuant to contracts without payment being raceived in cash.
The company has not allotted any shares as fully paid wp by way of Bonus shares,

The campany has not bought Back ary shares,

154 The details af sharohalders holding mora than 5% Shares in the company as given below:

Name of Share Holders His at 315t March, 2023 s at 31st March, 2022
Mo, of Shares BE Mo, of Shares %
Mr.Jasmohan Singh [Joint Holdar)* 128,501 2142 128,501 2142
Mir. lasmohan Singh (lomt Hobdes) = B, 709 14.55 85,709 14.55
Dr. fang Bahadur Singh * 120,001 20,00 120,001 20,00
M. Mahendra Girdharilal 33364 539 32,3604 339
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"in terms of the Settlement Agreement dated 22.12.2011 wpheld by the orders dated 1510020102 and 06102014 of Hon'bie Superior Cowrt,
Matsachusetts, USA and arder 13,05, 2016 of Appabiate Cowrl, USA and the share transler form executed by Dr, lang Bahadur Singh in terma of arder
dated 05.03.2015 and 08.06.2016 of Hon'ble Superior Cowrt, Massachasemts, USA, 120,001 sheres of the Company [l.e. 20% of the Pald up Share
Capital) have been transferred In favour of Mr. Jzasmohan Singh, |aintly holding for himself along with Mr, Surmohan Singh, Ms. Jaslesn Kaur G Dody and
b5, Gurleen Kaur and Mrlasmaohan Singh individually holds 3500 Equity Shares a5 on 31st March 2023 a5 well as on 315t March 2022

**Dya 1o the demise of Mrs. Pameta Manmohan Singh wo. late Shri Manmohan Singh, the foint holding of Equity Shares of 89,709 ks now In the
favour of existing survivor br. Jasmohan Singh, jointly holding for himself along with Mr. Gurmohan Singh, Ms. Jasleen Kaur G Dedy and
s, Guresn Kaur,

15.5 The detalls of Sharcholding of Promoters is as below:

Shares held by promoters at 31st March 2023:

5.Ma, Promaoter Name [Ma. of Shares % of total ¥ Change during the year 2022-23
Shares

1 lasmahan Singh {oint Shareholding] 209,710 3495

2 lasmahan Singh 8,500 142

E M= Jasloon Kaur & Dody 0,835 1.64

| Gurbean Kaur 3,300 .55

5 Gurmohan Singh 7.801 0A7T

B Gurmit Singh 4,375 073 {0.17)

7 Jagrmit Singh 4,675 O.7R

] Soavu Singh 3,925 0.65

g Lali Sarbjit Singh 3,551 o.50

10 Jang Bahadur Singh 120,001 20000

11 P 5 Kold Hold Industries {P) Lid 11,845 1.98

Shares held by promoters at 31st March 2022

S.Ma, Pramoter Nama Na. of Shiras % af total % Change durlng the year 2021-22
Shares

1 lasmohan Singh {loint Sharcholding) 209,710 3495 *

2 lz=mohan Singh B 500 1.42

3 laslesn Kaur & Dody 9.R315 1.G4 =

i Gurleen Kaur 3,300 0.55 -

5 Gurmahan Singh 2,801 D.47 -

b Gurmit Singh 5375 0.5 -

7 Iagmit Simgh 4,675 0.78 -

8 Sonu Singh 3,925 D65 (0.02]

a Lali Sarbyit Singh 3.551 0.59 -

10 lang Bahadur Singh 120,001 0,00 -

11 i & Kold Hold industries {7} Ltd 11,865 194 -

16. Other Equity
{Rs. In Lakhg)

Particulars Reserve & Surplus Other Comprehensive Total
Income (QCI)
Ratalned Genoral Reserve Items that will not ba
Eamings Reclassited to proidt or
loss

Re-measurement of the

nel defined benett plans
Balance as at 1st April 2021 18,763.94 (67.18) 18.696.78
Profit for the vear 1,636.34 1,636.34
Dividend {18.00) - {16.00)
Transfer from Retained Earnings {1,618.34) 1,618.34 -
Other Comprehensive income for (1114} {11.14)
the year
As at 31st March, 2022 - 20,382.28 (78.30) 20,303.98
Profit for the year 2a82.21 2.852.21
Dividend {18.00) (1B.00)
Transfer from Retained Eamings (2,834.21) 2,834,219 .
Hhier Comprehansive income for (22,77} (2277}
the period
As at 318t March, 2023 - 23,216.49 {101.07) 23,115.42

16.1 The Board of Directors has proposed a dividend on Equity Shares at Rs,4.00 per share (Previous Year Rs.3.00 per Share jof
Rs. 24.00 lakhs is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting..

Mature of Reserves:-
A. Retained Earning - The balance consist of surplus retained from earned profits after payment of dividend and taxes theron.

E. General Reserve- Amount transferred { apportioned from retained earning is in accordance with Companies Act, 2013
wherein apportion of profit is apportioned to General Reserve, before Company can declare dividend.

C. Re-measurement of the net defined benefit plans -Actuarial gains & losses for defined benefit plans are recognised through
GCl In the perled In which they occure. Re-measurements are nol reclassified to Profit & Loss in subsequent periods.
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17. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-BORROWINGS (Rs. In Lakhs)
' Non Current Current®
Particulars As-at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022 | March, 2023 March, 2022
(i} Secured Borrowings
{a) Term Loan from Kotak 812 - 1.88 -
Mahindra Prime Ltd
{b) Term Loan from Canara Bank 1.88 .21 533 4.94
TOTAL 11.00 .21 7.2 4.94

* Amount payable during next 12 months, included under the head “"Current Financial Liabilities-Borrowings™ Note no.19
17.1 Term Loan consist to the extent of

a) Term Loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. includes

(i) Rs. 11.00 Lakhs Payable in Monthly instaliment for 5 Years commencing from 5th April 2023 whichis secured against
KIA Saitos HTK MT Petrol Car valued of Rs. 14.07 Lakhs. Borrowings outstanding as on 31.03.2023 is Rs.11.00 Lakhs
includes current maturity of Rs.1.88 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. Nil including current maturity of Rs Nil).The company is
in process for creation of charges (security) in this respect.

b) Term Loan from Canara Bank includes

{i) Rs. B.49 Lakhs Payable in Monthiy installment for 5 Years commencing from 27thJan 2019 which is secured against
Maruti Vitara Brezza VDI-VBRDBVA Car valued of Rs. 9.44 Lakhs. Borrowings outstanding as on 31.03.2023 is Rs.2.36
Lakhs includes current maturity of Rs. 1.75 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 3.98 Lakhs including current maturity of Rs. 1.62 Lakhs).

{ii) Rs. 5.74 Lakhs Payablein Monthly installment for 5 Years commencing from 28th Jan 2019 whichis secured against Maruti
Baleno Delta Car valued of Rs. 6.49 Lakhs. Borrowings outstanding as on 31.03.2023 is Rs.1.45 Lakhs includes current
maturity of Rs. 1.23 Lakhs (Previous Y ear Rs. 2.59 Lakhs including current maturity of Rs. 1.14 Lakhs).

(lif} Rs. 4.50 Lakhs Payable in Monthly installment for 5 Years commencing frem 29th April2019 whichis secured against Tata
MotorsTiago X2 Car valuedof Rs. 5.65 Lakhs.Borrowings cutstanding ason31.03.2023 is Rs.1.38 Lakhs includes current
maturity of Rs. 0.95 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 2.26 Lakhs including current maturity of Rs. 0.88 Lakhs).

(iv) Rs. 6.60 Lakhs Payable in Monthlyinstallment for 5 Years commencing from 29th April 2019 whichis secured against
Maruti Suzuki Dzire £X1 Car valuedof Rs. 8.54 Lakhs. Borrowings outstanding as on 31.03.2023 is Rs. 2.02 Lakhsincludes
current maturity of Rs. 1.40 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 3.32 Lakhs including current maturity of Rs. 1.30 Lakhs).

18.PROVISIONS NON CURRENT {R5. In Lakhs)
Particolars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Provisions for Employess Benefit
Prowislon for Gratuity 506,56 442,09
Provision for Earned Leave G4,28 4567
TOTAL 570.84 491.76
19, CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-BORRDOWINGS {Rs. In Lakhs)
Parthulars Az at 315t March, As at 31st March,
1023 2022
Secured
(i} Warking Capital Loans
() From Banks
Overdraft from Canara Bank 205,54 1,061.03
Owerdraft from HDFC Bank 349,91 27606
Loan against Buyer's Credit 1,151.72 215.88
{ii} Current Maturities of Long Term Gorrowlings (refer note no, 17): 7.21 4.94
TOTAL 1,714.43 1,557.91
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1%.1 Working Capital Loans refered above to the extent of:

al Rs. 555.50 Lakhs (Previous Year 133709 Lakhs | pertain to Overdraft Limits utilised from bank secured against pledge of our own FOR amounting to
Rs. 3818.16 Lakhs (Previous Year 329527 Lakhs), read with note no. 47,

b) Rs. 1151.72 Lakhs (Previous Year 21588 Lakhs | pertain to Buyer's Credit from bank which Is primary secured against stocks & books debts and
collateral against land & buitding (Industrial Property i.e. land and building in the name of the company situated at 21.5 KM, Main Mathura Road,

Faridabad, measuring 19 acres 6 kanals and 2 marlas {795975%.33 sg. m1s} and plant & machinery.

20. TRADE PAYABLES-CURRENT (Rs. In Lakhs)
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
P
R 2023 2022
Total cutstznding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises@ 28.13 2741
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprizes and small enterprizsesi 2,089 81 1,508 86
TOTAL 2,077.94 1,536.27
@ Refer note nao. 35
20.1 Ageing of Trade Payables is as under: {R=s. In Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particular Mot Due Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
year Years
As at 315t March 2023
1] Undisputed dues-MSME 1541 2,52 - - - 2813
i) Undisputed dues-Others 1,353.05 49684 17.30 12.48 130,14 204581
{iii} Disputed dues-MSME -
{iv} Disputed dues-Others -
Total 1,418.66 499.36 17.30 12.48 130,14 2,077.94
As at 315t March 2022
11} Undisputed dues-MSME 26.77 064 - - - 2741
{ii) Undisputed dues-Others 709,53 627,10 31397 21.83 11643 1,508 86
{iii} Disputed dues-MSME - - - 2 -
{iv} Disputed dues-Cthars - = 5 - -
Tatal 736,30 627.74 33.97 21.83 116.43 1,536.27
21 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-CURRENT {Rs. In Lakhs)
b e As at 31st March, As at 315t March,
g 2023 2022
(i) Dther Liabilities
{a) Unclaimed/Unpaid Dividerd s B8.13 7.35
[b) Payables to emnployees 562.04 324,31
[c | Payabdle tosupplier against services 469 47 520.74
TOTAL 1,039.59 912.40
@ Transfer 1o investor education and protecton fund as and when due
22. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 315t March, As at 315t March,
2023 022
(i) Advances from Customers 4,811.04 2,591.93
[ii} Statutory Dues 267.25 1689:53
(i) Other Lizbilities 147,92 123.48
TOTAL 5,.226.21 2,884.94
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23, PROVISIONS-CURRENT {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2032
(I} Provisions for Employees Benefit
PFrovisicn for Gratuity 120.99 116.67
PFrovision for Earned Leave 6263 34.72
(ii) Other Provisions
Provision for Waranty Expenses BB.7E 53.65
TOTAL 25238 205,04
24, CURREMT TAX LIABILITIES [MET) {Rs. In Lakhs)
e mu.i.::amm As at 315t March,
Provision for Taxes less Advance Tax [Hs 5942.60 Lakh [P Y. As. 5080.77Lakh}} 6a7.84 417,22
TOTAL GET.BY £17.22
25. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Sales of Products 34,377.81 26,826.94
Sales of Services 1,808.03 1;,133.22
Other Operabing Income 96.96 B6.53
TOTAL 36,282.80 28,046.69
|} Disapgregated revenue information (fs: in Lakhs)
Inclia 34,643.62 26,585.27
Qutside Indiz 1,635.18 146142
Total revenue from contracts with customers 35,282.80 28,uE.69

ii] The Company provides agreed upon performance warranty for selected range of products. The amount of liability towards zuch

warranty is as stated in Nate no. 53

26, OTHER INCOME

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 315t

March, 2023 March; 2022 |

Interest Received on fixed depaosit 442,18 363.91
Interest Income on Investment a7.45 56.93
Dividend Received 737 6.02
Insurance Claim Received 29.88
Profil on Sale of property, plant & equipments [ Met) 0.85
Profit on sale of investrment (Met] - Non current 37.73 2031
Miscellenous Income 10.43 1.42
Unrealised Gain due to change in Fair Value of Investment (Net) 32.06 152.55
Other Interest Income 0.59 5.65
Gain an Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Met) 57.79 75.16
Interest Income on Gove Bonds B.59 1132
TOTAL 544,20 725.11
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27.CO5T OF MATERIAL CONSUMED (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st

March, 2023 March, 2022
Raw Material and Components Consumed 25,140,581 20,056.72
Stores and Spares Parts Consumed 422.26 387.62
TOTAL 25,562.77 20,444.34
28. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st

March, 2023 March, 2022
Stock at commencement - Process 1,223.05 333.57
Stock at commencement - Finished 603.55 137.598
1,826.60 471.55
Stock at close - Process 1,5931.84 1,223.05
Stock at close - Finished 1,210.71 603.55
3,142.55 1,826.60
Increase f (Decrease) in Stocks 1,315.95 1,355.05
29.EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st

March, 2023 March, 2022
Salaries , Wages , Bonus , Gratuity & Allowances 4,694.07 4,000.20
Contribution to ESI, Provident & Superannuation Fund 27041 245.23
Staff Welfare Expenses 141.96 93.40
TOTAL 5,106.44 4,338.83
30. FINANCE COST (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 315t For the year ended 31st

March, 2023 March, 2022
Interest an Term Loans 0.78 1.15
Interest to Bank on Overdraft 37.47 50.92
Interest an Income Tax 50.00 22.00
Bank Charges 37.67 T3.72
Bank Commission on Bank Guarantees 72.59 48.52
TOTAL 198.51 196.31
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31. OTHER EXPENSES (Rs In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Power & Fuel 258.86 216.68
Rates & Taxes 117.57 21.18
Rent 45.54 35.Bg
Insurance 45.60 39.02
Repair to Plant & Machinery 76,19 64.02
Repair to Buildings 9.54 14.87
Office Maintenance 8.81 7.55
Yehicle Running & Maintenance 36.05 32.36
Electricity & Water Charges 6,37 5.87
Travelling & Other Incidentsl Expenses 650,93 501.02
Property, plant & Equipments written off 0.36 1.40
Loss on Sale of property, plant & equipments {Net) 0.20
Sundry Administrative Expenses &0.44 46,16
lobis Qutside - Other Expenses 59.25 103.92
Bad Debts / Irrecoverable Advances written off 151.17 39.73
Provizion for Doubtful debts 195.88 20,63
Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charges@ 351.15 302.35
Advertisement, Publicity & 5ales Promotion 86.00 24,72
Freight & Forwarding (including ocean freight) 618,21 418.77
FOC and Warranty Expenses 297.80 G06.20
Commission and Agency Fee 87.34 106.41
Directors' Sitting Fee 26.40 24.75
Loose Tools Written Off 24.43 18.82
Printing & Stationery 13.12 14.56
Communication Expenses 25,52 23.29
Donation 0,27 1.03
Amartisation Expenses on Deposits 0.60 5.38
Expenses against C5R Activities 49.69 44,00
TOTAL 3,303.39 2,740.55

@ Includes Auditors Remuneration
37, CONTINGENT LIARILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As al March 31,2023 | As at March 31,2022
(iHa] Contingent Liakllities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as dobis
Sales TaxWATARCT in respect of matiers in appealy 215 2.19
Cthar Matters
{b) Commitments
Confracts rermaining to be exacuted on captal account (Met of Advances|
33, EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT DURING THE YEAR: (Rs. In Lakhs]
Farticulars 2022-23 2021-22
Capltal Expenditura -
Revenus Expenditure *
Employee Cost 25537 209,830
Cost of Materiats &340 20,512
Other Expenses 11,46 17.25
Total 330.29 307.57
* Inchuded in respective reveme accounts and as certified by the managernent,
34, AMOUNT PAID TO AUDITORS (EXCLUDING TAKES) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-132
faadit For 800 800
Tax Audit Fees oS .75
Carfification/Other Servicas 0.53 4.69
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35. THE MICRD, SMALL AND MEDIIM ENTERPRESES DEVELOPMENT (MSMED) ACT, 2006
Dischosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developrment {MSMED) Act, 2006 are provided &s under for the year 2022-23, to the extent the Company has received intimaticn
from the “Supplicrs™ |as certified by the management) regarding their status wnder the Act

|Rs. In Lakbs)
Particulars Ais b March 31,2023 | fAs at March 31,2022
Principal amount remaining urpaid ta any supplien 28.13 27.41
Interest due thereon remaining wnpaid (o any supplier
Intmrest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amount of tha paymant made to the suppliers
bewend the appointed day during the year il il
Principal amount
Interest

Interest due end payabie for the period of delay in making payment {which has been paid but beyond the apgainted day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006 Kl il

Intarast acerued and rernaining urnpaid il il

Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, uniil such dabe whan the interest dues as abowve are actually

paid 1o the small gnterprise {ar the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006,

il il
36, EARNIMNGS PER SHARE {As. In Lakhs)
Particulars 202223 2021-22

a. Profit after Tax a5 per statement of profie and loss 285321 1,636.34

b Weghted sverage number of Eguity Shares outstanding (Mo's) 599,975 509,975
. Earnings Per Share |EPS] in rupees (face value — Rs 10 per share)

a) Basic EPS 475.40 FEFRE]
] Dibuted EPS 475,40 27273

37, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financlal Risk Factors

The Company's finandal labiliies comprise barrawings and trade & sther payablas. The main purpade of these Bnancial Babilities i to manage finances for the Campany's eparations. The
Coinpany has fsan and other receivables, trade recEivables, cash and thortferm deposity that arise r.'irEL'Hlll {roar its operation. The comparny's acHvities are axpoied to o warieby of Rrancial

rigi from its narmal business operation, The key financial risks inclade market risk [including foreign currency risk. interest rate risk and other price risk], credit risk and liquidity risk

1 MII_‘E risk

Blarket risk s the risk that the fair value or future cash Mows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to fluctuation in market prices, Market risk comprise three Lypes of risk: currency
rate risk, Interest rate risk and other price related risks.

Fimancial instruments affected by market risk includes borrowings, inwestments, trade payables, trade receivables and loans.

{a) Intarast rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctoate because of changes in market Interest rates. Borrowings at varlable rates exposes to
cach flow fisk. Wills all othes variables held comtant, the lollowing tabla demonstrated compasition al fixed and Noating rate bordowing ol the campany and impact of laating rate
bomrowings on company' s profitability,

Particulars As at March3l, 2023 As at Marchdl, 2022
[Rs, i Lakhs) % of Total {Rs. In Lakhs) % of Total
Fived Rate Borrowings 18.21 105 1215 0.7E
Warlabde Rate Borrowings 1,707.22 R G4 1,552.57 98,22
Total Barrowings 1,735.43 1060 DD 1,565.12 100,00
Sensdtivity on variable rate borrowings
Impact on Profit & Loss Acoount Imipact on Egui
Particubars we Y
3l-Mar-23 F1-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Interest Rate Increase by 0.25% (.27} [3.E8] [0.37] (3.88]
Interest Rate decraase by 0.25% 4.27 3.E8 AET i.8E

(b} Foreipn currency risk

Foreign currency risk it the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becawse of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company operates
internationally and have foreign currency trade payables and recefvables and is tharefare, exposad to foreign exchange risk, The Company’s foreign curmancy risk are identified, measurad

and managed at periodic Interval in accordance with Company's Policles.
Thie carrying amounts of tha Compgany™s larsign currency denaminaled monetary asbets and morelory labilitied, not hedged by derivitive introments, 21 the end of the reporting period

ara as follows;
Exposure in foreign Currency not hedged as at March 31, 2023

{As. In Lakhs)
Particulars usoD 1Py Total

Financial Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents - - -
Trada recelvables 14687 - 146.87
Other financials gssets | Including foans) - - -
Financial lisbilties - - -
Trada payabls (7o) |191.01} |270.50)
Borrowings {1,151.72| (1,151,727}
et assets | {iabilities] [1,084.34) 151,01} {1,.275.35)
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Expodure in foreign Cudrency nol hedged a3 at March 31, 20232:-

[Rs, In Lakhs)
S0 1Py Total

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - a
Trade moeivables 164,04 . 16301
Qehar financials assets [ including loans) - - -
Trade payables |74.35) (52.75] (127.30
Bormowings [215.88) - {215.88)
Met assats [ (Habdlities) |126.22) [52.75] [178.97)

Foreign Currency Sens|tvity

The fﬂ"ﬂlﬂ'il‘@ tatde damonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possibie change in foreign currenty to the Indian rupees with all other variables held constant. The impact on company’s
praofit botore tax is due ta changes in the foreign eechange rate for:

[Re. In Lakhs)
As at March3l, 2023 As at March31, 2022
0.25% Increase 0.25% decrease 0.25% Increase 0.25% decrease

LISD Sensitivity (271} 271 [i.32] (.32
JFY Speraitivity (0.48] 0,48 [0.13] (.13
Increases/ | decroasa | in profit or loss [3.25] 318 {0.45] 0.45
Summary of rechange difference accounted in statement of Profit and Loss:

[R5, In Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Net foreign exchange (gainy / bosses shown as other income [67.79] (T6.16}

¢ | Other price Risk

Other price risk & the risk that falr value of a Ainancial instrument will Rocteate due tao change in market trade price. Other Price rsk arises frorm Brancial assets soch as vestment in Equity

Instrumpnts, Mutuiat fands and bonds valued at Fair values. The carrying value of such Financal Instrumants are-

[Rs: In Lakhs]

Particulars As st March 31,2023 | As st March 31,2022

Investmients in Shares 159.E6 351.73
Inwestments in Mutual Funds 247E73 1,453.45
Inwestrment In Bonds/Debenture 435.77 FE3.42

1. Cresit risk

Crodit risk arises from the possibility that countor party may not be abla to sattle thewr obligation as agreed. Crosfit risk prirmanly arises from fnancial assets such as trade recorvablas, ather
balance with banks, loans and ather recelvables.

Irade Receivables: - The maximum expgsure to credit risk is from trade recalvable which are unsecured. The company perlodically assesses the credit quality of counter parties, taking into
the financial condiion, curment economic trends, past experiences and ather factors.

Tha company has a well-defined sales policy to minimize its risk or credit defaults. Qutstanding recelvablies are regularly maonitored and assessad. Impairment analysis 15 performed based on
histaorical data at each reporting date on an Indiviidual basis,

Financiak assats are written off when there Is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as customer fadling b engage in a repayment plan with the company. Where financial assets have
been written off, the company continues to engage In enforcement activity 1o attempt Lo recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised In Profit or loss,

Other Financial Assets: Credit Risk ansing from imyestment in mutval funds and gther balance with bank 15 limited and there 5 no collateral held against these because the counterparties
wre banks and recognised Fnancial insttutions with high credic rating assigned by the international credit reting agencies.

& ageing analysis of the trade 5}
[Rs. in Lakhs]
Past due
Keither due nor
fadir il Impalred Upto & months 610 12 months Abowve 12 months Tvea

As at March 31, 2023
nseeuirad 471345 2544 AT 198,67 130309 876968
Less Allcrwmance for expected credit losses {155.848)
Met Total 4,733,456 2,544.47 198.67 1,303.00 8,573.80
As at March 31, 2022
Unsocunad 3,512.50 244145 114,07 1,347.45% Ta15.87
Less- Allowance for papocted crodit losses [20.63)
Mot Total 3,512.90 1,841.45 314,07 1,347.45 7.595.24
Mavement in the allowance in Dowbtful Debts; [Rz. In Lakhs)

Particulars As st March 31,2023 | As at March 31,2022
Balance at baginning of the year 2063 17.26
Add: Provided during the year 19584 20635
Less: Haversal of Provsion - [17.26)
Less: Armounts written off (20.63] -
Balance at the end of the year 195,88 20,563
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L. Liquidity Risk

Lquihity risk & the risk, where the company will epcounter d@ificulty in meetng the obiigatons associsted with its financial Rabdites thet are settied by delivering cash or another Faanclal
asset. The company's approach s to ensure, 25 far & posshle, that it will haue sufficent Gguidity o meat its Tabilibes when due.

The table brfow provides detads regarding the remaining cortractual maturities of fimancial Babilities at the reporiing date based on contractual undiscounted payments:

1R In Lakchs)
Particulars Carrying Amount Lass than 1 yaar 1to 5 years Tatal
As at March 31, 2023
Borrowings-Mon-Curnent 18.51 Fied | 10400 18.21
Borrowings-Currant 1,707.22 1,707.22 - 1,7007.22
Trads payalslac 2,007.54 2,077.54 - 207794
Cther Bnarcis| lisbilities 1,038.59 1,039.59 - 1,039.54
Total 4 Balos 4.5301.96 1100 4,842.95
Az At March 31, 2023
Barrawings-Mon-Currert 12.15 494 Ta1 12,15
Barrowings-Current 1.5%2.47 158257 155257
Trade payables 153627 153627 = 1,535.27
Orther inancia| kabdines 1240 912,40 = FLTAD
Total 401378 400658 M 4,015,749
38, FAIR WVALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Set oul bedow, & 2 comparison by class of the carrying armaunts and far value of Lhe fnancial instremsents of e COmpanies:-
] i
{Re |n Lakhs)
Particulars A5 at Marchil, 2023 As ot March3l, 2022
Financial assets Carrylng Amauni Farir walue Carrying Amouwni Fair walue
La A% Fabr vasug theough Prafit and Loss
Irvwestment in Shases 15586 15586 351.73 35173
Irmssstment in mutual Furds 2ATR TS 2ATRTE 1,453.45 1,453.45
Imenstments in Bonds/Oehenture A35.07 F35. 07 TED.42 TE9.42
3,074.42 3.074.42 2,574.60 Z,574.60
L] At Amertized Cost
Cazh ord Bank balanees including FOR 10,166 28 10,166 28 8.3310.77 433077
Trade Recolvables 857140 857380 759524 150524
Laans 6762 67.62 G565 55.65
Cther Financial Assets 15839 16839 18441 184.41
15, 77508 15, 77508 17, 16607 17 18607
[b] Finncil Linbilities
{Re. In Lakdhs)
Particulary A3 at Marchil, 3023 As at Marchil, 20332
Fimancial Liabilities Carrying Amount Faiir vl Carrying Amolnt Fair walue
At Amortiped Cost
Barrowings 172543 172543 156532 156512
Trade payabies AT A4 207794 1,536,217 1,536.27
Other finantial liakines L03%5% LO3%5% aiz.40 a1z.40
4,842.95 4,842,956 4,013.79 4,013.79

The Following mathads and assumptiors were used 1o estimate tho fair values:

1. Caih and shoot-term deposils, race recevabdas, lgams, irade payalias and ather current fmancial asusis and Tabilities approadirmsts thair carmying dmounls Bepety due o the shorl-Lenm

maturities af these instremants.

2. Fairwalse of Investments In quited mutual funds and eguity shares are based on guoted market price at the reporting date.

Fair Walus Hierarchy

All francial assets and labilides for which fair value 5 measared in the financisl statements are categonzed within the fair wahie hierarchy, described as folows:

Losyie 1 - TQuoled prices imactse morkets

Leyed 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included wishin Level 1 that ane ohsenable, sither directly or imdimectly,

Lavet 3 - inputs for assets or liahlites that are net based on observable market data

The fofawing tabile presents the fair valus measorement hierarchy of finandes ascets and fiabilities, which hinve bean rmeasured subspqosent to initial recognition =t fair value

{Rs Im Lascha}

Particulars Level 1 Leved 7
314t March, 2023
Finandial Assets
Cuated Equity Shares 155 H& -
Il Funds 2478.79 -
Bards/Debentune 435,77 -
3ist March, J022
Financdial fssats
Twated Equity Shanes 35073 -
Feliitinal Funds 145345 -
Bands/Debentire The 4d

38, The disclodures neguired under IND A5 19 “Employee Benefils” are as ghen below:

{a) Defired Benefit Plan and Dther employess benetits

Thn Company previde gratuity, a defined benedit plan covening the egible employpees. The Company 2tso pravida the leave encashmant o eligible amployess as other employes banefi
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i} The Following provisaons towards gratuty bty and lesve efcashment habdity based on the progectied umt crecel (PUCH aotuares method & per scluarde salualion have bean mace by
e Coamgramy. For Summmaniong e componentd of el Derehil e penie reoogniaad in the atement ol profiland losd and Bduals redagrmcad i 10e balanie sheel for e faipeilive pland,

A detmls gre 23 under

(A= in Lakhs)
Grotuity [Defined Benefit Plan) Leave Encashment
Particulars [Non- Fumndesl} [Man- Fupdes)
2032-23 203122 203323 2031-22

I, Change in the Present Vakie of Obligation
1. Present Yalue of Oefined Benefit Chligation al the begmnmg RETE .92 A3 %5 T4 52
1. Current Service Cosl G056 5232 G 98 3582
3. inferest Expense or Cost &2 a7 .33 an
4. He-measurement [or actuana’] |gain| f less arising from; . 1817 943

-change in demsmgraphic assumptons &

- changs In Anancial s smptions H 3 H H

-sparianca varkance || e actual gupsrance ve arsimptions g LGS [6.54) .

-Rifterence in Y of Obigation 970 21.43 - -

-others -
5. Padit Service Cost . . . -
&, Benefir Paid ABOE1Y 13111 (18.93) 32,10
7. Present Walue of Dhligaban as st the =nd B2T55 Hok Ik 12581 &4 15
il Chamge in the Fair Valee of Plan Assets

1. Fair valuie of plan assets at 10 begvming af th pear s HIL NI HIL
L Ineestmeent Income Hik HIL ML HiL
3. Emiployer's Contrbution L HIL HiL HIL
4. Benefrs Pald ML HIL Ml ML
5. Hetum on plan assets, exduding amount recognised in et inberest experse HIL L ML HIL
i, Far value of plan assets as az the eno ML HIL ML HIL
I, Exp reg 1 ir the 5 of Profit and Loss

1. Current Service Cosl B0 56 52.31 698 3582
2. Past Service Cost

3. Net Intarest income ¢ (cost) an the Mot Defnec Senafit Uabdity {&sset) I8.71 Kooy | a4 33 3732
4. Net Actuanial Sainflos 1817 9.43
5. Exoenses recognised m the statement of Prafit and Loss 4877 06 41 47 4847
W, Orther Comprehe=nsive incomes

1. Acnaial [Gainsl f Losses
1. change in financial assumptians
3. - pxpenenoe varanoe {Le. actual experience vs assumpiians) INES [&.541

-Differance in BV of Obkgation 279 2143 ML ML

4, R am plan assats, pxcluding ameunt racagrised in rt interast prpense ML L

5, Companenis af defined Denetil costs racagnised In oimer comarehensiee

LOme 43 14 85
. Metissrial Assumnptian |

1. Discount Rate 7.A6% 733 7. 365 733K
1. [xpected rate of return on plan asiets Ha WA WA ha

3. Mortality AL [2012-14] Uikimsate § RAL (2013-14]) Uldmate | ad [2003-14) Ulbimate | 1AL [2052-14] Litimate
4. Salary Excalabon 7.01% ZHIH 70T SO

i, SnRthity analysi

Reasanably possibila changes 3t the yaar and, to one of the relavant acfuaral assumgations, halding other assumptions constant, waisd have affecred the defined henefit abiigation as the

amouings shown Below: -

|Rx. i Lashs)
Leave Encashment Gratusty
Particulars A 3t March3l, 2023 As an March3l, 2022 A5 at Maschil, 2023 Az at Marchi3l, 30712

Dhetrease Intrease Decrease Incresse Decrease Incresse Deorease Incremse
imputnd  Rate 429 |4.80] 1 {2.xa) X3 {30:14) a4.47 faran
of return |2 f 4
15|
Salary. Growth (3.34] 437 |253) .33 25:36) 3237 (73.19) i5.13
E_ﬂp |- f+ 1)
Attrition Rate |- [LRE]] n11 1R @54 Inz7 miz AMTH) 64
{1

iil, The estimates of future salary increase, considered im actuanal valustion, take acoount of imflabar, senicrty, prometion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the

Emplayment marset

{b] Defined Contribution Plens -£mplayer's Contrbotions 1o Frovident chargeo of f during the 12 montts ended 315t March, 2123 aof Bs 240,26 Lakhs (Frovious Year Bs.215.97 lkhs) bas

been induded under the hoad Employee Borefits Expense. {Refer Kate 2%

), INCOME TAX:
A Amount recognésoed in Statement of Profit and less:. [Rs. i Lakhs)
Particulars 2223 H021-22

Current incoma Tax ARG
- Cuarment year {1755 57RO
- Adjustrent in resgert ol curtant incgme Cax of esfier year

Total 1408045 5rE.00
Detorrad Tas
- Redaking to ongination and revorsal of temporary difforences [k ] {2453
income fax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 1,008 35 553,37

i1
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B, Income Tax recognised In other comprehensive Income:-

(R In Lakha)
Particulars 022-23 021-12
Imooene Tax Re-maaiunam et lasies an delined benslit plan T.66 375
Total T.668 175
C. Reconciligtion of effective tax rate
{Fes I Lakhs)
Particulars 2123 2122
Arpounting profit belare incomie Lax 3 A56.46 21851
At applcable Statutory Incoma Tax Rate @ 25 168% {25 168%| 47055 551.11
Exempl Incame {116} {2.B5)
Danation 0T .26
C5E Expancilune 1251 1147
Capital Expenditene on Soentfic Research
Change of income tax rate - -
Othars 23125 {6,228
| Reparted Income taK Expenss 1,004.25 553,37 |
Effactive Tau Rate 26.04% 2537

41. Capital Risk Management

The Company's peicy |5 10 maintan an adeguate capital base 5o as w0 malntain creditor and market confidence and to sustaln future development, Capltal Inckides ssued caplta, share
pramium and all other equity rescrens attributable to equity kolders. In ordar to strengthen tha capital baxe, the company may use appropriate means t9 enhance or reduce capital, as the

case may be
i s In Lakhs)
2022-23 122
Borrowings 1,72543 1,58512
Laga: caih and cadh aquivalanly neleding bank balance 10,765.25 9,330.78
Less: Current Investments - 134,04
Hat debi 19,039.82) (7,559.60)
Equaty 13,175.42 J0.363.590
Capital and Nat dabil 14,135.80 12.464.29
Gaaring Ratio (36 [E3.25) (5. 20)
42 ROLATED PARTIES
A- List of Related Parties:-
i. Enterprises over which Key Managemant Personnel, their relatives and major shareholders have significant influence foontraf:-
L .5, Kedd Hald Industries Pet Ltd
L 'Waleo Ergiraering Lid,
A Indian Refrigeration Industies
4. Freezeking Industries Private Lid
i fan ial Personne| (K
Excutive Director
Mir Jasmahan Singh, Managing Directaor
Mon-Evecutive Directors
M4, lasless Kaur G Dody
M5 Gurieen Kaur
Mr Ramesh Chandra lain
Mr G.B. Rao |w.ea.f. 0B.0G.2021)
Wir Divaker lagga
EHEDJHH!
Mr Sharad Bhamnagar, Chief Finance Officer
Mle it Singh Tomar, Company Secelary
iif, Reglative of Key Managerial Persannel
Mr. Indraveer Singh |son of Shei lasmohan Singh) qw.e, £ 0110302324
I, The following transactions were carried out with the related parties:-
(K. In Lakhsl
Bey Managerial Enterprise aver which
Particulars Rola KRR
Poarsonnel tive ot cortral exist
L. Purchase of Material
- Freezeking Industries Pt Lid 93 E0
1129.26)
2. Sake of Material
Froczeking Industries Pyt Lud 1487
[10.592]
3. RernunerationSalary
- M kndravieer Singh 478
EMEn K r d I
‘Waloo Enginearing Ltd 035
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- Indian Redrigeranion industries
[ih3)
5. REomuneration to KMFs*
« Mr. lasmichan Singh, Mr. Sharad Bhatnagar, WMr_ Amiz Singh Tomar 140 a6
[3t1.47}
. Professional charges paid
= M5 Gurkegn Kawr 4,80
14.E0f
7, Sitting Fees
- Mr. Ramesh Chandes fem, Mr. Dhvsker lagpa & Me G.B, Ras 2640
|24.75)
. Dustanding badances .-
{Rs in Lakhs)
i Managerial Enterprise ower which
Particulars h‘;tnnr::l Rielative of KNP :Mm
Remuneration/Salary 20061 075 =
{18.05) -
Profswsional Charpges = 04D =
= () H
Mirte:  Figunes in Drackel regresants presdous weor arcent, whersver spplicabie
Purchases Seles and Serviced Lropsaciian amoutil reported obove are incusive of Lases
* gedude Fees paid to ohecions.
The remuneration to_key maaugensl gersonne! intudes the follawings: [Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended 31" | For the Year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Short-term amploves banefits 8 12487 292.42
Fost-employment bonefts -
- Defined contribution plan 5 17.19 10.05

- Defined benefit plan # -
- Other lomng-term bemefits # -

Total FA2.06 311.a7

U Il ding Satary, bonus, cosnmission om soorisl Base ard vales of perquisites

* Excluifing lsbility for Gratuity and Lepve Encashenant, fs the labiimy for gratuity ood leasa encashment are provided sn sctuarial Bass tor the Company 85 & whohe, amaunts soorued
pertaining 1o key mansgerial personnel are not included above,

4 Including PF and any other banat

43, SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company has only ans busisess ssgment e, manofacture , supply and execotion of industrial refrigeration and air conditioning equnment &nd ane geographical reportable segment e
Operations mainly within india, The performance is revewed by the Board of Directors {Cnief aperating decision makers)

24, CORFOAATE SOCIAL RESFONSIBILITY

|Rs In Lakhs)
Fartkulan 2022-73 7122
1. Gross amount raguined ta bo spent by the Company dunng the year 34.32 44,001
20 AMOUNT Spent Auring The year
« Promabion of Fducaban 1400 13,01
- Hesdth Cane ar1s 8.0
= Drthors 1.60 23,00
Total Amourt Spent A%5.69 44,040
Shortfall/{nxcess i =t the ond of thin year 15.37) =
Taotal of previous years shortfal|oecoss) - =
Reasons for shartfall iy (i 1)
MNakure of C6R Achites Education, Mealth ete

A5, DIVIDEND REMITTED IN FOREMGN CURRENCY
{Rs in Lakbap

Fier the Year anded 3181 |For the Year endod 3151
ki Barch 2033 Marth 2022

| Grass Dividend*™ 350 3.E0
i Tax Deducted at Sauce o5 a.9s
) Met Dvidend rematted*® 185 .85
k] Yesrs to which deadend refated Flurd B ) FLilife |
v} Mumbers of shares on which divicend paid 13001 120011
wi| Wumber of Non- resdent sharshalders i i

**in serms of the Settlomont Agreement dated 22,12,2011 upheid by the crders dated 14, 14,5013 and 06,10.2014 of Hon'ble Superor Court, Massachuseets, USa and order 13,05 216 of
Appeilate Court, USA and the share transfer from executad by D, Jang Banadur Sngh In terms of arder dated 05 03,2035 and 08.06.2015 of Hon'ble Suparior Court, Massachuserts, LISA,
120001 shares of the Company (Le. 305% ol the paid up Share Capits] have been tramsferred o Revour of Mi Jasmaban Siegh, pointly boldng for lamsell aleng with B Gurmokan Smghy, B
lasleen Eaut & Dud,-and Mis. Gurbpan Kaur.,

A, Datances of certmin advances, Trade payablas (inchiding MSMED otler payahle and trade receivables dre in process al confirmation,’ reconciiiatian.

A7 Land, Building, Plant & Machinery, Fised Deposits and Book debils hinve been afered as Collsteral Security Tor vanaus credis limits sancaned by Canara Sane

8. Phsical verification of Stores & Spare Farts and consumable itnms i in process ag tha items are nemerpos. However, considering the past experience management fs af the view that on
final assessment there would net ba any mazensd impact
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43, VALUE OF IMPORTS OM CIF BASIS:

A=, In'Lakhs]
Pa i For the Year ended 3241 |For the Year ended 315t
March 2033 Ilarch 2022
|! Paw Matenal ane Losmpanents B Genef.ils-u:!r!_: d-.!_E-‘El.?ﬁ 45661 30
Ly Canil=! Goods - 17505
30, EARNING IN FOREIGN CLIRRENCY:
iHs. Im Lakhs]
s i Far the Fear erded 305 |For the Year andad 315y
BEarch 2023 Mech 7077
Earnings in Faraign Exchange Exports &1 F.0 8, 1.63918 146142
51, ENPENDITRIRE BN FOREIGH CURRENCY.
{Rs, In Lakhs)
For the Year ended 3151 |For the Year ended 3150
Fartculars
Blarch 2033 Masch 2022
il Coemrmission 127 4.97
I} Tranvethirg E -
i} Rayalry 239 1339
Iy} Feos tor Techprical Sendices 1.93 [ER-1]
w) Other 3292 330
Tatal 4250 22,42

5%, Irsurance Claim of Rs, 29800 Lakis recoived during the presdous wear was on acrount af imakirity al E&v Man Policy takan tora Ky persan The sald ey Man pofcy was mad b the
year 1997 t9 retain the talens [Key pecple) in the company

53. DETARS OF OTHER PROYISNONS:-

-Warranty Experiaes it It Lokhs]
l Particulars 022-23 w2122
Balance as at the beprning of the year Y165 a2.45%
Aukfition durang 1he year B& 76 53,65
Utilispel) roversed dueing th yaar 5165 &2.45
| Bakance at the and of the year 6876 53.65

The Company provdes product sarmanty to B customers, Proveion i made Tor estimated warsandy dms in respect af product sakd which are 319 under warranty &1 the =no of the
reparlang perkod, Mansgeinenl estimales the provision based o historics! warranty darm information and army recent Lend il may suggest Tuldre claims could diflér Brgim hatorics!
AT G LS.

54, Karey Stock Sroking Umited (K58} was bolding equity shares on behat of the company in demal scount waorth Rs, 18682 fakbs [market wabie a5 on 31-03-2022] along with hank
balance of Rs. 20,76 lakhe deposted by the company, which had been pledged by the KSEL without the knowledge and appraval of the compary. As per the Cinouad issued by Securities
Exchange Boerd of India (SRl dated June 20, 2019, brokers cannot pledgu client's securifies to rame loans | funds far themeeives /Tl use and brokers ane requived to segragate chent's
Fursds with it's pam fand a5 wed secuntiag

Acoondingly, e company Bas writien emaik sng kiters In the year 2021 and 2072 to NSE |beng Modal Agency) lor retum of the sedusities and depisic amaunt hedd In the name of the
compay froo KSEL.

Perding rocaips of eriginal shares! clemned equal numner of shanes alang with bank balance or amgur of Rs 38110 lakhs (net of amaunt received of Re. 30,49 lakhs|, accordingly the
eampany has adjustad the ampuet from invsstmant and the same is shown under ather financlal agsets (oument|. Further the company has filad tha case agsinst KSE| and NSE hefars SERE
on 31,03 2023 and in the opinion of the managamant above stated amaunt is good and fully recoverabie

55, The Code op Social Secunty, 2000 {'Code'} relating to emplayee benefits during emaloymeant anel post emaloymant recebved Irdian Parllamant appressl and Presdential assent in
September 2030, The Code has baen published in the Gazetie of India and subsequently on 13 November 2000 draft rokes were published and invited for stakensldens’ suggastions,
Herwguar, e date on which the Cane will cone Insn eflect has not been ratified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes info efect ard will recond amy falated
imipact in tha period 1he Code bacomas affermve,

56, Rathay:

Iladu Nurmsratos D raminator 202233 2021-22 % Warianoe Beason for variance
Current  RatiofCurment Assets Cisrent Liabillties 46T 213 (2.25]|MA

lin fryes)

Drhit-Equity Tatal Debt (Non  Current|Sharehoidar's Ecuity n.o7 008 [3.13]{NA

Barrawingss Currant

Rt |In l1|'|'\|&|I Barrawings|

Dbl sorvice | Eamning fwailable foe Do o, [Interes L] Eearrgmings boan 95.16 4303 12118 |Due b irdrease o PET
PET+Dapreciaiten Bliepaid during the year

Cuverage Hatio Amartsatianelntarast an

iin trmes| Barnawings|

Raoturn af| Profit after Tax fwerage Sharehplder's Bguity 13,10 84T %561 |Due o mcreass m Proft
[{Equity Ratia %)

Imeentony Nt Salns AnTrage FMEn:ony 480 5,58 114,35 [Ma

Turower  Hatio|

i tames)

Trasde MHet Sales ‘werage Tradn Aecelvables 449 .50 ZR.AT |Dus o rcreass n Saes
Fecerrabiey

Turraear Ratio

[in reEnas)

Trade Zayvahbles|Nei Purchase twerage Trade Payables 1435 11.96 F2.15 |HA

Turrewer  Ratin

Lin tenas|
Pt Caprtal| Net Sales ‘Workirg Capital |Current Aszets 1.58 218 (8.36] | W&
Corrent Liabilites)

Turnonsar Aatio

{in tines|
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Met Prafit Ratie|Profit Adter Tax Net Sales 7.86 5E3 34,74 | Due toincrease in Profit
in %)
Aetum onfEBIT  Le. (Profit beore|Camtal Employed ie, 15.64 1oz 53.00 § Dwe 1o increase in Profit
Capital tanslnterest on borowings) | [Sherehotdar's Equitys Total Dett)

J%i
Returmn on|Fofit/[loss)  on  sale  of| Purchase Cost of investments sold 5.42 4360 {87.56)] Dus 1o increase invalue
Investment st menty ol investmsnt

57 Other Statutory information in terms of the schadule |l of the companies act
a) The Company doss not have any benami property, and no proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami proparty,

b) The Company does not have any bransactions with companies strsck off.
] The Camp any does ned haws any eharges or satislaction which & yel 1o be registered with Regictrar af Carmpanias beyand the statutany period excepl a3 disclased in nate no. 17,

d) The Company have not traded or invested in crypto currendy or virtual currency during the financial year.

o) Tha Campany have nat advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other personis) or entitylies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries] with the understanding that the Intermediary
shall;

{1}, Directly ar indirectly fend or invest in other persons or enntes idantified in any manner whatsoavar by or on behalf of the cormpany |ulomate benaficlaries| or

{il). Provide goy Guarantes, Sequrity, or the like to or an behall of the Ulbmate Bereficianies,

fl The Company have not recelvad any fund from any Person{s) or Entitylkes), including Forelgn Entrties [Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded In writing or otherwise)
that the Carmpany thall:

(I}, Derectly or indirectly fend or invest in other persons or entites identdfied in @y manner whatseevar by or on behalf of tha funding party [uldrmate beneficarias) or

{i1). Provide any Guarantes, Security, or the like on behalf of the ultimate benefickanes,

gl The company has been sanctioned working capital imit in excess of Rz, 5 crore, m aggregate. at points of nme during the year, from bank on the basis of sacunty of currant assats, Tha
quarterly returns/ statements filed by the company with the bank, are generally In agreement with the unaodited books ol atcounts of the company of the respective guarters and
differencas, if arny am not matorial

h] The Company has no such Wransaction which is not recorded in the Books of Accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year kn the tax assessments under tha
Imeomie Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or surdey of any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

il The Company have not been declared willful defaulter by any Banks ar any ather Financal Institution at any time during the finangal wear,

S8, Previows figures have been regrouped/rearranged to make it comparable with current year figures,
In hight of guidance and principats elaborated in " Guidance Note on “Division 11 = Ind A5 — Schedule Il 1o the Companies Act, 20137, issued by Tha Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Irufla |, the company has changed classification of cerlim tems in Corrent year rom oné head b another head of financial statemsnts and alus reclassilied pravioos year ri,g,I.II-'\ES m line with
current year presentation and classificaton. This reclassification Is not having any fmanclal Impact over financlal results and state of affalr as on 31st March 2022, Summary of
raclassitication of items has bean given below:

{As. In Lakhs)
Classifted under the broad heads of financial | Re-classified of items under the broad heads of] Amount Reclassified

aN Particulars

statements in Fy 21-22 financial statements in Fy 22-23
Provishons {Mote Mo, 23)

1 Provision for Warranty 53.65

Other Current Liabilides (Nate Na. 22)

Othar Finanoal Liabilines [Note No, 21)
2 Payable to Employees 314,12
Other Current Liabilides [Mote No. 23)

Dther Current Liabaiie: 1
GST Input & Liability Netoff as allowed under |Other Corrent Assets (Note Mo, 14) 1 Ut LUt (Mote No:-21)

3 GST Provisions Other Current Lisbilities (Note Mo, 21) S e, s Mot e T o
As per our ropart of ewen date For and on behalf of the Board
Frick india Limited
For Lodha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. Mo 30L051E
lasmaohan Singh EMHI::‘:::
Managing Director 8
h .
Gauray Lodha DN - DOFE3912 o 00
Partner
M Mo, 507862
Plags = New Delhi Shairad Whatnbgar Amit Singh
ke, 34053028 Director [Finance & Taxation) Company Secrotary
i PAM ADCFBITEIN M.No, A 46813

15




Frick India Limited




Frick india Limited

Form No, SH-13 - Nomination Form

[Pursuant to section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19{1) of the
Companles [Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014]

FRICK INDIA LINITED

[CIN - L74395HA1S62PLOD0261 8]

Regd. Office: 21.5 KM, Main Mathurs Road,
Faridabad-121003 {Haryana)}

Ph. 0129-2375691-94, 2270546-47

Fax 0129-2275659%

Ermall - es@@frickmail com

Waebsite « www frickweab.com

Ifwie .. cisssereissssnesiseisenenee: TE Rolder(s) of the securities  particulars of which are given hereunder wish to make
nomlnatlon and ::I|:| hereb-,.- nnmlnate the following persans In wham shall vest, all the rights in respect of such
securities in the event of myfour death.

{1} PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being made)

Nature of Securities | Folio No. Mo. of securities Certificate No. Distinctive No.

From To

(2} PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE'S —

Mame : Date of Birth ; -/ {in MM DDYYY)
| Father's / Mother's f Qeccupation : Nationality :
Spouse’s Name :
E- mail id :
| Phone No. : Relation with the | Signature of the
Security holder : Nominee:
Address
Pin code :
{3) IN CASE NOMINEE IS A MINOR--
MName ; Relationship with Nominee ;
Date of Birth;__f ! Date of attaining Mame of guardian
majority;__ ./ /
Address of guardian :
Pin code
Name of Security Holder(s) : Signature :
Address:
Name of Witness : Signature of Witness with date ;
Address of witness:
Pin code
Place: Date : ! ! -
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Instructions for Nomination Form

1. Please read the instructions given below very carefully and follow the same to the letter, If the form is not filled as per
instructions, the same will be rejected.

2, The nomination can be made by individuals only. Non individuals including society, trust, body corporate, partnership
firm, Karta of Hindu Undivided family, holder of power of attorney cannot nominate, If the shares are held jointly all joints
holders shall sign {as per the specimen registered with the company) the nomination form.

3. A minor can be nominated by a holder of Shares and in the event the name and address of the Guardian shall be given by
the holder,

4,  The nominee shall not be a trust, society, body corporate, partnership firm, Karta of Hindu Undivided Family, or a power
of attorney holder. A non-resident Indian can be a nominee on re-patriable basis,

5. Transfer of Shares in favour of a nominee and repayment of amount to nominee shall be a valid discharge by a company
against the legal heir.

6.  Only one persan can be nominated for a given folio.

7. Details of all holders in a folio need to be filled; else the request will be rejected.

8. The nomination will be registered only when it is complete in all respects including the signature of (a) all registered
holders {as per specimen lodged with the company) and (b) the nominee.

9, Whenever the shares in the given folio are entirely transferred, transposition or dematerialised with some other folio,
then this nomination will stand rescinded.

10. Upon receipt of a2 duly executed nomination form, the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the company will register the form
and allot a registration number, The registration number and folio number should be quoted by the nominee in all future
correspondance.

11.  The nomination can be varied or cancelled by executing fresh nomination form.

12.  The company will nat entertain any claims other than those of a registered nominee, unless so directed by a Court.

13. The intention regarding nomination /nomination form shall be filled in duplicate with the Registered and Transfer Agents
of the Company who will return one copy thereof to the Members.,

14.  Forshares held in dematerialised mode nomination is reguired to be filled with Depository Participant in their prescribed
form.

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

Momination Registration Number

Date of Registration

Checked by { Name and Signature )
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ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICE [CREDIT CLEARING) MANDATE FORM

ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICE [CREDIT CLEARING) MANDATE FORM

sharehalder's authorization ta recene dividends through Electronlc Credit Clearing Mechanism
The FirstySole Shareholder

8 B

Regd. Folio Mo./DP Client I

|

Particulars of bank account of firstfsole shareholder

B Marme of the bank
b. Bramch

Address of the
Branch Telephone

No. of the Branch
< O-digit code number of the Bank and Branch

appearing on the MICR cheque issued by
the Bank

d. Account number

[as appearing on the chegue book/ passbook)

g. Account type
[5.B. Account/Current Account or cash credit) with code 10711713

f Ledger no. { Ledger fofic no.
(If appearing on the chegue book/passhookp

{In Few of the bank certificate to be obtained as under, please attach a blank cancelled cheque, or photocopy of a cheque or the front page of
the savings bank passbook issued to you by your bank, for verification of the abowe particulars.)

| hereby declare that the particulars given above are correct and complete. If the transaction is delaved or not effected at all for reasons of
incomplete or incorrect informat lon, | will mot held Frick india Limited responsible. | have read the option/ Invitation letter and agree to
discharge the responsthility expected of me as a participant under the scheme.

Date:
Place: Signature of the Shareholder
Certifiad that the particutars furnished above are correct a5 per our records.
Bank's Stamp Signature of the Authorlzed Official
fromm the Bank
Date:
Mota;
1. Please fill in the attached Mandate Form and send it to;
{11 The Depositary Participant who is maintaining your demat account in case your shares are dematerialized,

(il The Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd whose address is Noble Heights, 1st Floor, NH-2, C-1, Black LSC, Mear Savitri Market,
Janakpuri, New Delhi - 110058 or at the company at Frick india limited. 21.5 Km, Main Mathura Road, faridabad - 121003
in case you are halding physical share certificates.

2, Kindly note that the information provided by you should be accurate and complete in 2l respects and fully certified by your bank. In lieu of the
bank certificate, you may attach a blank cancelied cheque or photocopy of & chegue or the front page of the Saving Bank passbook issued to
yoru by your bank, for verification of the abowe particulars.

3.  Incase of more than one folio please complete the details on separate sheets.

The information provided by you will be treated confidential and would be utilised only for the purpose of effecting the payments meant for
you. You also have the right to withdraw from this mode of payment by providing the Company with an advarice notice of & weeks
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Frick India Limited

(CIM - L74899HR1962FPLCO0DZ61E)
Regd. Office: -

21.5 KM, Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad-121002 (Haryana)

Ph. 0129-2275691-94, 2270546-47
Fax. 0129-2275605

Email - cs@frickmail.com

Website - www.frickweb.com

Dear Shareholder(s)/Member(s),
Sub: Service of Documents through Electronic Mode

The Mew Companies Act, 2013 has been notified w.e f. 1st April, 2014 and it inter alia, allows the Company, to
communicate with its shareholders/members through electronic mode like email. Thus in view of the same your
Company is hoping for an affirmative response from its shareholders/ members to rec eive Notices of General
meeting/ Postal Ballot, Annual Report and other sharehelders communicati ons through electronic mode. This will
enable you to receive such notice(s)/ Annual Report{s)/document(s) Communication(s) etc. promptly and without
any loss or hassles of postal transit.

In order to register your email id or update the changes therein, you are requested to send an email from your
respective email id to cs@frickmail.com and bharatb@linkintime.co.in, with a subject “Registration/Update of
emall id" or send the duly filled in attached form to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, i.e. M/s. Link Intime
India Private Limited.

Post receipt of your positive consent for the same, going forward any Notice of Meetings, Annual Report,
Directors’ Report and other Shareholders/Members communication shall be duly sent to you electronically to the

e-mail address as provided by you.

Please note that if you do not register your email id or still wish to continue receiving physical copy of the
aforementioned documents, the Company shall send the same, free of cost, upon receipt of a request from you.

We look forward for your support.

Date: May 24, 2023 For Frick India Limited

{lasmohan Singh)
Managing Director

DIN: 00383412

Address: -

5, Friends Colony(West),
New Delhi-110065
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tear here

REGISTRATION OF E-MAIL ADDRESS FORM

Date:

To:
m/s. Link Intime India Private Limited,

Moble Heights, Ist Floor, NH-2, C-1, Block
LSC, Mear Savitri Market, Janakpuri,
Mew Delhi - 110058

Dear Sirs,
Sub.: Registration of email id for receiving communication through electronic mode.

I/We submit as under;

1) I/We hereby give my CONSENT to the Company to use myfour registered e -mall id in my/our Demat account with the
Depositary Participant for serving the documents as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, (Please tick
mark(+' } appropriately). ™'

Yes |:| Mo, |:|
“'Far shareholders/members holding share in Demat farm,

2y Rindly use my / our e -mail id for serving the

documents as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for Folio No. okt

Yes I:I No, I:l

**'Ear shareholders/members holding share in Physical form.,

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

MName of Sole / First Holder Signature

DAkl - ivisconsermnsiine

Blace: & .oirsmensinsinis

Tear here
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